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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Unit 1, 4/F, Block B

Shatin Industrial Centre

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit

Shatin, Hong Kong
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e Cayman Islands
Maples Corporate Services Limited
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Cayman Islands Law
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STOCK CODE
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WEBSITE

www.hanison.com
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
KERB
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
U V=

TURNOVER & PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR
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CHAliRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEREE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”),
I am pleased to present to our shareholders the
results of Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”
or “Hanison”) for the year ended 31 March 2015. | am
particularly proud to report that through the ongoing
and dedicated efforts of our management team and
colleagues, the Group has achieved a record high profit
as it enters its 25th year of operation.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$2,095.2 million, up 28.8% from
HK$1,626.5 million recorded in the previous financial
year. Consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year surged by 169.2% to HK$419.2
million (2014: HK$155.7 million). The encouraging results
were mainly due to profit derived from the sales of
our property development projects, significant gain on
change in fair value of investment properties, as well as
the satisfactory performance of our Construction, Interior
and Renovation and Building Materials Divisions during
the year.

The basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share for the year were HK78.2 cents and HK78.1 cents.
The basic earnings per share represented an increase of
169.7% as compared to HK29.0 cents last year.

As at 31 March 2015, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$1,743.6 million (2014: HK$1,348.0
million), representing an increase of 29.3% over last year.
Net asset value per share at 31 March 2015 was HK$3.25
(2014: HK$2.51).

TABRRESE ((ES2]) 0B URERERE
ZHanison Construction Holdings Limited
(EfsRIZZERERAR) (A2 1) REH
BAR (B AEE [ BEBRIZ ) BE=
E-HF=ZA=1+T—BLFEZEEZ - KTAM
AERRBE ZREEEERREZBRAEZ
BES I AEETEEANFEELEFE
ZBENBRIHS -

BE_Z—AF=RAR=+—HLHY
BMEEZRE

REBE-Z—HF=A=+—HBLEE XK&
4215 & ¥ 588%52,095,200,0007T » & £ — 8t
BEE 2 8%1,626,500,0007T £ 728.8% o A
FEARNBEE ABLGRE EFIEIN169.2%
Z#81419,200,000t (== —HF B
155,700,0007T) - WS A E 2 EBETEHRN
FREEMERREE 2aH - REMEZLD
FTEHEB2BEANRREEI  HaMREESI
UREBEMBHZmEREMZ-

AEESREABILREREERFNABYE
782U K B #7811l EREARBIREFW
B#E29.01L3ER169.7% °

R-E-RF=A=1+—H0 FEEZEEF
{EA78%1,743,600,00050 (Z = — 95 : B
1,348,000,0007T) ' B A F £ FH29.3% e A=
E-RF=A=1+—H BREEFEABY
3257 (=& —M5F  B#2517T) °

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 /



DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK3.4
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
HK3.2 cents per share) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
on 3 September 2015. This, together with the interim
dividend of HK2.1 cents per share (2014: HK1.8 cents per
share) distributed during the year, gives a total dividend
of HK5.5 cents per share for the year (2014: HK5.0 cents
per share). The proposed final dividend will be paid on
16 September 2015 following approval at the annual
general meeting scheduled to be held on 25 August 2015
("AGM").

BONUS ISSUE

In celebration of the Group’s 25th anniversary and the
outstanding performance for the year ended 31 March
2015, the Board proposed a bonus issue on the basis of
one bonus share for every four existing shares held by
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 3 September 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the global economy
grew at a steady pace though with relatively divergent
trends among major economies. While the United
States and United Kingdom have gained momentum
as the labour markets improved, the recovery has been
commencing in the Eurozone and Japan. Mainland China
underwent a carefully managed growth slowdown,
while other developing countries’ growth rates were
moderating. The overall weaker than expected growth
globally has delayed the implementation of monetary
tightening policies worldwide. The resulting low-interest
environment has been relatively favorable for property
markets around the world.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEifa £
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHE=

In Mainland China, GDP grew by 7.4% in 2014, which,
while representing the weakest expansion rate in 24
years, was nonetheless in line with market expectations.
The local authorities have been seeking to steer the
economy towards a more sustainable path, with
particular efforts placed on controlling the property
bubble which has grown over the past several years.
Growth during the first quarter of 2015 remained
sluggish, which was due to an industry slowdown and
weak housing market.

In Hong Kong, GDP grew modestly by 2.3% in 2014,
down from 2.9% in 2013, as the weak global economy
affected exports, while slow growth in the Mainland
China slackened tourist spending, all of which affected
domestic demand. However, the unemployment rate
remained low and housing demand continued to be
strong as the supply shortage persisted. To discourage
speculation and stabilise property prices, the HKSAR
Government continued to implement short-term cooling
measures such as levying heavy stamp duties and
reducing the loan-to-value ratio for property mortgage
financing to address the supply-demand imbalance
affecting the housing market. Also, the Government's
strategy of increasing land and housing supply over
the long term continued. We believe that a healthy
property market which allows sustainable long-term
development is crucial, both for Hanison and the Hong
Kong community as a whole.

With infrastructure projects and residential building
works from both the private and public sectors
continuing to thrive, it has been a busy year for Hong
Kong’s construction industry. However, a severe labour
shortage and ageing of skilled workers remain major
concerns. The shortage of skilled workers has indirectly
led to the escalation of construction costs. Discussions
between the Government and the industry regarding
the recruitment of foreign skilled labour have also
been ongoing, although no concrete plans have been
established.
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The financial year ended 31 March 2015 has been a
fruitful year for the Group. Property sales from our
major development projects continued satisfactorily,
while the Construction, Interior and Renovation, and
Building Materials Divisions have all performed well
as we strategically focused on securing relatively more
profitable projects from reputable developers. The
land and properties that we acquired at relatively low
prices in the past have shown significant upsurge in
values. Internally, the management has been dedicating
efforts to employ and retain talents. This is the key to
our success. The Group is optimistic about its ability to
overcome the labour shortage while continuing to grasp
every opportunity that may arise.

HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

During the year under review, the Construction Division
was awarded various major contracts mainly from
the private sector, while the projects on hand have
progressed well. With property prices continuing to rise,
the Interior and Renovation Division has benefited as
property owners have become more willing to invest in
property improvement and maintenance work, which
contributes to further price appreciation. Our Building
Materials Division also experienced an overall margin
improvement due to the significant improvement in our
aluminium window business.

In respect of the Property Development Division, sale
of The Austine Place, a boutique residential building
with retail podium situated on Kwun Chung Street in
Kowloon, commenced during the year under review.
Market response was overwhelming with 20 units
sold along with numerous sales enquiries. Sale of The
Bedford, the Group’s boutique industrial high-rise at
Bedford Road in Kowloon, continued during the year
with 5 units sold, representing a total of 14 units sold
since the project’s launch in 2013. We see ample market
demand for quality niche properties, hence, we will be
mindful of maintaining the quality of our development
properties while controlling our costs to stay competitive
in the property market.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEifa £
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F @& E

The Property Investment Division has been another key
growth driver for the Group. In March 2015, a sale and
purchase agreement was reached for the sale of one of
the Group’s investment properties, CentreHollywood
in Sheung Wan, in which it holds 60% interest. The
transaction is expected to be completed in the following
financial year and will result in a lucrative return for
the Group. The management is planning to acquire
other high-potential investment properties, with the
objective of improving the property management and
enhancing the property quality following our renovation
and upgrading works, similar to the CentreHollywood
case. Already, the Group has signed a sale and purchase
agreement in May 2015 to purchase a property located
at High Street in Hong Kong. This property will become
another key property in the Group's investment property
portfolio.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS AND PROSPECTS

The global economy is expected to grow by 3% in 2015,
and at an average of approximately 3.3% through to
2017, supported by gradually recovering labour markets
and consistently low financing costs. In Mainland China,
with Beijing lowering interest rates in early 2015 to
spur the slowing economy and cut financing costs for
businesses, growth is also expected to gradually pick
up. Although Mainland China’s GDP growth slowed to
7% in the first quarter of 2015, the Group is optimistic
about the overall economic outlook given that the PRC
Government will be committed to maintaining a well-
balanced economy over the long run.

For Hong Kong and the local property market, 2015 will
be a challenging year. The US Federal Reserve Board
has been preparing to raise interest rates. Although not
expected to be significant, the adjustment might still
impact the local property market as well as dampen local
consumption and investment sentiment. However, as
the demand for housing is still high, the Group remains
confident about the prospects for the construction
industry and property market in Hong Kong.
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Moving forward, the Group will remain prudent yet
responsive to changing market conditions. Together
with our most important asset, our loyal and established
team of building and development staff, the Group is
well positioned to seize every opportunity in the years to
come.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all those who have been with us during the
past 25 years. Appreciation goes to the management
team and all colleagues for their hard work and
contributions to Hanison over the years. Certainly, our
shareholders and business partners deserve recognition
for their unwavering support as well. Undoubtedly, it is
the contributions made by each and everyone mentioned
that has enabled Hanison to enjoy its present success.
With a strong foundation in place, we look forward to
achieving still more successes and milestones in the next
25 years.

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman
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OPERATIONS REVIEW
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 7% [0l E8

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

The turnover for the Construction Division was
HK$1,116.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2015 (2014: HK$1,151.5 million). During the year, the
Construction Division secured several new building
construction contracts.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31
March 2015 was HK$1,547.1 million, of which HK$3.2
million was derived from a project under joint venture
arrangement with a joint venture partner.

Major Projects Completed

(1) Construction of proposed residential redevelopment,
The Austine Place, at No. 38 Kwun Chung Street,
Kowloon

(2) Construction of composite development at Nos. 1-21
Dundas Street, Kowloon

(3) Construction of the redevelopment at No. 23 Tong
Chong Street, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Major Projects in Progress

(1) Construction of the proposed residential and
commercial development at No. 5 Tung Yuen
Street, Yau Tong,

Kowloon

(2) Construction of
the residential
development at
N.K.I.L. No. 6493
Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong

Proposed residential development at
Road, Kowloon Tong
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Proposed residential development at No. 11 Grampian R
NEEMEBENREREERREEE

(3) Construction of the proposed hotel developments
at Nos. 15-16 Connaught Road West and Nos. 29-31
New Market Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

(4) Construction of the proposed residential
development at No. 11 Grampian Road, Kowloon

Major Project Awarded

(1) Operation and maintenance of Chai Wan public
fill barging point and Mui Wo temporary public fill
reception facility

Awards

Yau Tong Tung Yuen Street Development Project of
Hanison Contractors Limited was awarded merit prize in
the Safety Team category in Construction Industry Safety
Award Scheme 2014/2015.
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Hanison Construction Company Limited won
Environmental Merit Award in 2014 Hong Kong
Construction Environmental Award presented by Hong
Kong Construction Association to recognise contractors
that had outstanding environmental performance for the
year 2013.

In October 2014, Hanison Construction Company Limited
won Proactive Safety Contractors Award for the year
2013, organised by Hong Kong Construction Association
to recognise our safety performance.

In July 2014, Alteration and Additional Works of The
Polytechnic University of Hong Kong undertaken by
Hanison Construction Company Limited together with
Hanison Interior & Renovation Limited won Merit Award
of Best Refurbishment and Maintenance Contractor
in Occupational Safety and Health, organised by
Occupational Safety and Health Council.

Outlook

The construction industry has remained active over the
past few years, supported by both the public and private
sectors. According to the Chief Executive’'s 2015 Policy
Address, various land use reviews have identified in
total some 150 potential housing sites, most of which
may be made available for housing development in
the five years from 2014-15 to 2018-19 for providing
210,000 flats (over 70% for public housing units). On
private housing, according to the latest projection in
December 2014, the housing supply from first-hand
private residential property market for the coming three
to four years is approximately 74,000 units, the highest
on record. Specifically, the developments in Kwu Tung
North and Fanling North will be important sources of
housing and land supply, especially in terms of public
rental housing and Home Ownership Scheme flats. The
Tung Chung New Town Extension project will also directly
contribute to medium and long-term construction
demand in Hong Kong. Such strong demand is expected
to cultivate industry support that can benefit the Group’s
construction business in the next few years.
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Although opportunities for construction project works
are abundant, the major problem for the construction
sector — labour shortage and high labour cost — may
continue to create headwind for the industry. The ageing
and shrinking working population is not helping either.
In view of the situation, the Steering Committee on
Population Policy had proposed to improve relevant
training to minimise skills mismatch, and to build up
human capital with a more proactive policy and targeted
approach to attract more talent from overseas and the
Mainland. Frequent discussion had also been carried out
in regards to an effective importation of labour system
without jeopardising the interests of local workers.

Though the Group cannot be isolated from this problem,
it benefits from an established team of loyal staff which
have been with the Company for long time. The Group
values human capital as its most important asset. As such,
comprehensive training and development programs have
been in place to make sure talents in various fields can
have their potential fully utilised. In addition, the Group
annually recruits qualified graduates who are enthusiastic
about entering the industry directly from universities.
The management has long recognised the importance of
professional development opportunities especially to the
newer generations, and will continue to offer adequate
occupational support to our staff in the future.

The HKSAR Government has in recent years been
increasingly concerned about site safety and environment
conservation in respect to construction projects. The
Group has long been placing utmost importance
on work site safety, and will direct greater efforts
and resources towards ensuring a safe and healthy
working environment for our staff with the objective
of minimising accident rates. With a dedicated and
stable team of staff supporting the Group’s business
development, the management is optimistic about
realising considerable returns from the opportunities
presented in the construction market.
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INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Interior and
Renovation Division recorded a turnover of HK$491.1
million, as compared with HK$214.5 million last year. The
Interior and Renovation Division achieved a significant
increase in turnover for the year under review.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31 March
2015 was HK$367.6 million.

In March 2015, Hanison Interior and Renovation Limited
was awarded merit prize in Renovation in Construction
Industry Safety Award Scheme 2014/2015 for its
renovation works at Flora Garden.

Major Projects Completed
(1) Second year's alterations and additions term
contract for building works for The Hong Kong

Polytechnic University

(2) Spatial reorganisation works to Core FJ, 7/F of The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

(3) Renovation and repartitioning works at Un Chau
Shopping Centre for The Link Management Limited

(4) Alternations and additions works at TU4 of The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Renovation work of Ronsdale Garden at No. 25 Tai
Hang Drive, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong

(2) Renovation and alteration works at Branksome
Grande at No. 3 Tregunter Path, Hong Kong

(3) Renovation work of Flora Garden at No. 7 Chun Fai
Road, Hong Kong
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(4) Alterations, additions, repairs and improvement
(AA&I) 2012-13 Centennial Campus Consequentials
— Reorganisation of space for the Administration
& Common Area at Pao Siu Loong Building of the
University of Hong Kong

Outlook

Turnover of the Interior and Renovation Division for
the year under review and the amount of contracts on
hand as at 31 March 2015 have both increased when
compared to that of the previous financial year. Such
gains are derived from property owners’ increasing
willingness to renovate and upkeep their properties
in Hong Kong, as public awareness of the importance
of building upkeep for maintaining property value
and recognition of property safety as an owner’s legal
responsibilities are enhanced. Furthermore, with a
large number of dilapidated buildings in Hong Kong
requiring repairs, there are immense opportunities for
this business segment. According to the Development
Bureau, currently, there are 5,900 buildings aged 50
years or above in Hong Kong and the number will
increase by around 580 annually. There are also 20,000
buildings aged 30 years or above and that figure will
increase to 30,000 within a decade. In view of this, the
city must be extra vigilant; inspecting and maintaining
buildings to ensure public safety. It is worth noting
that according to the Mandatory Building Inspection
Scheme (the “MBI Scheme”) launched by the HKSAR
Government, when owners of buildings aged 30 years
or above (except domestic buildings not exceeding
three storeys) are served with statutory notices, they
must appoint a Registered Inspector to conduct the
prescribed inspection. Moreover, they must also ensure
that any prescribed repair work, whether for common
areas, external walls and projections or signboards of
the building, is properly supervised. The MBI Scheme has
consequently raised awareness among property owners
of the importance of proper repair and maintenance,
which should spur demand for services as those offered
by the Interior and Renovation Division.
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Two major renovation projects, of which the Flora
Garden project employs the mast-climbing tower
platform technology, are currently in progress and will
continue into the financial year ending 31 March 2016.
The mast-climbing tower platform is more expensive
than traditional scaffolding, but it is a much safer and
convenient form of work structure.

The Group has been able to sustain business growth
and maintain profit margins for this segment despite
increasing labour costs. Moving forward, the Group is
confident in its ability to capture a greater share in the
renovation works market, and will continue to provide
high-quality and efficient services by leveraging its well-
equipped, professional and experienced team.
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BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the turnover of
the Building Materials Division was HK$267.9 million,
compared with that of HK$257.2 million last year.

Trigon Building Materials Limited (“Trigon HK"”) and
Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works (Macau) Limited
(“Trigon Macau”) (collectively, “Trigon™)

Trigon HK and Trigon Macau are two of the subsidiaries
of the Group under the Building Materials Division,
specialising in the supply and installation of interior
products such as different types of suspended ceiling
system, metal cladding system, demountable partition
system, fire related protection system, decorative
moulding, raised flooring and wood flooring.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Renovation and repartitioning works at Un Chau
Shopping Centre for The Link Management Limited
— Supply and installation of suspended ceiling
system

(2) S.T.T.L. No. 502 proposed residential development at
Lok Wo Sha, Ma On Shan — Supply and installation
of suspended ceiling system

(3) Proposed residential development at Austin Station
— Site C at K.I.LL. No. 11126 - Supply and installation
of external suspended ceiling system

(4) West Island Line - Sai Ying Pun Station and tunnels —
Supply and installation of false ceiling

(5) Kwun Tong Line Extension - Yau Mai Tei to
Whampoa Tunnels and Ho Man Tin Station - Supply
and installation of suspended ceiling system

OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 7% [ BR
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(6) MTR XRL Project 810B — West Kowloon Terminus
Station South — Supply and installation of acoustic
ceiling panel and fire rated ceiling system

(7) Tin Shui Wai Hospital — Supply and installation of
suspended ceiling

The total amount of contracts on hand of Trigon as at 31
March 2015 amounted to HK$99.8 million.

Million Hope Industries Limited (“Million Hope
HK”) and ZEHBEZEM B (EM)BRLQT (E
#") (collectively “Million Hope")

Million Hope HK and its factory, 32, specialise in the
design, supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Million Hope is one of the authorised manufacturers of
the renowned German brand product “Schico”.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Proposed residential development of “My Home
at Tsing Luk Street, Tsing Yi,
T.Y.T.L. No. 138 — Design, supply and installation
of aluminium window, louvre, glass wall and sun
shading

Purchase Plan”

(2) Proposed residential development at No.8 Mount
Nicholson Road, The Peak, Hong Kong - Design,
supply and installation of aluminium window,
sliding door and folding door

(3) Residential development at No.18 Tong Chun
Street, Tseung Kwan O, TKOTL119, New Territories
— Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, sliding door, aluminium cladding and
curtain wall
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(4) Proposed residential development at No.62 (4 NEEESRK2FEZTERREH -
Begonia Road, Kowloon Tong — Design, supply and HBET HERZEERRES
installation of curtain wall and aluminium window

Major Projects Awarded ERNETEIRE
(1) Redevelopment of Grand Court, 109-135 Kadoorie (1) ABEMXHZRBEIEE109-13555REKE
Avenue, Homantin, Kowloon - Supply and EREE-HERZHEBMARE

installation of slide folding door and window

(2) Residential redevelopment at No.11 Grampian (2) FNEAMERFE26025AI D RERE N

Road, Kowloon N.K.I.L. 2602, S.A. & R.P. — Design, EEMEBENFERIEZERERE &
supply and installation of curtain wall and external MR ZEE R R IMEER
cladding

(3) Proposed residential redevelopment at No.31 (B) BEBA¥LTEBEGESFEZERE
Conduit Road, Mid-levels, Hong Kong - Installation B-ZHEERBAGENIEE
of curtain wall system and aluminium window

Proposed residential development at No. 62 Begonia Road, K
NEREBRE2FEREETHREEE - BEREE
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(4) Proposed residential development at TMTL 423,
Area 48, Castle Peak Road, So Kwun Wat, Tuen Mun,
N.T. — Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, louvre, grille and metal balustrade

(5) Proposed residential and commercial development
at 33 Tong Yin Street, TKOTL 125, Area 125, Area
68A1, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories — Design,
supply and installation of tower curtain wall and
podium facade

(6) Proposed residential and commercial development
— TKOTL112, Area 65C1, Tseung Kwan O, New
Territories — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium cladding, canopy, skylight and curtain
wall

The total amount of contracts on hand of Million Hope as
at 31 March 2015 amounted to HK$764.7 million.

Outlook

Demand for building materials remains strong in
Hong Kong due to a plentiful supply of long-term
infrastructure projects and private residential building
works. The sustainable demand has consequently spurred
the growth of the Group’s Building Materials Division,
especially the aluminium window supply and installing
business. Developers have shown a willingness to spend
money in premium, superior quality aluminium windows
due to the rising prices of properties.

(4)

(5)

(6)

HREFIFED BT LABASEEF it
REBAIFEFREEHREER — &Rt #
ERkZknE AR EMREERT

HAKER125E 68A 1R R th ER
F1I55NEEHBREZEERTERE
BE Rt HERZEAEEENEE
ShiE

HARBERSCIESERTHERE112
RERBAERFEREER — Rt HE
RZEREiR EE - XERER

BEEEE 5B E5764,700,0007T ©

RE

HARBEZBEARMETEETFIRNMIE
AR BEEEMBTERDAGE  LTHE
BRREMABARERZEMBBNEER <
EHERZEXBBRET BEWXER

+ 43
&

27 HRHARBHEREASHEER

mEEEES-

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 /



According to the World Bureau of Metal Statistics
("WBMS"), the commodity metals price index dropped by
21.06% from a year ago. WBMS also stated that demand
for primary aluminium in January and February 2015
reached 8.87 million tonnes, which was 919 kt more than
the first two months of 2014. Production from January to
February 2015 rose by 973 kt when compared with 2014.
The calculated market deficit for primary aluminium
from January to February 2015 was 29 kt, which follows
a deficit of 692 kt recorded for the whole year of 2014.
Overall, global production from January to February 2015
rose by 12.4% when compared with the corresponding
period of 2014. In addition, the copper market recorded
a surplus of 209 kt from January to February 2015, which
follows a surplus of 241 kt for the whole year of 2014. It
is believed one of the major reasons for such surpluses
has been the slowdown of the Mainland China property
market. As the number of development projects drops,
the demand for building materials flattens. As a result,
the aluminium price has been stabilised during these few
years.

In view of the stabilisation of aluminium price and the
quality improvement of aluminium window products by
our factory in Huizhou (Z /), we have seen significant
business growth in our aluminium window supply and
installation business during the recent years. The other
businesses, such as curtain walls and ceiling materials,
are growing steadily and heavily. The management
is confident that the Building Materials Division will
progress continuously to become one of the high profit
contributing segments of the Group.
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The Austine Place




PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

The Property Development Division recorded a turnover
of HK$422.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014: HK$233.1 million).

During the year, the Group has sold 5 workshops and
3 car parking spaces of The Bedford and 20 residential
units of The Austine Place.

For the pieces of agricultural land at Tong Yan San Tsuen
in Yuen Long, a land exchange application for residential
use was made in 2012 with the Lands Department. It is
expected that the offer of land premium will be issued
soon.

Meanwhile, a land exchange application of another
proposed residential development of the Group at D.D.
129, Lau Fau Shan in Yuen Long is also under progress of
which premium figure will be available soon.

The Austine Place — roof of 27B (Sky Austine)
The Austine Place - 27B £ZH 1t E
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For the proposed residential development project with
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited at So Kwun Wat, Tuen
Mun, planning application to the Town Planning Board
was completed in the previous financial year. A land
exchange application to convert the land to residential
use will be made with the Lands Department in due
course.

In February 2014, the Group acquired 25% interest in
a piece of land located at Sha Tin Town Lot No. 603,
Lok Lam Road, Fo Tan, New Territories which will be
developed into a low-density residential development.

LUXEAST, the Group's 49% interests in the parcel of land
situated at FEIIIEBETEXIRAER - BESHEE
Al (West of Wenyuan Road and South of Houfutinggang,
Haining, Zhejiang Province, the PRC) for the development
and construction of office, retail, carparking spaces and
other development pertaining to the land, pre-sale has
commenced in late 2012. A total of 60 BREEEA[E
(Sale and Purchase Agreement for Commodity Flat) and a
total of 17 52EEZE (Purchaser Letter) have been signed up
to the end of the reporting period.

The Bedford - chic lobby of Roppongi Hills style
The Bedford — 777K |1 B & K &
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Outlook

The residential property market in Hong Kong has picked
up since mid 2014 and the uptrend has continued into
2015. 4,329 sale and purchase agreements in respect
of residential units were completed in March 2015,
representing an increase of 37.8% as compared with
that in March 2014; total consideration for such sale
and purchase agreements in March 2015 was HK$31.8
billion, representing an increase of 54.9% as compared
with that of last year. Market demand for the residential
property continues to stay high as both interest rate and
unemployment rate in Hong Kong remain relatively low.
In general, housing demand in Hong Kong will not likely
to drop in the short term.

It is well understood that the root cause of Hong Kong'’s
housing problem has been the shortage of housing
supply, increasing supply has thus long been the HKSAR
Government’s top priority. It is believed opportunities
exist for the Group’s Property Development Division as
the HKSAR Government gradually increases land supply
including those in smaller size and encourages more
participation from smaller players in the local property
development market.

In February 2014, the Group acquired a 25% stake
in a piece of land located at Sha Tin Town Lot No.
603, Lok Lam Road, Fo Tan, New Territories for
residential development purpose. Construction works
has commenced in April 2015 and is progressing well.
In regard to the Group’s currently-selling property
development projects, sales of the remaining 26 units
of The Austine Place are underway; while it also plans
to have the remaining 10 units and 9 car parks of The
Bedford sold during the financial year ending 31 March
2016. The Group's commercial development project in
the PRC, LUXEAST, will also continue to generate income
in the coming year.

The Group has been acquiring land over the years at
relatively reasonable prices, thus sufficient land reserves
have been gathered for development in the next few
years, ensuring steady performance of the Group's
Property Development Division.
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Shatin Industrial Centre
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT DIVISION

The Property Investment Division recorded a turnover
of HK$27.3 million as compared with that of HK$28.3
million last year.

Leasing performance of Shatin Industrial Centre was
steady, attaining an occupancy rate of 83% at 31 March
2015.

On 19 March 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of CentreHollywood in
Sheung Wan in which the Group has 60% interest. The
Division will cease to receive rental income derived from
CentreHollywood upon completion of the disposal in the
financial year ending 31 March 2016.

To diversify its investment portfolio, the Group entered
into a Memorandum of Understanding on 30 March 2015
for the acquisition of a serviced apartment at High Street.
The building is conveniently located in close proximity to
Sai Ying Pun Station and will be renovated to improve
the rental income and the property value.

Other investment properties of the Group include No. 31
Wing Wo Street in Sheung Wan, some units at Kin Wing
Industrial Building in Tuen Mun, various land lots in D.D.
76 Ping Che in Fanling and various land lots in D.D. 128
Deep Bay Road in Yuen Long, all together contributed to
satisfactory income to the Group during the year. For the
land lots in D.D. 132 in Tuen Mun of which the Group has
50% interest, a large portion was resumed by the HKSAR
Government in the year while the remaining part will
continue to be leased out for income.

OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 7% [ BR

MRB/EE

V)R E B 8215 & X F08%527,300,0007T *
£ F |5 7%8%28,300,0007T

PDHIZHOWHERBEE NZZ2—1F
ZB=1+—H2EAERYESI% °

R-ZZE-—AF=A+HhA FxEEITLEEW
# L& B CentreHollywood (ANEBE A
60%fER) RO BERBE-_Z—RF=A
=St+—HLEBMBFEHERTKETBKEA
CentreHollywood E A K& ©

REREASSZ L AEER-Z-1F=
A=ZTHALHRBRTHUANE —RURS
HORBXEE - ZBFMOAERIE - B
B WHETHHUARSEESWRARDE
BfE-

REBEMIREWEBE LRKMEI15

BRRRIEAES TEM HETFELED
117655 89 % {8 1t B & 7T B R E B LB 4940128
RHZERR  ERREERAFEFTRBE
WA - P L ELND 1325 ER (AEEHEE
50% ) 2 REBHBRFARE BHFEBFE
B T ELER AR 49 S 45 4 H AR LU VU A

B AIEIZERBER AT /2014/2015 F3R /



OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 7% [ BA

Outlook

Mixed performance has been recorded for the local
property investment market. Residential rentals increased
at a slightly faster pace during the second half of 2014,
leading to a cumulative gain of 6% for the whole year,
up from that of 3% during 2013. As for commercial
properties, increases in shop and office rentals both
slowed to 4% during 2014, as against the corresponding
increases of 7% and 8% during 2013.

In 2014-2015, the HKSAR Government put up for sale
a total of five sites for commercial/industrial use and
one for hotel development, providing 180,000 square
metres of floor area and 1,100 rooms respectively.
The Government announced its 2015-2016 Land Sale
Programme will include four sites for commercial/business
use and one for hotel development, providing about
180,000 square metres of floor area and about 500
rooms respectively. Housing land supply stayed relatively
consistent, so is rental level, such trends are expected to
continue moving forward.

Following the success of the CentreHollywood project,
the Group will seek to replicate the case when looking
into future property investment opportunities. Upon
completion of the disposal of CentreHollywood, the
Group will look for other properties with potential for
both rental and property value enhancement.

The Property Investment Division’s current portfolio
includes properties of different nature. The management
will closely monitor market conditions and proactively
explore opportunities to add quality properties to enrich
the Group's portfolio.
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PROPERTY AGENCY AND MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

The turnover of the Property Agency and Management
Division for the year was HK$18.2 million (2014: HK$17.2
million).

During the year under review, the Property Agency
and Management Division continued to provide project
management services and site supervision services to the
large-scale integrated development project in Haining
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

In Hong Kong, the Property Agency and Management
Division acted as the project manager for two of the
Group's redevelopment projects, The Bedford at Nos. 91-
93 Bedford Road and The Austine Place at No. 38 Kwun
Chung Street, for a client in the redevelopment project,
The Grampian at Nos. 11-13 Grampian Road as well as
for a residential project at Sha Tin Town Lot No. 603, Lok
Lam Road, respectively.

This Division also provided property management services
to Golf Parkview in Sheung Shui, One LaSalle and Eight
College in Kowloon Tong, CentreHollywood in Sheung
Wan, The Bedford and The Austine Place.

Other services of this Division included rental collection
and leasing agency services to 8 Hart Avenue and The
Cameron in Tsim Sha Tsui and CentreHollywood in
Sheung Wan.

Outlook

The Property Agency and Management Division serves
to the Group’s property business segment by offering a
one-stop solution. The Group will continue to improve its
services platform to offer efficient and effective project
management, property management, rental collection
and leasing agency services. With their quality services,
the Property Agency and Management Division managed
to generate stable returns in this highly competitive
environment.
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HEALTH PRODUCTS DIVISION

Health Products Division of the Group has three
subsidiaries: Care & Health Limited (“Care & Health"),
Healthcorp Trading Limited (“Healthcorp”) and
Retailcorp Limited (“Retailcorp”). They are engaged in
the wholesale of Chinese and Western supplements and
running of retail chain stores respectively.

This year, the Health Products Division recorded a
turnover of HK$56.4 million as compared to HK$55.3
million last year.

Retailcorp runs the businesses of its chain stores under
the trade name of HealthPlus. As at 31 March 2015,
there are 12 retail outlets (including a HealthPlus shop
at St. Teresa’s Hospital in Kowloon) and 1 service centre
in operation. Due to substantial increase in rental by
the landlords, 2 HealthPlus shops have been closed: Tai
Po shop was closed in October 2014 and Lai Chi Kok
shop was closed in May 2015. To meet the needs of our
customers, 1 new shop located at The Austine Place has
been opened in April 2015 recently.

Health Products Division
introduced a new product
“"Health & Beauty Tonic
Powder”, which targets to enrich
blood and beauty, promote
metabolism and improve
sleeping quality for female of all
age.
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Healthcorp, Retailcorp and Care & Health all received the
Caring Company award from the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service for the 2nd, 10th and 11th consecutive year
respectively. HealthPlus has also been awarded with the
Quality Tourism Services Scheme and the No Fakes Pledge
Scheme.

As for e-Marketing and e-Commerce, a fan page on
Facebook has been developed in order to interact with
potential customers as well as improving customer
relations. e-Shops has also been established for our local
customers as well as overseas customers to purchase
our products online, saving traveling time and making
purchase in their own time.

Outlook

The Group will continue to dedicate efforts in developing
the Health Products Division in the coming year. The
e-Commerce platform for health products will also be
enhanced for attracting more customers, both local and
overseas. Although market competition is fierce, the
Group is optimistic towards the prospects of this segment
as demand continues to increase with the ageing
population and increasing health consciousness among
population of developed countries. The Group plans to
further grasp market share by focusing on distributing
products to different retail chains. Providing excellent
customer service and healthy products to members and
customers will continue to be the Group’s mission for this
division.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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SUMMARY OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$2,095.2 million, up 28.8% from
HK$1,626.5 million recorded in the previous financial
year. Consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year surged by 169.2% to HK$419.2
million (2014: HK$155.7 million). The encouraging results
were mainly due to profit derived from the sales of
our property development projects, significant gain on
change in fair value of investment properties, as well as
the satisfactory performance of our Construction, Interior
and Renovation and Building Materials Divisions during
the year.

The basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share for the year were HK78.2 cents and HK78.1 cents.
The basic earnings per share represented an increase of
169.7% as compared to HK29.0 cents last year.

As at 31 March 2015, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$1,743.6 million (2014: HK$1,348.0
million), representing an increase of 29.3% over last year.
Net asset value per share at 31 March 2015 was HK$3.25
(2014: HK$2.51).

GROUP LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group's liquidity and financing requirements are
regularly reviewed.

For day-to-day liquidity management and to maintain
flexibility in funding, the Group has access to banking
facilities with an aggregate amount of HK$1,656.0
million (HK$646.0 million was secured by first charges
over certain leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties, properties held for sale and bank deposits of
the Group), of which HK$691.3 million loans have been
drawn down and approximately HK$463.5 million has
been utilised mainly for the issuance of letters of credit
and performance bonds as at 31 March 2015. The bank
loans under these banking facilities bear interests at
prevailing market interest rates.
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The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash
balance, and endeavours to maintain its sound cash flow
generating capability, its ability to take on investments
and acquisition projects, in order to enhance shareholder
wealth. The total cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to HK$301.2 million as at 31 March 2015
(2014: HK$323.4 million), and accounted for 14.7% of the
current assets (2014: 19.6%).

During the year, the Group has a net cash outflow of
HK$79.1 million in its operating activities (mainly due
to the increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments,
retention money receivables and amounts receivable
on contract work, netting off the increase in trade and
other payables and the decrease in properties under
development for sale), a net cash inflow of HK$88.1
million in its investing activities (mainly due to proceeds
from disposal of investment properties and repayment
from joint ventures, netting off capital injection to a
joint venture and placement of pledged bank deposits),
and a net cash outflow of HK$31.2 million in its
financing activities (mainly due to dividends paid to
shareholders and repayment of bank loans, netting off
the new bank loans raised and advance from a non-
controlling shareholder). As a result, both the cash and
bank balances and the bank borrowings decreased.
Net bank borrowings (total bank borrowings less
total cash and bank balances) amounted to HK$390.1
million at 31 March 2015 (2014: net bank borrowings
of HK$375.9 million). Accordingly, the gearing ratio of
the Group, calculated on the basis of the Group’s net
bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds, was 22.4%
(2014: 27.9%). The net current assets have increased by
HK$101.2 million to HK$438.3 million as at the year-
end date and the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was 1.27 times (2014: 1.26 times).

With its cash holdings and available banking facilities,
the Group’s liquidity position will remain healthy in
the coming year, with sufficient financial resources to
meet its obligations, operation and future development
requirements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW 87 7% 3] B8

AEEREEHERSARBETEERRR
WHNEBAEE 2 EBRASELRED K&
EZ2HEKREMKIBIER 2880 URFARRE
E-R-ZE-ARFE=A=+—H FEEZHE
S RIBITEERHEEE A B 301,200,000t (=
T — [0 : j8%323,400,0007T) @ W REBE
E14.7% (ZZF—MF 1 19.6%) °

FR-AEELEEER2FEESREABY
79,100,000 (FEZEHRNEWRIEBE - RERTE
RE BRRESRERENIRRELFH
KHEEAREREMEMRELARERS
ZEHEEVMETHMEY) REEKFRERA
A 7B%88,100,000T (EEHNHEERENE
FIEREREECEBENIRHESELEITIER
FREBBRITERAN)  UREEEKF
BE7RHB8E%31,200,000T (FERAREX
HREFRRRFERTEIKHIIGRITE
MR ERBRRERAE) - At BERIIRIT
HEERRBERITERIIRL RITHEEFEHE (4R
TEERARESRRITERI N - —HF=
B =+—H#%38%390,100,0007T (=& — Y
FRITEEFEEABY375,900,0007T) © H
I AEBzEEEELE (REXAEBEE
FHEORRESZLHFE) B24% (=ZF
— P 127.9%) c R FHE B REBEEFEIEM
7 %£101,200,0007T £ 7 %£438,300,0007T » 7t
B E (RBEERUABAR) £1.275 (=
T—[9F :1.26fF) ©

RFERERAHBHZRITHERRE X
SEEZRBETHRRARFFERFR AR -
BRERRMBERUBMEEAE EBRAK
BRRFE-

B AIEIZERBEMR AT /2014/2015 F3R /



FINANCIAL REVIEW 87 7% 5] B8

TREASURY POLICY

The aim of the Group’s treasury policy is to minimise its
exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to
engage in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative
products. Treasury transactions unrelated to underlying
financial exposure are not undertaken. Foreign currency
exposures of the Group arise mainly from the purchase
of goods. The Group will determine if any hedging is
required, on an individual basis, depending upon the size
and nature of the exposure, and the prevailing market
circumstances.

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds
with maximum benefit, to achieve better risk control, and
to minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities
are centralised and scrutinised by the top management.

The surplus cash which is generally placed with reputable
financial institutions is mostly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar. Most of the income, expenses, assets
and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group therefore does not have any
significant exposure to gains or losses arising from the
movement of foreign currency exchange rate against the
Hong Kong dollar.

SHAREHOLDERS’' FUNDS

At the year-end date, shareholders’ funds of the Group
were HK$1,743.6 million including reserves of HK$1,689.9
million, an increase of HK$395.5 million from HK$1,294.4
million at 31 March 2014. On that basis, the consolidated
net asset value of the Group as at 31 March 2015 was
HK$3.25 per share, compared to the consolidated net
asset value of HK$2.51 per share as at 31 March 2014. The
increase in shareholders’ funds was mainly attributable to
profits retained after the payments of dividends during
the year.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group intends to keep an appropriate mix of
equity and debt to ensure an efficient capital structure
over time. During the year under review, the Group
has borrowed Hong Kong dollar loans amounting to
HK$691.3 million from the banks (at 31 March 2014:
HK$699.3 million). The borrowings have been used as
general working capital for financing the properties for
development and investment purposes over the years.
The maturity profile of the loans spread over a period
of five years with HK$646.6 million repayable within the
first year, HK$19.7 million repayable within the second
year, HK$25.0 million repayable within the third to fifth
years. Bank loans that are repayable more than one
year after the end of the reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause with carrying amount of
HK$44.7 million have been classified as current liabilities.
Interest is based on HIBOR plus a competitive margin.

COLLATERAL

As at 31 March 2015, certain leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties, properties held for sale
of the Group, at the carrying value of approximately
HK$1,231.5 million (at 31 March 2014: HK$1,153.6
million), were pledged to the banks to secure the Hong
Kong dollar loans of HK$361.3 million (at 31 March 2014:
HK$446.3 million). In addition, bank deposits of HK$83.7
million (at 31 March 2014: HK$49.8 million) were pledged
for bank loans granted to one of the Group’s joint
ventures in the PRC.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in
respect of allegations of copyright infringement and
defamation have been taken against certain subsidiaries
of the Company carrying on health products business.
No further steps have been taken against the Group
in respect of such actions after the court hearing for
directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements since 2004. At 31 March 2015, the directors
are of the opinion that in view of the uncertainty, it is
not practicable to assess the financial effect.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has provided a corporate
guarantee to a bank to secure banking facilities granted
to a joint venture of approximately HK$27,100,000,
which represents the Group’s proportionate share of
the banking facilities utilised as at 31 March 2015.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair values of these financial guarantee contracts are
insignificant at initial recognition and no provision for
financial guarantee contracts has been made at the end
of the reporting period as the directors of the Company
consider that the possibility of default of the parties
involved is remote.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments:
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In addition, the Group had also committed with another
joint venturer to contribute the joint venture by means of
shareholder’s loan proportioned to its equity interest in
the joint venture to finance the expenditure of property
under development if called.

Authorised but not contracted for

As at the end of both reporting periods, the Group had
committed with an independent third party to contribute
HK$231,500,000, representing 23.63% of the anticipated
project costs for the joint development of a site in So
Kwun Wat, Hong Kong.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group is implementing a manpower policy that
aims to maximise the output of existing staff resources
in order to achieve productivity gains. We believe that
through improving our staff's job-related competencies,
our overall operational efficiency can be improved
without the need for substantial increase in headcount.

The number of full time monthly employees of the
Group, excluding its joint ventures, was around 765 (of
which 167 employees were in Mainland China) as at 31
March 2015. In addition to salary payment, other benefits
include provident fund schemes, discretionary bonuses,
on-the-job training, education sponsorship subsidies,
a medical insurance scheme, a group life and personal
accident insurance scheme.

Employees and directors are remunerated according
to individual and the Group’s performance, industry
trends, prevailing market conditions, the nature of the
job and value creation. The Group recruits and promotes
individuals based on their development potential, merits
and competencies, and ensures that their remuneration
packages are at a reasonable market level. All directors,
full time employees and consultants of the Group are
entitled to participate in the share option scheme of the
Company. The principal terms of the share option scheme
are summarised in the Report of the Directors.
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Good corporate governance practices are crucial to  HITERMEEESR HESKRENEERR
enhancing shareholder value. With this in mind, the EEZf-Eit  AATNESHHHHIZEL
directors of the Company are keen on maintaining high  BEEARZKFE REFAE—ESLEEZNES
standards of corporate governance. This is reflected in & ([EEg]) ERZFHERBEMEF IR
terms of a quality Board of Directors (“Board”) and the BRI

emphasis on transparency and accountability.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Company has complied with all the Code Provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviations set out below in respect of which remedial
steps for compliance have been taken or considered
reasons are given below:

(a)

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-
executive directors (including the independent
non-executive directors) of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term. However, pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company
amended on 2 August 2005, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the directors,
including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors shall retire from office by
rotation, and every director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the corporate
governance practices of the Company are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.
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(b)

(o]

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr.
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Dr. Lam Chat Yu, non-
executive directors of the Company, were unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 26 August 2014 as they had other important
business engagements. Details of the directors’
attendance record of meetings are set out in the
“Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members” section of this annual report. To ensure
compliance with the CG Code, the Company has
taken and will continue to take all reasonable
measures to arrange the schedule in such a cautious
way that all directors can attend the general
meeting(s).

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates
that the Chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 26 August 2014 as he had other important
business engagement. However, the Managing
Director, present at the annual general meeting,
took the chair of that meeting in accordance with
Article 78 of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

(b)

(9
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
and assumes responsibility for strategy formulation,
corporate governance and performance monitoring. It
develops and reviews the Group's strategies and policies,
formulates business plans and evaluates performance
of the operating divisions against agreed budgets
and targets through regular discussion on key and
appropriate issues in a timely manner. It also exercises
a number of reserved powers, including (i) approval of
annual and interim results and significant changes in
accounting policy or capital structure, internal control
system, material transactions (in particular those which
may involve conflict of interests), major capital projects;
(ii) setting the Group’s remuneration policy, dividend
policy; (iii) appointment of directors; and (iv) supervision
of management and other significant financial and
operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the
Managing Director and the senior management, who
fulfill their duties within their scope of authority and
responsibility. Divisional heads are responsible for
different aspects of the businesses. Major functions
delegated to management include preparation of annual
and interim results, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of an
adequate internal control system and compliance with
the relevant statutory requirements.
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All directors are kept informed of major changes that
may affect the Group’s businesses on a timely basis, and
can avail themselves of the advice and services of the
Company Secretary so that the Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
director can have recourse to independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision
making. The biographies of the directors (and their
relationships, if any) are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
of this annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of

skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors, representing at least one-third of the
Board. Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Dr. Lam Chat Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Coming from diverse business and professional
backgrounds,
independent non-executive directors bring a wealth of
expertise and experience to the Board, which contributes
to the success of the Group. Through active participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees,
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

the non-executive directors and

all of them make various

All independent non-executive directors are free from
any business or other relationships with the Company.
The Company has received written annual confirmation
of independence from each independent non-executive
director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive directors
are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman of the Company)
indirectly owns as to 50% interest and Mr. Wong Sue Toa,
Stewart (Managing Director of the Company) together
with Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai (spouse of Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart) indirectly owned as to an aggregate of the
remaining 50% interest in Queentex Industries Limited
and its subsidiaries. If in case a conflict of interest arises,
those directors or any of their close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) who have a material interest will
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution(s).

Save for the information (including the relationships,
if any, among the directors) as disclosed in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report and the
business relationship between the Chairman and the
Managing Director as disclosed above, there is no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among the directors and between the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

Board Diversity

A board diversity policy (the “Policy”) was adopted on 26
March 2013 by the Board and the Nomination Committee
will review at least annually whether board diversity can
be achieved. A summary of the Policy is set out below:

When reviewing board diversity, the Nomination
Committee will consider board diversity from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, which form the measureable objectives of the
Policy. The Nomination Committee will also monitor the
implementation of the Policy and review and recommend
revisions of the Policy to the Board to ensure its
effectiveness.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
20 March 2012 to deal with matters in relation to the
appointment and re-election of directors.
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Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will identify suitable individuals by making
reference to criteria including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length
of service and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. New directors
are sought mainly through referrals or internal
promotion.

The Company’s circular sent together with this annual
report contains detailed information of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director
are held by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart respectively. The Board has adopted a set
of written terms setting out the roles and duties of the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

The Chairman provides leadership for the effective
functioning of the Board in the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. With the support of
the Managing Director and senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’'s day-to-day
management and operations. The Managing Director
is also responsible for formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.
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Directors’ Induction and Development

Every newly appointed director is provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure
that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company'’s operations and businesses as well as his/
her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company Secretary from time
to time provides the directors with updates on latest
development and changes to the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements. During the
year ended 31 March 2015, all directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. A summary of training
received by the directors is as follows:

ESABBIREE
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Training Areas

EHEE
Accounting/
Corporate financial/
governance/ management
updates on laws, or other
rules & regulations professional skills
EER RE- g5t MK
SR IDSE SR EEHHEAM
BRHE BHEREE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FHELRE (BEFHELE) v v
(Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)  Bitt=54 (#E4FHE) v v
Non-executive Directors FHITESE
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson BERMBRYE (£/EF) v v
(Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson EMEELE v v
Dr. Lam Chat Yu MEFHEL v/ v
Independent Non-executive BYKHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe BRIRE S v v
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2| 7rfE+ v v/
Dr. Sun Tai Lun BRAmiEL v v
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the guideline for securities transactions by directors and
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2015. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the employees was noted by the Company.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, namely Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, is also
the Financial Controller of the Company. He has the day-
to-day knowledge of the affairs of the Company.

The Company Secretary plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that the Board policies
and procedures are duly followed. He also acts as the
secretary of the Board committees to ensure that all
records of meeting proceedings, discussion and decision
of such Board committees are properly kept. The
Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
Secretary has completed at least 15 hours’ professional
training by attending the continuing professional
development programmes as well as seminars covering
regulatory updates and professional knowledge about
company secretary duties organised by professional
bodies.

All directors could have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations,
are followed.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES
Board Proceedings

The Board held four regular meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2015 and the principal businesses
transacted include:

e Assessing business performance and planning future
business directions;

J Approving interim and final results and reports;

° Approving business acquisition and property
transactions;

J Approving the re-appointment of directors who
are subject to retirement from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company;

o Determining director’'s fee of non-executive
directors and payment of dividend; and

e Approving the continuing connected transactions.

Meeting schedules are normally made available to the
directors in advance. Notices of regular Board meetings
are given to all the directors at least 14 days before the
meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all the directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each director also have separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever necessary.
The directors receive a regular supply of information
about the business activities, financial highlights and
operations review so that they are well informed prior to
participation in Board meetings.
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The Financial Controller attended all regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

According to current Board practice, any transaction with
a material amount will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have a material
interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has been
established since December 2001. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors
and Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a partner or former partner of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s existing external
auditors. Members of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter (Chairman)*
Mr. Chan Pak Joe*

Dr. Sun Tai Lun*

# Independent Non-executive Director
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The major duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

e  Reviewing the financial statements and reports and
considering any significant or unusual items raised
by the qualified accountant or external auditors
before submission to the Board;

o Making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors, approving their remuneration
and terms of engagement and reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity;

o Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures;

o Reviewing the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices; and

e  Reporting to the Board on the matters in the CG
Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
and the major works performed are as follows:

e Reviewing and recommending for the Board’s
approval the financial results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2014 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2014;

o Reviewing the continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014;

J Recommending to the Board of the re-appointment
of external auditors for the year ended 31 March
2015; and
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e  Reviewing certain aspects of the internal control
system of the Group.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended
31 March 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 20 March 2012. Members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

Mr. Chan Pak Joe (Chairman)*
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter*

Dr. Sun Tai Lun*

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

# Independent Non-executive Director

The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

° Reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

J Identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship;

J Assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company;
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o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the Chairman and the
Managing Director; and

J Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year and the major works performed are as follows:

o Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

J Assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

o Reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the re-appointment of directors who are
subject to retirement from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in
December 2004 which replaced the Bonus Committee
established in December 2001. Members of the
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Chairman)*
Mr. Chan Pak Joe*

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter*

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

# Independent Non-executive Director
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The major duties of the Remuneration Committee
include the following:

e Formulating remuneration policy and practices and
determining the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management; and

o Ensuring that no director or any of his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as key
economic indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and
staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings
during the year and the major works performed are as
following:

J Reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the emoluments of the non-executive
directors of the Company;

o Reviewing and determining the change of
remuneration packages for the executive directors,
senior management and other employees of the
Group for the year commencing 1 April 2015; and

J Approving the maximum bonus pool and the actual
bonus amount to be distributed to the executive
directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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Other Board Committees

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, the Board also established
two board committees in April 2002 to handle the
Company’s general business and acquisition/disposal
of property within a designated threshold respectively,
namely the General Business Committee and the Property
Acquisition/Disposal Committee. The composition of two
committees is all the executive directors of the Company.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the General
Business Committee approved the transfer of shares by
way of written resolutions.

Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members

The individual attendance record of each director at
Board meetings and general meeting(s) during the year
ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

HitEEZES

EETERTHETERZES REZEENRF
MEESSREREN TR-ZFZ2-FHAK
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2014
Annual General
Board' Meeting?
—E—-mF
Name of Directors EENA EEg BRRBE KRG
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)* EWMBLELE (£FE)* 4/4 0/1
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FHEEE (EFLLE)
(Managing Director) 4/4 11
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) Bttt St (HHLE) 4/4 il
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson* BB E* 3/4 0/1
Mr. Chan Pak Joe* BRAB 1 e 4/4 171
Dr. Lam Chat Yu* MEFEL 3/4 0/1
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter* 2T RiE L 4/4 11
Dr. Sun Tai Lun* BAmiEL 4/4 171

* Non-executive Director
# Independent Non-executive Director

* FHMTES
o OBNFHITES
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The individual attendance record of each member at
committee meetings during the year ended 31 March
2015 is set out below:

E_E-AF=ZA=+—HLEE  BARK
EHFZESEENHELRIINT

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee® Committee* Committee’

Name of Directors BEEKS EREZEEE REEZE® FHEEES
Mr. Chan Pak Joe* BRAFE 4 2/2 11 3/3
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter* EIRS A 2/2 il 3/3
Dr. Sun Tai Lun* BRRfmEL 22 11 3/3
Mr. Tai Sai Ho Htt=k4E N/A 78 Fs 171 3/3
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FiEx4E N/A T8 Fe 1 3/3

# Independent Non-executive Director
Notes:
! During the year, 4 regular Board meetings were held.

2 The annual general meeting was held on 26 August 2014.

3 Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter was the Chairman of the Audit

Committee.

4 Mr. Chan Pak Joe was the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

5 Dr. Sun Tai Lun was the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

6 Neither Mr. Tai Sai Ho nor Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
were members of the Audit Committee.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Financing Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements. In preparing the financial
statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies have
been applied, and reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates have been made.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors
on the financial statements of the Company are set out
in the “Independent Auditor's Report” section of this
annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets, to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and to ensure the quality and timely
preparation of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance
structure with clear lines of responsibility and
appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management, who are accountable for
the conduct and performance of the respective business
divisions under their supervision.

The directors review monthly management reports on
the financial results, statistics and project progress of
each business division. Monthly management meetings
are held to review business performance against budgets,
forecasts and risk management strategies. Any major
variances are highlighted for investigation and control
purposes.
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A centralised cash management system is maintained to
oversee the Group's investment and borrowing activities.
There are established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. The aim is to keep
the expenditure level in line with the annual budget
and within the cost budget of an approved project.
Expenditures are subject to overall budget control with
various approval levels set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each manager and officer. Depending
on the nature and value, procurement of certain goods
and services are required to go through the tendering
process. No individual in the Group, irrespective of their
rank and position, are allowed to dominate the entire
expenditure process from commitment to payment.

During the year under review, the Board confirmed
that there were no significant weaknesses and areas
for improvement have been identified and appropriate
measures taken.

Auditors’ Remuneration
The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the

Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out
below:
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are
available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice of
meeting, the annual report and the circular containing
information on the proposed resolutions will be sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before
the meeting. Voting at annual general meeting or other
general meeting will be conducted by way of a poll.
The results of the poll will be published on the day of
shareholders’ meeting by posting on both the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

General meetings shall be convened:

(@) on the written requisition of any two members of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin
Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin,
Hong Kong), specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company; or

(b) on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee) deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block
B, Shatin Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit,
Shatin, Hong Kong), specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
the meeting may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for Nomination of Director

Any shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a director at general meeting, the
following documents must be validly served on the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal office in
Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong) within the
period commencing on the day after despatch of the
notice of a general meeting appointed for election of
director and ending no later than 7 days prior to the date
of such meeting:

(i) notice in writing signed by the shareholder of his/
her intention to propose such person for election
(the “Nominated Candidate”);

(ii) notice in writing signed by the Nominated
Candidate of his/her willingness to be elected; and

(iii) the biographical details of the Nominated
Candidate as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules for publication by the Company.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, an ordinary resolution in relation to
the increase in authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$80,000,000 to HK$120,000,000 by the creation
of an additional 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each was passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26 August 2014. The memorandum
and articles of association of the Company was therefore
amended by such ordinary resolution. Save as aforesaid,
there is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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Communication with the Board

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may communicate
with the Board by addressing their enquiries and
concerns to the Company Secretary through the
following channels:

By mail

Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
Attention: Company Secretary

Unit 1, 4/F, Block B,

Shatin Industrial Centre,

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit,

Shatin, Hong Kong

By email
info@hanison.com

By telephone/fax
Tel: (852) 2414 3889
Fax: (852) 2490 3341

To promote effective communication, the Company
also maintains a website at www.hanison.com, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations,
information and other information are posted.
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The Directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures are set out in notes 46, 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 108.

An interim dividend of HK2.1 cents per share amounting
to HK$11,263,000 were paid to the shareholders during
the year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.4 cents per share for the year ended 31
March 2015 amounting to not less than HK$18,234,000 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on 3 September 2015. The proposed dividend
will be paid on 16 September 2015 following approval at
the annual general meeting.

The Board has also recommended a bonus issue (“Bonus
Issue”) of shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital of the
Company (“Bonus Share(s)”) on the basis of 1 Bonus
Share, credited as fully paid, for every 4 existing shares
held by the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on 3 September
2015. The Bonus Issue is conditional upon shareholders’
approval at the annual general meeting, the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) granting listing of, and permission
to deal in, the Bonus Shares and compliance with the
relevant legal procedures and requirement (if any) under
the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the articles
of association of the Company to effect the Bonus Issue.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the
investment properties of the Group are set out in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserve
of the Group are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 112.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 March 2015 comprised the
aggregate of share premium and retained profits of
HK$337,577,000 (2014: HK$336,739,000).

Under the Articles of Association of the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserves
set aside from profits which the directors of the Company
determine is no longer needed. With the sanction of an
ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account subject to a solvency
test as set out in section 34 of the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was
adopted on 3 January 2002 and was terminated on 21
September 2011. Pursuant to the Company’s new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted and
became effective on 21 September 2011, all directors
(including independent non-executive directors), full-
time employees and consultants of the Company, its
subsidiaries and/or its associated companies/associates are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants
who have been granted options under the Scheme
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the
Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

(a) Maximum number of shares available for
issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme. A total of 48,755,967 shares of the
Company is available for issue under the Scheme
which represents 10% of issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of adoption of the Scheme
and represents 9.07% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.
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(b) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(1

)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the Scheme
or any other share option schemes adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue unless otherwise approved by
shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in
any 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant in excess of
HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company
who are not connected persons of the
Company as defined in the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.

(b) B2HEZBRERFELR
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(9)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option
is granted or such shorter period as the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof may
specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board
of Directors or the relevant committee thereof
must specify the minimum period(s) (if any) and
achievement of performance target(s) (if any), for
which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in whole or in part.

Period open for acceptance of an option

The offer of grant of an option (of which the
date of grant must be a business day of the Stock
Exchange) must be accepted within 14 days after
the date of grant.

Amount payable upon acceptance of the
Option

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.
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(g) Basis of determining exercise price of the
Option

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than
the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days of the Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

(h) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on
20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

At 31 March 2015, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme was 28,776,000,
representing 5.4% of the shares of the Company in issue
at that date.
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No share option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme during the year.
Details of the movement of share options during the year
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RAFEETEBRERET S ARTETHE
AHERAR RAFEBREZEHRN -
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and the outstanding share options as at 31 March 2015  BREFBOT:
under the Scheme were as follows:
Cancelled/
Category or Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance
name of price per as at during during during as at
participants Date of grant share  Exercise period 1.4.2014 the year' the year the year 31.3.2015
® R®
—B-lIF ZE-IF
mA-A2 REFE REAEE =ZA=1+-H
SREFRGME R AH BRITHE SEEE % REFERL BAfE  H#/XX &S
Directors of the Company
RRARZES
Cha Mou Sing, Payson 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 5,360,000 - - 5,360,000
25.11.2019
g —E-mE B#13vT  ZE-WE+-A
+-A —t+RAZE=E
—+XH —“hE+-A
—+EA
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 5,360,000 - - 5,360,000
25.11.2019
IR —E-mE B#¥13vT  —E-EE+-A
+-A —t+RAE=E
—+XH —hE+-A
—+EA
Tai Sai Ho 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 2,680,000 - - 2,680,000
25.11.2019
HttE —E-mE B#13vT  —E-NE+-A
+-A —+RAE=E
—txA —-hE+-A
—+EA
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 2,680,000 - - 2,680,000
25.11.2019
BRE —E-mE B¥13BT —E-WET-A
+-A —t+RAE=E
—+XH —-hE+-A
—+EA
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Cancelled/
Category or Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance
name of price per as at during during during as at
participants Date of grant share  Exercise period 1.4.2014 the year' the year the year 31.3.2015
® R®
—B-mF ZE-IF
mA-B2 REFE REAEE =ZA=1+-H
SHEERRGHE REBH BRITEE TEEH 8% REFERL B HE#/XX% B
Chan Pak Joe 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 536,000 - - 536,000
25.11.2019
miafk —E-mE B#¥13¥T  ZE-NE+-A
+-A ZtTXRBECZE
—txA —hE+-A
—t+iA
Lam Chat Yu 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 536,000 - - 536,000
25.11.2019
WEE “g-mE BT SR-MET-A
+—A —+XAZZ%
—txA —-hE+-A
—t+iA
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 412,000 - - 412,000
25.11.2019
2712 —Z-mE B#13BT —E-WET-A
+—A “+XAZZ%
—txA —hE+-A
—t+iA
Sun Tai Lun 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 536,000 - - 536,000
25.11.2019
YN —EZ-mE B#13BT —E-WET-A
+-A Z+XRBEZE
—txA —-hE+-A
—t+iA
- 18,100,000 18,100,000
Employees of the Group 26.11.2014 HK$1.35  26.11.2014 to - 10,676,000 - - 10,676,000
25.11.2019
rEEZESR —Z-mE #1305 ZE-OF+-A
+-A “tRBEZZ
A= -NEt+-A
—taR
- 28,776,000 - - 28,776,000
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Notes:

1. (@) The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date of grant was HK$1.35
per share.

(b) The details of the value of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2015 and the
accounting policy adopted for the share options
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no
outstanding convertible securities, warrants or similar
rights as at 31 March 2015 and there has been no issue or
exercise of any convertible securities, warrants or similar
rights during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
Dr. Lam Chat Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun
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In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Payson Cha, Mr. Johnson Cha and Mr.
Stewart Wong shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. All remaining directors
of the Company continue in office.

The term of office of each independent non-executive
director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements. For the
year ended 31 March 2015, the emoluments of the
senior management, whose biographical details are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report and
include three of the five highest paid individuals analysis
presented in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, fell within the following bands:

BEAQA2HASBERMARFMRARE &
BELLE ERBERERIHBEERREE
BT CRFBEFARE LHERT MKEHF
BERTESEREX -MEAQRARTES
HHEER -

ERUFNTES AN REAQAZARE
BRARNRE REZEAWERMEIRL

REERTZBRREBFAS LEREZEER
ZES BEERNQNFNEEMHERRRT Z
TABHAEER-FRERNVEE CEERE
BRIM 2B TR IEZBRBEEH -

ESRATHS

ERESM e 2HBEHINGEETBRERMETE
NR-BE-_ZE-—AF=A=+—HLEE 5
REBRE FM (HERFBEANANERIE
EREREEERERE ETEENRGEME
REMEREBNEERSFALTINAN
=FBAD)FIATAR :

Number of Individuals

A"
Emoluments of Senior Management by Bands 2015 2014
BREERE zHMAR —E—RF —E—maE
HK$500,000 — HK$ 1,000,000 7 #£500,000T — & %£1,000,000T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 7 %1,000,0017T — &% 1,500,000T 3 4
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7#£1,500,0017T — & #2,000,0007T 4 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 712,000,001 7T — #&%2,500,000T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 72,500,001 — & %3,000,000T 1 1
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 72, is the chairman and
non-executive director of the Company. He joined the
Group in 1989 and has extensive experience in property
development. He is the chairman and executive director
of HKR International Limited (“HKRI”). Mr. Cha is an
independent non-executive director of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWDCL"), Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited (the Manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”)) and Hongkong
International Theme Parks Limited (owner and operator
of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort), and a director of a
number of public and private companies in Hong Kong
and overseas. HKRI, NWDCL and CREIT are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Cha holds an honorary doctorate degree
of Social Science from City University of Hong Kong. He
is a Justice of the Peace. He is a member of One Country
Two Systems Research Institute, a governing board
member of China-United States Exchange Foundation, a
board member of the Real Estate Developers Association
of Hong Kong, the chairman of Qiu Shi Science &
Technologies Foundation, a trustee of Sang Ma Trust
Fund and an honorary trustee of Oregon State University
Foundation. He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Daid,
Johnson who is a non-executive director of the Company.
Mr. Cha is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"”) and
the executive chairman and CEO of Mingly Corporation, a
company under the control of members of Cha Family.
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Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 69, joined the Group
in 1989 and is the managing director of the Company.
Before he joined the Group, he was a director for several
listed companies and a director of HKRI (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange) until his resignation in
December 2001. Mr. Wong is also a director of all the
subsidiaries of the Group. He has extensive experience
in the construction and real estate fields. Mr. Wong
holds a bachelor degree in science from San Diego
State University and a master degree of science in civil
engineering from Carnegie-Mellon University in the
United States of America. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 63, was appointed
as a non-executive director in November 2001. He is a
non-executive director of HKRI (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange) and a director of Mingly Corporation (a
company under the control of members of Cha Family).
Mr. Cha is also an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited and a non-executive
director of China International Capital Corporation
Limited. Mr. Cha is active in many non-profit making
organizations including serving on the Council, Finance
Committee (2007-2015) and Investment Sub-Committee
(2006-2015) of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson who is the non-
executive chairman of the Company.

Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
November 2001. Mr. Chan has been an executive director
of The Luk Hoi Tong Company Limited since 1973. Mr.
Chan is the founder of the “Li Zhi Bursary” of Tsinghua
University in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). He
is also the Vice-Chairman of “Love Relay Grant-in-Aid”
of Fudan University in the PRC since September 2005. His
community services include having served as a director of
YMCA and as a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Society.

FHBRE ST AR AARNESLELE R
—WARNEMAEREE - NAREB Z AT > #
BAZBE LT ARCZES FARTATBEE
(REERFFLE™) 2EE BEERN-ZTZ—F
T ABANERE  EEETAREEREMH
BRARAZEE REREREHER ZKRE
Eo I AnESEEREMEFIMLAERE
B+ By [ £ Carnegie-Mellon University
TAIEREEETEN FATBEEMES
288

ERBEE NT=ZB R=ZZTFT—F+—A8
BZAERAIHTES -RABBEE (BB
FrEm) 2k BTEERBEHIEEEZEREBRA
A (—EHBERREREEHNAR) 2ES
BREET A LEBEERTERA R ZBEILIEH
TEERTHEHERSRERARAZHHITE
B ERETFERFELFMBNIIE BIER
BRBEBPNRERESR  BEEZEE(2007-
2015) R IE /N EZEEE(2006-2015) e E L 4E
AERBAE R ERBLEEARLTN
FHITER -

RAERE NTm R-ZBE-F+—-A8
BEZERARABUFATES -MMAELER
—NE=FREERSBEERATAZHITE
E-REERPEARKANBI(THE]FE
REBEBES | Z2RAIPA KEFBE-FF
EFENAERTEEEXRZ[ELENIPER
TIZASRIESER R2HERBEESH
FHELBEHEFECEST YBABEBREE
HEFHESEREREEE RS-

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 /



Dr. Lam Chat Yu, aged 63, joined the Group in November
2001 and was re-designated as a non-executive director
on 27 August 2013. He has extensive investment
experience in the technology sector, including 15 years
in Silicon Valley, California, the United States of America
and over 16 years in Asia. Dr. Lam is also a non-executive
director of Mingly Corporation (a company under the
control of members of Cha Family) and an alternate
director of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited for Mr.
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson. Dr. Lam earned his doctorate
in management from The Sloan School,
Institute of Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Dr.
Lam was a Vice President at C.M. Capital Corporation
in the United States of America, where he specialised
in software venture companies and listed technology
companies in the United States of America.

Massachusetts

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
in September 2004. Dr. Lau is an Associate Professor of
the Department of Accountancy and Law of the Hong
Kong Baptist University and an Associate Dean and BBA
(Hons) Program Director of the School of Business of
the Hong Kong Baptist University. He holds a bachelor
degree in commerce from Saint Mary’s University in
Canada, a master degree in business administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a doctorate degree
of philosophy in accounting from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario (CPA, CA) in Canada,
a member of The Certified Management Accountants
Society of British Columbia and Yukon (CMA) in Canada,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (FCPA), and an associate member of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (ATIHK). He was also
a president (1992-1993) of the City Lions Club of Hong
Kong.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEa@ Wt =

MEFEL XT=Z5 BR=ZZE—F+—
BMAREBIR-—ZE—=F\A=-1+tHH
ERIPTES - REMKAZRESEER
L BETEFEZEMAEREEMNYAR
BRI ARFEDMNZBRELR MBLTAR
HEBEZERERAR (—RBHERRKEREE
FINAT) ZHBITEER LEHERTAER
AFPERES (BREBRELEE) - MBLE
Z B & E TE PR The Sloan School N5 & E
BETEN - MALAEER MELTBEEER
C.M. Capital Corporationg/# %, EFIRE R
ZEZHHEERAIRLEMRIE AT

ArREL At m R=ZEETNFLAR
ZEARPABUHHATES -LBFELRES
BEEABEFREZRBBEREEBEEK
ETHEEERAIGERIBERELTRE
FAF - HIFE INE K Saint Mary's University 2
EEE+Z K Z KDalhousie University
ZIBEEBITEN INREBRXKREE
REgt2tEgtEan -2t AMERX
The Chartered Professional Accountants
of OntarioKkThe Certified Management
Accountants Society of British Columbia
and YukonZ &8 TAEBETMAGER
EENEBRKEEEE - HAGSEEBHST
WFEER(1992-1993) °

B AIEIZERBEMR AT /2014/2015 F3R /



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS =&t =

Dr. Sun Tai Lun, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
in November 2001. Dr. Sun is the chairman of China-
Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited, whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an
independent non-executive director of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, until 1 June 2013. Dr. Sun has extensive
experience in the photographic products industry.
He holds a bachelor degree in pharmacy from the
University of Oklahoma, the United States of America,
and a doctorate degree of philosophy in business
administration from Southern California University for
Professional Studies, the United States of America. He is
the Vice Patron of the Community Chest of Hong Kong
since 1999, the Court member of City University of Hong
Kong, the Honorary Fellow of City University of Hong
Kong and Chapter Honoree of City University of Hong
Kong Chapter of Beta Gamma Sigma. Dr. Sun also serves
as the chairman of the Advisory Committee on Travel
Agents. Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
1999 and appointed as The Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 63, is an executive director and
the general manager of the Group. Mr. Tai joined the
Group in 1989 and has extensive experience in public
and private sectors of the building and civil engineering
industries in Hong Kong. He is also a director of all the
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tai holds a master degree
in business administration from Asia International Open
University in Macau, a master degree in construction
management from University of New South Wales in
Australia and a bachelor degree in civil engineering from
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. Mr. Tai is a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors (FHKIoD)
and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers
(FHKICM).
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Senior Management

Mr. Au Yiu Man, aged 54, joined the Group in 1990. He
is a director of the Interior and Renovation Division of
the Group and has extensive experience in the building
industry in Hong Kong. He holds a higher diploma in civil
engineering (municipal) and endorsement certificate in
design of reinforced concrete & steel structures from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Cheung Hok Chuen, aged 45, joined the Group in
1999. He was appointed as a director of the Building
Materials Division of the Group on 1 October 2010 and
is currently a director of the Construction Division of
the Group. Mr. Cheung has comprehensive experience
in the building industry in Hong Kong. He holds a BSc in
surveying from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chow Ka Fung, Matthew, aged 46, joined the
Group in 1998. He is a director of certain divisions of
the Group and oversees the Property Development
Division, Property Investment Division as well as
Property Agency and Management Division. Mr. Chow
specialises in property development, investment,
marketing, management and project management in
Hong Kong and the PRC. He holds a bachelor degree
in land management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Chow is a Registered Professional Surveyor
(General Practice) under the Surveyor Registration Board
(RPS). He is also a member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).
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Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 64, joined the Group in 1989.
He is a director of the Construction Division, Building
Materials Division and Interior and Renovation Division
of the Group. Mr. Chuk has extensive experience in
planning, estimating, tendering and quantity surveying
in the public and private sectors of the building and civil
engineering industries in Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor
degree in civil engineering and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Ms. Chung Lai Ling MaryAnne, aged 53, joined the Group
in 2006. She is a director of the Health Products Division
of the Group and has broad experience in various
capacities in Hong Kong. She holds a BA in mathematics
for commerce from York University.

Mr. Ho Chi Tong, aged 50, joined the Group in 1998.
He is a director of the Construction Division, Building
Materials Division and Interior and Renovation Division
of the Group. He has extensive experience in quantity
surveying consultancy and construction contracting. He
holds a professional diploma in quantity surveying from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a Registered
Professional Surveyor (QS) under Surveyor Registration
Board (RPS) and a member of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, aged 49, joined the Group in 2007.
He is a director of the Building Materials Division of
the Group and is the general manager of Million Hope
Industries Limited. He has comprehensive experience
in the building industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee holds a
higher diploma in mechanical engineering.
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Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, Casey, aged 64, joined the Group
in 1996 and is the Company Secretary and the Financial
Controller of the Group. He is also a director of the
Building Materials Division, Interior and Renovation
Division and Property Agency and Management Division
of the Group. He has extensive finance and accounting
experience in various industries. He holds a bachelor of
business degree in accounting and a master degree in
business administration from Edith Cowan University
in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of CPA Australia (CPA
(Aust.)) and a fellowship member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and Association of
International Accountants (FAIA).

Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 56, joined the Group in 1990 and
is a director of the Construction Division and Interior and
Renovation Division of the Group. Mr. Lun has extensive
experience in the construction field in Hong Kong and
the PRC. He holds an associateship and a higher diploma
in the building technology and management from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of
The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB), Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM), Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS), and The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers — Building (MHKIE).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 55, joined the Group in
1989. He is a director of the Construction Division,
Building Materials Division and Interior and Renovation
Division of the Group. He has 33 years of experience in
the public and private sectors of the building and civil
engineering industries in Hong Kong. He holds a diploma
in management studies, a post-experience certificate
in building studies and a higher certificate in structural
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a bachelor degree in construction management
and economics. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests of the directors and
chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code”) were as follows:

(i) Long position in the shares of the Company

EEZEG HREMRAGHER

Bke

R-ZE—RAFE=A=+—H EFRESTH
AEBRAERFR 2RO RAABRG R EECHE
KD BIRIEE 5 R G RGIEEXVER £ 3521%
BAFEZETMR BB LHRITAESE
TRFRZ2EZEFA ([ZEFR ) EHNE

ZAN/NECT D3

44 2~

gk 2

FrefEsmamT :

() REQXARDZHR

Number of ordinary shares

: Total % of
SERHE number issued
Personal Corporate Other  of ordinary share
Name Capacity interests interests interests shares capital
ZBR HERT
i L) BAESR AL 3 Hits ROBY KREEIHL
Cha Mou Sing, Payson (1) Beneficial owner 735,712 3,574,272 115,666,069 119,976,053 22.37%
ERE EXZBEAA (Note a) (Note b)
(2) Interest of controlled GELY (HEEDb)
corporation
LR VNG
(3) Beneficiary of
discretionary trusts
MEEEZZEA
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson  Beneficiary of discretionary - - 117,865,219 117,865,219 21.98%
trusts (Note b)
e BieER2XEA (PtzEDb)
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (1) Beneficial owner 4,499,285 3,416,780 - 7,916,065 1.48%
ThE BREBA (Note ¢)
(2) Interest of controlled (HfEEo)
corporation
REFAT R
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 456,018 - - 456,018 0.09%
Hitx BREEA
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(i)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(@

The shares are held by Accomplished Investments
Ltd., in which the relevant director is deemed to be
interested by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

These shares are held under certain but not
identical discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson are
among the members of the class of discretionary
beneficiaries.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in
the Company arise from the fact that he owns 50%
of the share capital of Executive Plaza Limited, which
holds 3,416,780 shares of the Company.

Share options

Certain Directors have been granted share options,

details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of
the directors and chief executive of the Company or

their associates held any interests or short positions in

the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model
Code, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of

the SFO.
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B &

(a) MREFBFREAEMROIEXVE ZZERH
H—BERESHRAREERZ AR
Accomplished Investments Ltd.3& 7% °

(b) ZERMEETARHBELAESE
ERBLERERELEYRETTE
MEER2BEZE AANHE P 2K
S

(0 EFHEEEEARQATAZATERZZER
HEEE S ZETRANESRERR
RNEEFE  ZAREEARNT3,416,780
BB A7 o

(i) FBAHE

ETESCERBRE FEFFERL
X[ iEkrEsTEl] — ke

BRENFIREEN RZB-—RAF=A=1—
B HEXAQRAESERESTRAEREZH
ZHMBEANL BEEARBERSFRPERGIE
XVER SRR AEF AR AN E AR QT R BERZFTSAR
BE S REERGIEXVERE 3521k BREA R D
ARBZRAMFE 2 ERMA AL THE
EAEELEE (EERESRBEMRMEXV
BB) s R R ESERIKR -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the directors
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights during the year.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, in addition to those interests
as disclosed above in respect of the directors, the
interests of the substantial shareholders in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

MERMKLFRGFZRH

Br EXPTIREE SN RAFREAERE A2
AIHH MM E R B LEEBEMLH 2R
W LSRR BESIEAR QA REAHM
RAZANE (BELXRAES) MTEESER
BEZBEBIARB T \B2FZEEIRE
NP B FZAEMERNHFRE T EEMZX
LA -

FERRZHEHE

REZZB-AF=ZA=1t—H REXFKEH
REZZREZIN TERRNAQFRH KAE
EROPEARERSRAERMEXVELE
3B6IR AR AR R ARBAGHMEFE 2 BT
MEER T
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Long position in the shares of the Company REATRGZEFR
Number of % of issued
Name Capacity ordinary shares share capital
2 %17
8 5% EiERRE BABEDLE
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,767,230 23.8%
(“Great Wisdom”) (Note 1)
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited BERERAA
([ Great Wisdom J) (HfzE1)
HKRI (Note 1) (1) Beneficial owner 262,795,006 49.0%
EHBEE (MEE) EREBA
(2) Interest of controlled
corporation
ZEH AT ZEE
CCM Trust (Note 2) (1) Trustee 366,277,599 68.3%

CCM Trust (Fftz¥2)

EEPN

(2) Interest of controlled

corporation

ZEENE 2 EE

Notes:

(M

vl

Great Wisdom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKRI
and therefore HKRI is deemed to be interested in the
127,767,230 shares held by Great Wisdom in accordance
with the SFO. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou
Daid, Johnson, being the directors of the Company, are
also the directors of HKRI.

These share interests comprise 103,482,593 shares directly
held by CCM Trust, 262,795,006 shares indirectly held
through HKRI. As CCM Trust controls more than one-third
of the share capital of HKRI (held as to approximately
41.48% by CCM Trust), it is deemed to be interested in the
share interest of HKRI. CCM Trust is holding these shares as
the trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts
of which members of the Cha Family (comprising, inter
alia, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid,
Johnson, being the directors of the Company) are among
the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson is also
a director of CCM Trust.

MIeE -

(1)

@)

Great Wisdom 3B BRE 2 EWB AT
Hit RIEEFRBEGG EBEEWIRA
A Great WisdomfiFH 2127,767,2308% &
PREEERS AQTESERBELEREH
BEERBEBEENES-

ERDEZBEHACM TrustEEFEZ
103,482,593 17 HZEEBEBEEREH
2262,795,0068% B2 {7 © FHFACCM TrustiZ &
BEERAB=292— (CCM TrustiF B4
41.48% %)  MERANEBEEREHR
DREZHHEEREL - CCM TrustIUEFEA B H
AETTANBETHERERD ZE5ET
ZHESRAHPEERREKE (B4 E
RERBEEREMELRLE YEAQXTAE
E) ERMBAEETRCCM TrustzEE o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the directors of the

Company in businesses which compete or were likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the principal

businesses of the Group (the “Competing Business”) as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules

were as follows:

EERREREhcHER

RAEFR  RRABEBMERREEFTER
BEENEEAREMESAIREAREM ([H
FUEK])  MRELDRAATRE 2EM
ERDERZEBRNT

Name of
Name of director company Nature of interest Competing business
EEgR RNAEERE EmE BB MER
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(HtzE1) (Bi=E2)
Cha Mou Sing, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development
Payson class of discretionary beneficiaries and investment
of certain but not identical (b) Property management,
discretionary trusts of which the leasing and marketing
trustees are deemed substantial services
shareholders of HKRI under Part XV
of the SFO
B EBEE ERBRXESERETTAMBEREZE (@ YVEBREKRE
BEHEAABZRE MBRERSRE (b) VEEE -HERTS
BEIRBIEXVER  ZEETE2ETARE HE IR
NWDCL Independent non-executive director of (a) Property development
NWDCL and investment
(b) Property management,
leasing and marketing
services
it R FtHRCEBIIHITES (@) MEBRRRE
(b) MEEE -HERTS
1 B R 7%
CREIT Independent non-executive director (@) Property investment
of Eagle Asset Management (CP) (b) Property management,
Limited, the manager of CREIT leasing and marketing
services
BEE¥XET BEEEEE (BEB)ERAA(BEE (@) YERE
KEAZKE) 2BYFHTES (b) MEERE -HERTS
1 B R
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Name of
Name of director company Nature of interest Competing business
EEpA NEER EEME B
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(HtzE1) (PBi=E2)
Cha Mou Daid, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development
Johnson class of discretionary beneficiaries and investment
of certain but not identical (b) Property management,
discretionary trusts of which the leasing and marketing
trustees are deemed substantial services
shareholders of HKRI under Part XV
of the SFO
BRE HBEE EBEXEERETARAMBEETEZEH () VEBERRE
BEEAABZRE MBRERSRYP (b) VXEE -HERMSHE
BIRBIEXVER  ZEETEZEEAER & AR 7
Notes: MizE :

(1) Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
are non-executive directors of the Company, who are
not involved in the daily management of the Group.
Accordingly, the Company is capable of carrying its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from the
above mentioned competing business.

(2) Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries,
affiliated companies or by way of other forms of
investments.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors is
interested in any business apart from the Group's
businesses, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group.

(1) ERBREREWEREDADBFYMITE
B RENEZERAEHABEETH-A
b AN B REMEEHERFE N ERAR
FUMEBTRAFRAEE -

Q) ZEEBTEANELDRHELDEE
HIEBE AR E TR o

Br EXFTREE SN MEEEMEMEAAREE
EREEAEEARIUENTRAREMLEZ
EMES (BRAKEELIN) hEREDS -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
entered into the following transactions which constituted
connected transactions of the Group under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules:

(1) Disposal of an Interest in 151 Hollywood Road

On 19 March 2015, Hanison Construction Holdings
(BVI) Limited (“Hanison BVI"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of HKRI, Sky Champion
International Limited (“Sky Champion”), an indirect
majority owned subsidiary of Mingly Corporation
(the “Mingly”), Mingly and an independent
purchaser, Jinshang International Investment
Company Limited, (the “Purchaser”) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
Hanison BVI and Sky Champion conditionally
agreed to sell and the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
of Superior Choice Holdings Limited (“Superior
Choice”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company and HKRI, with the assignment of
the outstanding shareholders’ loans from Hanison
BVI and Sky Champion to the Purchaser at a total
cash consideration of HK$550 million (subject to
adjustment, if any), which should be divided in
the proportion of 60:40 for Hanison BVI and Sky
Champion respectively (the “Disposal”).

EERSHZHEZ REXHR
HERERXS

BERXS

REBEZZ—HF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE &&
BETTIRS MiRE L TRAZEI14AFE
ZEXRGBERAEECHEERS

(1) HERBBEZFEISIHR 2ES

R-ZZFE—HAF=A+ N AH Hanison
Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited
([Hanison BVI] KATRz2EMB L
AREBEBEECBEFZENBAR) -
ABBEBERAR([XBE]l EHE&EE
(T2H])BEREERBI RENKE
ARF) BN R—EEILE Flinshang
International Investment Company
Limited ((BERF NI —BEEHE
It > Hanison BVIR X BEK(RHRE
HE MBS BHRM4REZEE ESuperior
Choice Holdings Limited ([ Superior
Choice ' R AR REBEEZBEEH
TEMBARIZE2HE BHITRA
It i Hanison BVIN X 78 6] B 5 8 & &
BEEZRREER LReREABY
550,000,0005T (Al FHAZE - A) - &R
{8 % M Hanison BVIR X &% 51260:40
WL hlE s ([HEEE]) -
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Mingly is indirectly majority owned by CCM Trust
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and HKRI and hence Sky Champion is a connected
person of the Company and HKRI respectively for
the purpose of the Listing Rules and the Disposal
constituted a connected transaction on the part of
the Company and HKRI which was subject to the
independent shareholders’ approval of both the
Company and HKRI.

The Disposal and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were duly approved, confirmed and
ratified by an ordinary resolution passed by the
independent shareholders of each of the Company
and HKRI at separate extraordinary general
meetings both held on 19 May 2015. Completion of
the Disposal shall take place in early July 2015.

Supply and Installation of Aluminum Windows
and Doors

On 31 March 2015, XEFHRZEM R (EMN)BR
A\ (Translation: Million Hope New-tech Building
Supplies (Huizhou) Limited) (“Million Hope”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
HKRI, entered into a contract with BEEREME
BPBR2AT (Translation: Haining Fusheng Real Estate
Development Limited) (“Haining Fusheng”), which
is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of CCM
Trust, for the supply and install the aluminium
windows and doors (the “Works"”) by Million Hope
to Haining Fusheng. Haining Fusheng is regarded
as a connected person of the Company and HKRI
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The contract
sum is RMB16.27 million which is made in progress
payment based on architect certificates certifying
the progress of the Works completed by Million
Hope and verified by the project architect.
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(2)

B HCCM TrustE S X B2 IRE
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% ARKATREBEE B RRAL
Ao
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RAREBEXZAZCHIRRR-F
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AzREEEMBARIREBEE M
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FROFE ([BEEE] CCM Trustz B
FEEMBARIL—EAR AEE
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group

HERERS

RBEZZ-HAF=ZA=+t—-HLEE &
SEETTTIRG  MRE EHRRE14A

entered into the following transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(1) Construction and Renovation Services
Framework Agreement

As HKRI, together with its wholly-owned subsidiary,
holds approximately 49% of the issued share capital
of the Company, and is, therefore, a substantial
shareholder of the Company and a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules, the
various construction transactions (“Construction
Transactions”) and renovation transactions
("Renovation Transactions”) entered into or to be
entered into between HKRI and its subsidiaries
("HKRI Group”) on the one hand and the members
of the Group on the other hand constitute
continuing connected transactions (“Continuing
Connected Transactions with HKRI"”) for the
purposes of the Listing Rules.

HKRI and the Company entered into the
Construction and Renovation Services Framework
Agreement dated 20 December 2012 (the “2013
C&R Agreement”) which governs the outline terms
upon which HKRI Group and the Group proposed to
be engaged in various Construction Transactions and
various Renovation Transactions during the three
financial years ending 31 March 2016 with total
values to be subject to the following annual caps
("Cap”) respectively.

B ZERGBRARAZHFERERS

(1) BEREKERBERDS

HREBEERHZEWNBARFER
AT EBITRALL%  FTULRAAQ T
ZEERR - WRELTHRABARDE
ZBEBAL BB LEHRAMS &8
WMERHWBAR ([FEEEEE])E
A—FEAEEREATMEAS—FE
ETHIBSETZTREERS ([EE
R REERS (l'%qflk“EJ)ﬁﬁk%
BRERS ((HABEEZIFERE
1)

EBEEHEANTTLABRAE S
F+ZAZ+HZEEREBRKESR
WE (20132 EREBHZE]) » UR
ERREEEEEAKEERNEBZE-F
—AE:H:+—E¢:@Mﬁ$fW
ETZTREERSRTRAEERS
k%ﬁ%’ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁmxTﬂig
EBR ([ EPBR]) FABR ©
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The Cap and the total income recognised by the
Group in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transactions with HKRI for the year ended 31 March
2015 are stated below:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEa@ Wt =

REBE-Z-AF=A=+t—-HLEFER H
ERERETZHEFERZ LRRELE
BRI WABENT

Income
Recognised

by the Group

for the Year Ended
31 March 2015

BE-Z—-afF

=A=+—HL

Type of Transaction Cap FERKEER
R 5 &5 EBR mRzZBA
HKS$ HK$

JB B B

Construction Transactions BERIH 430,000,000 81,538,000
Renovation Transactions HERS 50,000,000 -

Project Management Service Agreements and
Site Supervision Agreements

On 2 April 2012, Hanison Project Management
Limited (“HPML"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and JBZE EREEHF R 2 7 (Translation:
Haining Fusheng Real Estate Development
Limited) (“Haining Fusheng”) and BEZEZY%RE
#EHBPR A A (Translation: Haining Jiafeng Real
Estate Development Limited) (“Haining Jiafeng”)
(collectively “Haining Project Companies”) (Note a)
have entered into cross-border project management
service agreements (the “2012 Cross-border Project
Management Service Agreements”), non-PRC
project management service agreements (the “2012
Non-PRC Project Management Service Agreements”)
and site supervision agreements (the “2012 Site
Supervision Agreements”) pursuant to which HPML
will provide project management services in both
Hong Kong and the PRC (the “Project Management
Services”) and site supervision services in the PRC
(the “Site Supervision Services”) to the Haining
Project Companies.

(2 EHEEERBERARGBEELKS
Gl

R-E——FHNA-RH EEBEEEEER
RAF (TEEFEEER]) (—BAQT
ZEEMBAR) HEEERFHESFR
AR (MBEER])REERLEREHESR
RAR(MMEEEE]) (KBAIEEE
BAall) (Mizka) BT BEEELKS
B((ZZE-——FBREXELEKER])
BHBELKER ([T —_FEBIHE
¥UKEAE]) RiBBEBLKAE (=
T-_FHBEELKER])  RIEZ
Z£4R BB BEEEESENEBRPED
BEEEARRHES EERE ([1EE
EEARR ) R A B IR it AR B B AR AR
([ BREEEARAE ) ©
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On 31 July 2013, HPML and the Haining Project
Companies further entered into new site
supervision agreements (the “New Site Supervision
Agreements”) to supersede the 2012 Site Supervision
Agreements for the revision of the annual caps for
the Site Supervision Services (the 2012 Cross-border
Project Management Service Agreements, the 2012
Non-PRC Project Management Service Agreements
and the New Site Supervision Agreements
collectively, the “2012 PM Agreements”).

The transactions for the provision of Project
Management Services and Site Supervision Services
to Haining Project Companies are only subject to
announcement and reporting requirements and
no independent shareholders’ approval of the
Company is required under the Listing Rules. The
2012 PM Agreements, its terms, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the annual caps
(including the revised annual caps for the Site
Supervision Services) on the total value of the
continuing connected transactions with Haining
Project Companies during the three financial years
ending 31 March 2015 were approved by the board
of directors of the Company and announcements in
relation thereto was made on 2 April 2012 and 31
July 2013 respectively.

R-ZB—=HtA=+—0 EFEEE
BESSEE ARE—SBITHBE
BYEKAR ([FHiBEBLKEE]) U
BR-ZE-—FBEELEKEAR B
THREBLKERANFELR (=ZF
——FBREELKEER —E—ZF8
HNEELKERRIMBEEL KSR
mEAICZ—_FEEEBESR]) -

ABEEEBEEQARIREMIEE EERKE R
BEBRRE2XRZEABT LMRAUN
AEREBRE WA BEEBSAATNE
URRzME - —E-——_FHEEES
B HEF HETRETZRZERE
EE-RAFE=ZA=+—-HILE=ZHEHK
FERAZEEBRERZBRE2FE LR
(BRLETNIHBEESRKEFE LIR)
EEAQRTESSER HENAEES
AR=—ZE——-—FMA-HR=ZE—=

tA=+—HHE-
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The Cap and the total income recognised by the
Group in respect of the continuing connected
transactions with Haining Project Companies for the
year ended 31 March 2015 are stated below:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE @ WLt =

REBE_E—RFE=A=1+—HLEE
A EEEIEE ARETEERERS
ERREANEFEEI W ABEENT

Income
Recognised
by the Group
for the Year

Ended

Type of Transaction Cap 31 March 2015

BZ-_Z-1fF

=ZA=+—-HLk

FEREEKHE

X5 %5 FBR R ZBA

HK$ HK$

B B

Project Management Services HEEERKERS 4,913,000 2,190,000
Transactions

Site Supervision Services BREERERS 7,950,000 3,419,000

Transactions

In anticipation of the expiry of the 2012 PM
Agreements on 31 March 2015, HPML and Haining
Jiafeng have entered into the cross-border
project management service agreement (the
“2015 Cross-border Project Management Service
Agreement”) and non-PRC project management
service agreement (the “2015 Non-PRC Project
Management Service Agreement”) for providing
the Project Management Services to Haining
project in Hong Kong and Mainland China. HPML
also entered into site supervision agreements
(the "2015 Site Supervision Agreements”) with
Haining Jiafeng and Haining Fusheng respectively
providing the Site Supervision Services to Haining
project (the 2015 Cross-border Project Management
Service Agreement, the 2015 Non-PRC Project
Management Service Agreement and the 2015 Site
Supervision Agreements, collectively the “2015 PM
Agreements”).

—E-_FHEEEESRBEHER -2
—hF=A=t—HE®R BEBEEE
B SRR BEEELKER
(ZZE-hFEBREELBER]) RIR
SNEELRAF ([ZE—REEHEE
BEER]) URBBRTEHOESEE
BEARRERHREEEERE -EBEEE
BrEe R eEs g REEERITY
REBLEER ([T — A FthBE
BLKAR])  UEEEEE A FEE
WREERE(ZE—HFBREEY
BER —E-—hAFHNEELBEER
R-E-AEMBREBLBEEAEA
[—Z-HAFEEEESGHE]) -
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The transactions for the provision of the Project
Management Services and the Site Supervision
Services to Haining project under the 2015 PM
Agreements are only subject to announcement
and reporting requirements and no independent
shareholders’ approval of the Company is required
under the Listing Rules. The 2015 PM Agreements,
its terms thereof, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the annual caps on the total value
of the continuing connected transactions during the
three financial years ending 31 March 2018 were
approved by the boards of directors of the Company
and an announcement in relation thereto was made
on 31 March 2015.

The Cap for the provision of the Project
Management Services and the Site Supervision

RIE-—E-—AFEEEEARMAEEE
BEREBESERE R EBEERE 2
REEEBTFTLITHAAUANAERBRZ
BRE U AREESEALARBIREZH#
B —T-HFHEEBEEAR HKEH
HETERETZRE URBEZZ—N
izﬂ=+—5¢:@%ﬂirzﬁ
ZHRECFELRYCERDT
EE2ERE HENAETFER=Z—F
F=A=+—AFI%-

ERE EEREBEEBECRAASEER
)Sé BEELRHAAREERB R BEE

Services by HPML to Haining Fusheng and Haining BREzLRAOT:
Jiafeng under the Agreements are as follows:
Cap for Project Cap for
Management Site Supervision
Relevant Financial Year Services” Services Aggregated Cap
HEER i 88 BE
HEMBREE R 2 LBR" PR 2 LBR FR#EEE
1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 RMB768,000 RMB3,552,000 RMB4,320,000
(equivalent to (equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$960,000) HK$4,440,000) HK$5,400,000)
—E-HFHMA—RHZE AR#®768,000t A R#¥3,552,0000t A [K%4,320,0007T
—E-XRFE=ZA=+—8H (FHERB® (HERBLE (HHERNBLE
960,0007T ) 4,440,0007T ) 5,400,0007T)
1 April 2016 — 31 March 2017 RMB768,000 RMB3,552,000 RMB4,320,000
(equivalent to (equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$960,000) HK$4,440,000) HK$5,400,000)
—E2-REMA—HZE ARM¥768,000T ARME3,552,000t A RK¥4,320,0005T
—E—tHF=A=+—H (HHER B (FHER B (HER B
960,000t ) 4,440,0007T) 5,400,0007C )
1 April 2017 - 31 March 2018 RMB768,000 RMB3,552,000 RMB4,320,000
(equivalent to (equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$960,000) HK$4,440,000) HK$5,400,000)
“E-—ttHFWA—HZE AR¥768,0000t A K#3,552,0000t A R%4,320,0007T
—E-N\E=A=+—H (HHER B (HHERBE (HHERBL
960,000t ) 4,440,0007T) 5,400,0007T)
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A The Cap for Project Management Services represents
the aggregate service fees under the Cross-border
Project Management Service Agreement and the
Non-PRC Project Management Service Agreement.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
directors engaged the auditor of the Company to
perform certain work on continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015 in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has provided a report to the directors of the
Company and confirmed that, for the year ended
31 March 2015, the above continuing connected
transactions:

(@) nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of
services by the Group, nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Company;

() nothing has come to our attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were
not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEa@ Wt =

A EAEERKC ERIERBEELBES
FRFNEELHERET 2 RFEA
e

BRI L TR AIE14A560% EEEEAR
RAZGZEOMAAEBEEBE-ZT-—HF
ZAZt-BLEFENFERERZE
1TE TRREBRE TFEERIFE30005%
(BB ERFARNFHAINNESR
EIMNSREBEAMOSHRMNE
HHAET405% (BN E B L 5 B Frat
SEBREXZNZBE RS | BT -
HMCMARAESRHRELER L
M EERERZNEBE-_T—1%F=A
=t—-HLEFE:

(a) FEWEIZINFEHERAEER
BEXZUWEEARANBAESEHEZ
=15,

(b) BHERAKERERERB 2XHZM
EOMEWEIBINERERRZ
ERFEMBERSELEETA
NAIZEBEREZEIE;

(0 BEUEIZIFEREIBZER
SRABEATHLERBEEER
52 HBERRT M 2518
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(d) with respect to the aggregate amount of each
of the continuing connected transactions set
out above, nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the previous announcements dated 2 April
2012, 20 December 2012 and 31 July 2013
made by the Company in respect of each of the
continuing connected transactions.

The independent non-executive directors reviewed
the continuing connected transactions described
in (1) and (2) above (collectively the “Continuing
Connected Transactions”) and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms better
than terms available to (or from) independent
third parties; and

(iii) in all material aspects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the Continuing
Connected Transactions on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

(d) BMULFHESEFERERS2H
SHEMs FEIEIZINERS
REBEBRERZCHEBR LR
NAMBEFEFRERZELHZ
HBA-ZT—_—_HFWA-H =%
——f+ZA=Z+HRZE—=
tA=+—BZRAEMEEZES
FEHAE-

BYFHTESCHEMLER(NRQ)2E
BRERS (GRFEEERZ]) X

ERRZERS:

() MAKBEZEER-REKBRES

HIvaE

(i) DEEEBERRTLIEZEES
A5 (REBILE=FAE) ZIFR
EEZIRRFTAL R

(i) RAABEASERBZSHERE
RS2 HBABRRATEE ZER
AN UHEARARARHEESE
BRI

BR ESCFTIREE & SN - AN D RIS E A E
RABEIT LA DNRDNESREPEEY
BEEEEAEEMRAFE RS2 H
FAFEAEMEEODARAEMZEFNE
AR
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Note:

a. BEEREMHESBPMRADT is an indirect subsidiary of
CCM Trust. BEZLE#EBRRADF is a joint venture
of CCM Trust and the Company upon completion
of the acquisition of 49% interest therein by the
Company on 30 June 2011.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for undertaking the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the company was entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 43% of the turnover of the Group
and the largest customer is an independent third party,
accounted for about 12% of the turnover of the Group.
Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of total purchases
for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective associates, or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) has any interest in any of the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 March 2015.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges
relating to the retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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a. BEEREHEBRATACM Trust
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FERA=tTHEERWBESEZLEE
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after
the reporting period are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Managing Director
23 June 2015

LREKE

REATRERATZAHENRBREAATE
ERARELTRRE KAREFEN
HARERE DRATEEFRLR25% 2K
NEICBITRG -

B {7 12 5t SR R 42
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 108 to 241, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AR Y S ClE =

BHANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(RBRARZRARAR) ZRKRR
(REEEHEZMA L2 BERLA)

R IZ BT B 58 X 3 & Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (BB RIZZERBR A F)
(E2F) REMBAR (B EEE )&
RE18EE2MHZFEE I ®mE BN
E-RFE=A=1+—HZHEAUBRREK B
ZZALFEZHREERR REBERRHEM
2HRER GEARZEHRRGARER

KOURFESTHEUERHEMFBPER -

ESNGSMERRARRBZRE

BRACESAEERBEEREHMOER
iz BBV BREERNRIRRE B D B ERSG
ZERBERERRGSVB®RER FHELHES
ROFzRM UREBESABREGSH
BMRIMLE 2 BEREBIES UEARS I
BRAGFEARKFRERMER 2 ERE
SRR AL o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

BRBMZRE

AEEBMzETARBEEZ2EREZER
é%ﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁfmﬁﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEERREERE MAAEEMMAR A
REMBRRARE 2 RARHEMEMA L
EERAEST AREBHECRIEFT B
ANERM 2B BETEAETER - ZSER
REAZEENEBTEERE  WRBARAT

B EMEEREFAVERRESTESR
R E A S5 BRBR M

B RITIRF ARG MBHRRR
HEBERNBENCEURR IEREZRF
HUR AL BB 2 ) i B4R R R ERFE S8R
RMERGREUBRREFEERBERRL 2
Rk RS RRE RBMEEEER
FHRESYBRRAEHEERQF 2 XM
HEzAMES URABEE 2EXRERF B
WHBHER ZAMEF ZHEBERER -F
BT ERTEESHRAZEAHREZEE
MRAMER 2 S5t 2 G E MY LURFHELR
B BHRR ZBEEIIHRA N

FEBEEE EEMESZERRRERER
BEBAEE2ERERREHER

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 /



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ¥& 37 #% & Bl i &5

OPINION BR

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements  RNZBEIRAE  FEVHEHRREDREFETK
give a true and fair view of the financial position of FHENEBEHEA TR SEXRER_-F
the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group's —HF=A=+—HZHMBMRRE BEEEH

financial performance and cash flows for the year ZZALFEZHERBERRESRE WBIR
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial RBEBQATKAZHBERAEZARE -
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EEeBERS AT T
Certified Public Accountants HEEET

Hong Kong BB

23 June 2015 —E-AF¥AX<AZ+=H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

I:I \ /
/\‘/ N IZI %%

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_Z-HAF=A=t—-RALEE

2015 2014
—E-AHF —F-NF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i BT T BT T

Turnover =E 2 7 2,095,154 1,626,525
Cost of sales SHERA (1,707,685) (1,377,469)
Gross profit ER 387,469 249,056
Other income Ha A 9 4,281 37,025
Other gains and losses HihW = R EE 68 64
Marketing and distribution costs MHEER D HE A (71,771) (32,721)
Administrative expenses 1TTHRX (164,233) (125,368)
Gain on change in fair value of REWEZAFEEHZ

investment properties Wz 355,902 55,736
Share of profit (loss) of an PREE AT RA (EE)

associate 5,249 (264)
Share of profit of joint ventures {5 & & EEF| 2,432 3,530
Finance costs BB R 10 (7,927) (7,736)
Profit before taxation MREL AR 1 511,470 179,322
Taxation HMEXH 13 (24,008) (15,306)
Profit for the year REERF 487,462 164,016
Profit for the year THANLBIERFEERR :

attributable to:

Owners of the Company P UNEIE 2SN 419,202 155,698

Non-controlling interest IR AER 68,260 8,318

487,462 164,016

Earnings per share BREF

Basic (HK cents) A (BAL) 15 78.2 29.0

Diluted (HK cents) 5 (GB4l) 15 78.1 N/A & A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ara s MEMEEmR SR

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE-Z-AF¥=ZA=+—-HLEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE-MmF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year REERF 487,462 164,016
Other comprehensive expense: ~ HZEXH :
Item that may be subsequently FAIREZEH S/ BEEERZER:
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising REBNEREEZEREZRE
on translation of foreign
operations (978) (334)
Total comprehensive income AEEZEHWRALLE
for the year 486,484 163,682
Total comprehensive income TIHALTEERFEZEWRALLE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RATEEB A 418,224 155,364
Non-controlling interest FERER 68,260 8,318
486,484 163,682
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iRa B IRER
At 31 March 2015
R=-ZZE-HF=B=+—H

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
e ia =Z2-NF
=A=+-8 | =A=+-8
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B BET T BT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REYE 16 1,028,240 804,040
Property, plant and equipment  #1¥ - BE R &XE 17 68,794 71,360
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 18 6,508 6,789
Interest in an associate BN T 2R 19 26,223 20,974
Interests in joint ventures BELECES 20 187,158 155,574
Pledged bank deposits SR ITER 30 83,720 49,795
Deferred tax assets FEERIBERE 33 488 702
1,401,131 1,109,234
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development BRPZGEWE
for sale 21 343,166 794,832
Properties held for sale FIERSEME 393,680 84,416
Inventories FE 22 22,089 23,795
Amounts receivable on EWEHIRENIE
contract work 23 134,805 78,844
Progress payments receivable PEWUE E R IR 24 96,723 69,155
Retention money receivable FEWRE S 25 214,466 125,916
Debtors, deposits and FEWFIE - RER
prepayments FETFRIB 26 542,405 123,944
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 18 219 224
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUE & ¥ FIE 27 18 24,979
Amount due from an associate FEU B N B FRIE 27 2,198 2,132
Investments held for trading BEEEZRE 28 426 364
Taxation recoverable CIEEAEE TR 2,940 548
Derivative financial instruments  $T4£ BT A 29 - 89
Bank balances and cash RITEBREES 30 301,206 323,444
2,054,341 1,652,682
Current liabilities N IN=N
Amounts payable on EHEHNIEMRE
contract work 23 243,447 208,683
Trade and other payables FE A SR TR I H At BB FRUIR 31 586,429 398,824
Taxation payable 518 18,707 8,740
Amount due to a non-controlling F&{ JE 2 IR IR R 7% 18
shareholder 37 76,222 -
Bank loans — amounts due RITER-——FR
within one year B RRIR 32 691,260 699,300
1,616,065 1,315,547
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 434 BF 75 A  3=

At 31 March 2015

R-ZE-HF=A=1+—H

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-AHF -k
=ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M = BET T BT T
Net current assets REEEEE 438,276 337,135
Total assets less current liabilities 2EERAEEE 1,839,407 1,446,369
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Other long-term payable Hih R H BN FIE 36 14,253 14,253
Amount due to a non-controlling FE{+IE 2 IR IR R 7% 18
shareholder 37 - 70,957
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 33 8,095 7,908
22,348 93,118
1,817,059 1,353,251
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital & < 34 53,632 53,632
Reserves & 1,689,928 1,294,380
Equity attributable to owners of ZAQFEE AL
the Company 1,743,560 1,348,012
Non-controlling interest FEIERR RS 73,499 5,239
1,817,059 1,353,251

The consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to
241 were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 23 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
IR
DIRECTOR
EF

F108EEF2MEMII 2 FEMBREK L&
EER=E-AEAASTZAREREHE

B WA TIIESRRESR:

Tai Sai Ho

Hit =

DIRECTOR

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ANy v 1 a1
MEEREEHR
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-AF=ZA=+—-HLEE

Share Property Non-
Share  Contributed Special options  revaluation ~ Translation ~ Goodwill Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
Bk BABR  BHGE BRERE NEEMEE  AEEE  BERE  ZrER & FERER  EEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000
BRI BT BT BT A%t A%t A%t E%Tn AT B8t E%TR
(Note 35) (Note 35)
(W&35)  (WEss)
A1 April 2013 RZE-ZEMB-B 53,632 8,769 21,941 - 982 6,691 (18) 1121527 1,219,464 (3,079 1,216,385
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - - - - 155,698 155,698 8318 164,016
Exchange differences arisingon ~ REENEREEZ
translation of foreign operations  EXZE - - - - - (334) - - (334) - (334)
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ AEE2E () KALE
income for the year - - - - - (334) - 155,698 155,364 8318 163,682
Dividends paid 2HZRE - - - - - - - (26,816) (26,816) - (26,816)
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-MEZF=1-A 53,632 8,769 2,941 - 982 6,357 (18) 1,256,409 1,348,012 5239 1353251
Profit for the year REEREF - - - - - - - 419,202 419,202 68,260 487,462
Exchange differences arisingon ~ REBAERELL
translation of foreign operations  EXZE - - - - - (978) - - (978) - (978)
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ AEE2ME () KALE
income for the year - - - - - (978) - 419,202 418,224 68,260 486,484
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREER
share-based payments NRBR A 25 - - - 5,749 - - - - 5749 - 5,749
Dividends paid BfiZRE - - - - - - - (28,425 (28,425) - (28,425)
At 31 March 2015 R=Z-1§=A=t-H 53,632 8,769 21,941 5,749 982 5379 (78) 1,647,186 1,743,560 73499 1,817,059
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ fﬁim@]%

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-AF=A=+t—-HLEE

2015 2014
—E-R%F —Z—uE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities RBEEXHEZ2HER
Profit before taxation F??RFJIJ & A 511,470 179,322
Adjustments for: Fﬂ*“
Share of (profit) loss of an associate DIEBE LR (afl) BB (5,249) 264
Share of profit of joint ventures DIEEERESH (2,432) (3,530)
Dividend income Eﬁ,%\LISUK (7) (6)
Interest income FE WA (1,587) (1,448)
Interest expense FMEXZH 7,927 7,736
Depreciation of property, ME BERREBZINE
plant and equipment 5,546 6,469
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEVME - BERZEZ
and equipment Y &= (366) (29,580)
Gain on change in fair value of REYRZAVEESZ
investment properties U &= (355,902) (55,736)
Gain on disposal of assets classified HESEABRFELHEEREZ
as held for sale g &= - (4,000)
Gain on change in fair value of PTEMBEIAZ
derivative financial instruments N EEB W (6) (72)
(Gain) loss on change in fair value of #FHEFE&EZREZ
investments held for trading NP EEEz (WEF)EE (62) 8
(Reversal of) impairment loss (#E)EERN
recognised on trade debtors B IEREEE (7,009) 4,936
Expenses recognised in respect BAUEREER
of equity-settled share-based LUR X A4 2 FRIE X
payments 5,749 -
Operating cash flows before EESESEHZEERESR
movements in working capital 158,072 104,363
Decrease in inventories FEHD 1,706 7,617
Decrease (increase) in properties BERZEEYERD (M)
under development for sale 148,586 (24,070)
(Increase) decrease in amounts BWEHTREAE ()
receivable on contract work (52,236) 46,742
(Increase) decrease in progress FEWGER RIE (380) B
payments receivable (27,568) 7,367
Increase in retention money receivable F&UR{R & € 1% (88,550) (11,225)
Increase in debtors, deposits and FEWRIE ~ 12 & R FE FRIEIE i
prepayments (411,452) (86,468)
Increase in amounts payable on ERES4 TRSE
contract work 34,764 140,117
Increase in trade and other payables  FE{JF{IE & H fth FE S TR I o0 187,605 19,423
Decrease in derivative financial TTHEME T AR
instruments 95 260
Cash (used in) from operating activities (i) REZEXK 2B E (48,978) 204,126
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBREHR (16,032) (24,257)
Interest paid EFE (14,111) (15,475)
Net cash (used in) from operating (AR)REEEEK2
activities REeFHE (79,121) 164,394
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #4448 &mEh&

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+—-HLEE

2015 2014
—E-FF —ZE—-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash flows from investing activities REREXKZRER
Interest received BWRFE 1,587 1,448
Dividend received from investments BUWIFEESE2RERE
held for trading 7 6
Dividend received from joint ventures B WEZBERE 2,600 5,800
Purchase of investment properties hEREWE (6,708) (1,214)
Purchase of property, plant and NEYE BERKE
equipment (6,796) (5,662)
Proceeds from disposal of investment HE&ERE Y EFTSFE
properties 138,410 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment RETSRIE 403 62,343
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESER
classified as held for sale FIEHEEEMENRE - 12,500
Advance to an associate EXRTFHERR (66) (211)
Repayment from (advance to) joint ERETECET(ER
ventures 24,961 (24,530)
Loan to a joint venture BEDLECEN - (28,454)
Capital injection to a joint venture EEAEE (32,325) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits  FHEEFRITER (33,925) (25,394)
Net cash from (used in) investing RE(AR)REXK RS FHE
activities 88,148 (3,368)
Cash flows from financing activities ~ REBMEXBZRESR
Dividends paid EfFziRE (28,425) (26,816)
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (206,040) (129,400)
New bank loans raised HERITER 198,000 18,000
Advance from a non-controlling FERBERER
shareholder 5,265 7,357
Net cash used in financing activities ARMEXEB2REFH (31,200) (130,859)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and BHERRESEE ORL) ENFEE
cash equivalents (22,173) 30,167
Cash and cash equivalents FHNRERBEE
at the beginning of the year 323,444 293,338
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSH o8
changes (65) (61)
Cash and cash equivalents FHREASRESEE
at the end of the year, representing ~ RKBITHEBRRS
bank balances and cash 301,206 323,444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2001 Second Revision), Chapter
22 of the Laws of Cayman Islands. Its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
construction, interior and renovation works, supply
and installation of building materials, property
investment, property development, provision of
property agency and management services and sale
of health products.

e B RR I
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-AF=A=+t—-HLEE

—RER

RRAARBHEHEEMNE-_+-FER
AR (ZEE-—FE_BIR) - ERE
HEAMRLS —BERRERAF
HRORBEBBERZMARAE ([H
R Em-ARBZEZMPEERE
BEXMBH 2 HHERAFHROQT
BERA-

REVBBRIBEES]  BEIIA QT
ZHEEE -

AR —RREZRLB -HWE R
A EBEBREE KOHIREETE
HIBRZRKEEME  WRIRE MR
B MEREREERB 2RHREEE
fn 2 SHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf #5555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+—-HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) and a new
interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to Investment entities
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27
Amendments to Offsetting financial assets and
HKAS 32 financial liabilities
Amendments to Recoverable amount
HKAS 36 disclosures for non-financial
assets
Amendments to Novation of derivatives and
HKAS 39 continuation of hedge
accounting

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21 Levies

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs
and the new interpretation in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and financial positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

R REBRICERME
]EEA

RAFRE  AEBSERRATIEES
HARTG 2 EBHBREED 25
AR BRI

BEMBREED REHE
Fti -BREUHB
REEMET N
REBEER
FotLse
CHEN
BRETER RHEMBEERMEEER
F=TH
HE
BRETES FUBEEZTRESE
E=tAH2 BE
PHE
BRETES TR EBREAES
F=thike IR
EE
B8 (ARMHBRE B8
2EBZE9)
-RBEZT-F

RAFERHBBUBREER 2B
ARHBEBEABAIEELFERBE
FENUBRRERIBRRK,RAEHR

BUBBRFEIKBEBRNEANERY
@O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Financial instruments®
Regulatory deferral accounts?

Revenue from contracts with
customers?®
Disclosure initiative3

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation
and amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions’

Equity method in separate
financial statements?

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?

Investment entities: Applying
the consolidation exception®

Br RS R R B o
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE

BRI REEIICEBIRE
REHER (&)

AREBIWAREREATHIC EME R
ERMZHAREBT BB BREE
Al

BREMBREERN HMEIAS

FENH
BEMBREER EEELRE
FTI

BRMBHREEN REEFEHZBA
FTHN

BRETHE WETE
A HEN

EAGER BEURZZNEREER

ETARRERE B

e &R

F=TNH2

EHEN

EBat gl

FTAER

EBEER
EMT—H

EHEN

EBE LR

FT N2 BETR

EBEtEL

-ty o of %4

(PR

ERMBRELED REFHEABLLNRAIE

ETHREBET m%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%th

ERE-TN\$H2

EHES

EBMERELEN REBR ERGFEEREZ

B+ -BREE  HISMERS
ERAET R

REBGHEL

E-TNHR

(EHEN

RE ERREW

RERME BEHF

BURHRE 2 EDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #%r

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-AFZA=+—-HLHFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to Accounting for acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 interests in joint operations®
Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle?
Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle’
Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier
application is permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.
4 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements

beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

BB mKRMNE

BRI REEIICEBIME
WEHER (=)

BERUBREEN UWBHRLEREZSTHA
FT-SzBiTr &
BREBBRELN 2 BEMBRERAN-2-F

BEI R F2-%-—C ﬁi@,ﬁﬂz
FEIE

ERUBRSEN BANEREEN-F——

BEI R ER-Z-ZERH2
FEIE

ERUBERSEN BENBREER =

BEI R FE-Z- IﬁﬁiﬁZ
FEME

! REZB-—NELA-—HARzEMBZF
EHEEN WAFIREER

2 REZB-—NELA-—HRzEMBZF
EHBEN XEBLHBIIMER R
#Eiﬁﬁ°

3 RIE—R"F-—A—BlZEBBEBZF
Eﬁﬂfﬁi,& WAFFIREEM -

tRIR-ARF-A-HIZRRAKZE
NEEETBYHRELEN M BERRE
oW ARFIREER-

5 REB—tH5 BB z2ERRZF
EHEEN LAFIREER

¢ RIBE-N\F-A-HIZERMHKEZF
EHEEN LAFIREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #8525

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts”
and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

2.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

BRI REEIICE BT
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BRMBHRERNETRRIKEB
EFEHNZBA

REZ-—NFLH  BRMBREELE
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WA - EBBMBHREZNE T HRER
B AR ER S A A RRES 8
FEBEFTEANET SHIERAL &8
SR ENET R ERESH ] REER
B

EBUBHMEERE T HRAZORE
D—AERERIRAURBROEFE
BRHEMBRBHEEE  IRREETE
ARMZEEmSRBEMESHEE-
BB ZERISIA T AP A RIER N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf #5555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+—-HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BT REEBIICEBIME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MEEER (#)

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company are in the process
of assessing the impact of application of HKFRS 15
in the future on amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the financial
performance and financial position of the Group.

BEREMBREZENETARIRKE
EREANKRE] (&)

REBBVBEREENE+ TR E—@
BERNESENRBERIAWA-DNEER
MEBBERBENBNEBERIHE
FlEd K BEARABHESIESMAE
B BHREZENE+ARALLREE
BRI EBMHHRELEAE+R
RN ERBEZAWE -

RARARESHEFNERREREBYH
BELNE T RRYARKENGS MK
BRIV 2RESARKEERBRD
SE R RAEEETHFAERA -
AREBUBRELENE T RRNTER
HEERMAEHEBRAT

RRARESHEEREMHMT REES
ZEBUBRELNHAEE 2 MR
BRUBRARREEREMERZE -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBE
Statement of compliance EREBH

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

FRAMBHRRDERBEEBEHEMD
ERM B BMBIMELERN mEL - Lo

FEEUBRRAFTREZANET  BEFE
BRBMERZMARLBDES LHARA
REBRAAMERPIZERKRERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 55

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
the investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE

FEFHEE &)

mREE

BRIREMERE THBE T AR ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #S R 5= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESfB% &)
(Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued) mEEE (7)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

AN M BHEBNMS - AFETE
REAFEFEZBAZHITBERERE
RAVEFECHASEHHEERCE
BEMSER/F— SH=RHBUT:

s EFE-RWAZBAZERNER
S 2 HREEREENER
Mm% ZHE (RERE)

s FERWAZRBRBRE-EHAZ
BREN REEEIEBETEES
BEER W AR R

s FZAWABBEAEEYEB/ZT
GE:ES PN 3

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESTHEREIWT
Basis of consolidation mERE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

AEEUBRBRABELADFURKA
ARHEMB AR MES B8R ZPBR
®BEARAHRUTERERIRBEIS
R

o HHEREFITEED

o ZHRBREFMTROEED R
KRR SER &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf # R 5= M 55

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interest.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interest even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf #5555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHEE &)
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) REEE (#)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment” at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+—-HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interest that is present ownership
interest and entitle its holder to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amount of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interest are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another
standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of an associate and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf #5555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment

3.
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the cost of the investment over the Group’s share RAEBE TAREZRAE AEEE
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and AR EEEEEAFTEFEBEHIER

liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwiill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
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the investment. Any reversal of that impairment ESEEBIEMESERR -
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to

the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.

Revenue recognition PN

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amount
receivable for goods sold and services provided in
the normal course of business, net of discounts,
returns and sales related taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 55

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from construction contracts, interior
and renovation contracts and building materials
installation contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method by reference to
the value of work carried out during the year as
determined by quantitative surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when
the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of interest can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+—-HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values using the fair value model. All of
the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property

An investment property is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when it is evidenced by the
commencement of owner-occupation. The fair
value, at the date of transfer, which is the deemed
cost of the property for subsequent accounting is
in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and
equipment”. The property interest held under an
operating lease which is previously classified as
investment property under the fair value model is
continued to account for as a finance lease after the
transfer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land
and buildings held for own use are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+—-HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front
payments to lease medium-term leasehold land
interests in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Inventories
Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes land cost, development costs and directly
attributable costs including, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBFK &)

(Continued)
Inventories (Continued)
Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties
and are classified under current assets. They are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs relating to the development of properties,
comprising prepaid lease payments for lands and
development costs, are included in properties held
for development for sale until such time when they
are completed. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all anticipated cost to be
incurred in marketing and selling.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and
costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by surveys of work
performed. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that
the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt
is considered probable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts
(Continued)

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts
receivable on contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts payable on contract
work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability,
as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under progress payments receivable or
debtors.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+-HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the two categories, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”) and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are financial
assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf # 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBFK &)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
progress payments receivable, retention money
receivable, debtors, refundable deposits, amounts
due from joint ventures, amount due from an
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables,
the estimated future cash flows of the loans and
receivables have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becomes probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

o disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they
are assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHBFK 2

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

B TR (&)
MEEE (&)
B EZRE ()

HPBEEAENRESESERERM
BEEREEDFEHHRE  HERWFIEZ
RREESE B BHEIRIE LR - BRI
TR BT A U B - A 54 38 1 BR PO
5 o BIEC MMV FRMAE R YL E - A§ 5T
ABEA - BBERZIRAEZBNERR
T

AN ATE M BEEMS -
HEMBRESESHERND  mA B
PEFELEBRBRERRENSMHE
B AIER ERRBNBEB RS ERER
TR HEZEEERDBEE B NER
EEFSBBMERZRENT #HK
Ko

MEEERRAEHZETA

HEBERERT2EERRAERETA
BRI 2 BN ZHNNE UK IR
BERRAEETAZEEMD BRYH
AEIRAERTR

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 /



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities excluding derivative financial
instruments

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, other long-term payable, amount due to
a non-controlling shareholder and bank loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fee and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf # 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBFK &)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of: the amount of the obligation
under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss of tangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+-HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment loss of tangible assets other
than goodwiill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf # 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHEE &)
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued) BE (&)
Deferred tax (Continued) EERIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, and interests in an associate and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”,
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale. Such a presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the investment
property portfolio of Group’s subsidiaries and
concluded that none of the investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the
directors of the Company have determined that the
“sale” presumption set out in the amendments to
HKAS 12 is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has
not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not
expected to have tax consequence on disposal of
those investment properties.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHBFK 2
(Continued)
Borrowing costs EE XA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deductible from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expenses when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. Details regarding the determination
of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in Note 38. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss. When
share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interest as appropriate).

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgement, apart
from those involving estimation, that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors of the Company have reviewed the
investment property portfolio of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates and concluded that
none of the investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, the directors of
the Company have determined that the “sale”
presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS
12 is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not
expected to have tax consequence on disposal of
these investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
and a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2015
at their fair value of HK$1,028,240,000 (2014:
HK$804,040,000) (note 16). The fair value was
based on valuation of these properties conducted
by independent firms of professional valuers using
property valuation techniques which involve certain
assumptions of market conditions. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group's investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contract is recognised
under the percentage of completion method which
requires estimation made by the management.
Anticipated losses are fully provided on contracts
when identified. The management estimates the
contract costs and foreseeable losses of construction
based on the budgets prepared for the contracts.
Because of the nature of the activities undertaken
in construction businesses, the management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs
in the budget prepared for each contract as the
contract progresses. Where the contract revenue
is less than expected or actual contract costs are
more than expected, additional losses may need to
be recognised. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying
amounts of amounts receivable on contract
work and amounts payable on contract work
are HK$134,805,000 and HK$243,447,000 (2014:
HK$78,844,000 and HK$208,683,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EX®ifEKRE&HAHEBEEA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade debtors

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss for trade debtors, the Group takes into
consideration its estimation of future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment loss for trade
debtors is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2015, the carrying
amount of trade debtors is HK$362,729,000 (2014:
HK$29,469,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$3,576,000 (2014: HK$10,585,000) disclosed in
note 26.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank loans disclosed in note
32, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
profits.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group wiill

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE
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balance its overall capital structure through the Zigo
payment of dividends and new share issues, as well
as the issue of new debt and the redemption of
existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. M¥EIR
Categories of financial instruments BT AER
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—B-—FHE | —=-m&
=ZA=+-8 | ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets MR EE
Investments held for trading HEEBEZRE 426 364
Loans and receivables (including &K U FIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BiERERESEH) 1,227,786 701,769
Derivative financial instruments {T4£MBE T A - 89
Financial liabilities MKas
At amortised cost YR 88 A 1,044,055 970,049
Other long-term payable Hth R HA B+ B 14,253 14,253
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
progress payments receivable, retention money
receivable, debtors, refundable deposits, amounts
due from joint ventures, amount due from an
associate, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, derivative financial instruments, trade and
other payables, other long-term payable, amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder and bank
loans.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities is
mainly HK$, the currency in which most of the
transactions are denominated.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities, included retention money receivable,
debtors, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits and derivative financial instruments, of the
group entities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:
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31.3.2015 31.3.2014
“E-RE=A=+-H —E-NE=ZRA=+—H
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =L 5E aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BYETT BT T BT T
Macau Pataca (“MOP”") RLPY 1,072 - 639 -
Australian Dollars (“"AUD") BT 55 - 83 -
Renminbi (“RMB") ARHE 69,355 - 65,147 -
United States Dollars (“USD") £t 533 - 1,684 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise. The Group uses
foreign exchange forward contracts to manage the
Group's foreign currency exposure in relation to
foreign currency forecast sales and foreign currency
denominated monetary items. The Group does not
currently designate hedging relationship on the
foreign exchange forward contracts for the purpose
of hedge accounting.

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against
foreign currencies of RMB. The financial impact
on the exchange differences among other foreign
currencies against HK$ is expected to be immaterial
to the Group. The Group is sensitivity to a 5% (2014:
5%) increase and decrease in RMB against the
functional currency of each group entity. 5% (2014:
5%) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in RMB. The sensitivity
analysis includes only the outstanding monetary
items denominated in RMB and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a
5% (2014: 5%) changes in RMB. If RMB weakening
against HK$ by 5%, the post-tax profit for the year
will decrease by approximately HK$2,896,000 (2014:
HK$2,720,000). For a 5% (2014: 5%) strength of
functional currency of each group entity against
RMB, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the post-tax profit for the year.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to the Group’s variable-rate bank loans which are
linked to the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") and bank balances at the prevailing
market deposit rate. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider the Group's
exposure of bank balances to interest rate risk is
not significant as interest bearing bank balances
are within short maturity period. The Group’s
sensitivity to interest rate risk has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank loans at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. The Group's
sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period while all other variables were held
constant is as follows:
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2015 2014
—E-HE —ZT-F
Reasonably possible change MEAREEE M B EE 50 basis 50 basis
in interest rate points points
50% 7 50%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Decrease in profit for the year as 2N £ & & gt
a result of an increase in the —HRFELFH
interest rate (2,886) (2,920)
Increase in profit for the year as 2N 5 &35 F 4 A0
a result of a decrease in the —HRFETE
interest rate 2,886 2,920
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2015 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the majority of counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with
78% (2014: 75%) of the total progress payments
receivable was due from the Group's three (2014:
three) largest customers, engaged in property
construction business in Hong Kong, within the
construction segment.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. M¥BIAR#

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group's held for trading investments include
listed equity securities in Hong Kong. These listed
equity securities are subject to market price risk. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. Details of the investments held for trading
are set out in note 28. The management considers
that the market price risks of these investments are
not significant to the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank loans
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2015, the
Group has available unutilised borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$501,215,000 (2014:
HK$397,617,000). Details of bank loans are set out
in note 32.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments that settle on a
net basis, undiscounted net cash outflows are
presented, based on the contractual maturities as
the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for any understanding of
the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR @)
Financial risk management objectives and BXREAMREEEEREE (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRER (&)
Liquidity tables B EZF*
As at 31 March 2015 R-B-HF
=A=1+-H
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or less than 1-2 2-5 undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year years years  cash flow  31.3.2015
R
—E-1f
mEFH RERY ABE =ZA=1+-H
BRAE TR-%F 128 25 BRERHAH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bak BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Non-derivative financial FITEMKERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ERRER
Hit AR - 255,697 20,876 - 276,573 276,573
Bank loans - variable rate *  SRITER-FE* 2.22 706,609 - - 706,609 691,260
Other long-term payable HEttREAEARE - - - 14,253 14,253 14,253
Amount due to a IR R NE
non-controlling shareholder - 76,222 - - 76,222 76,222
Financial guarantee contract ~ BIEEREHN - 27,100 - - 27,100 -
1,065,628 20,876 14,253 1,100,757 1,058,308
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. MBIR =
Financial risk management objectives and BERAREEEEREE (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRER (&)
Liquidity tables (Continued) HEEE K (F
As at 31 March 2014 R-2-IF
=R=t+-H
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than 1-2 2-5 undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 year years years cash flow 31.3.2014
i
—E-mE
METY RERH KEH =ZA=t-H
BRAE TR—F 126 25F RERBE EEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAK BT BT BT BT BT
Non-derivative financial FTEBNBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables EATEREtEMRE - 182,005 17,787 - 199,792 199,792
Bank loans - variable rate * BATER-FR* 1.87 712,361 - - 712,361 699,300
Other long-term payable Hit REENRE - - - 14,253 14,253 14,253
Amount due to a B FERRRRE
non-controlling shareholder - - 70,957 - 70,957 70,957
894,366 88,744 14,253 997,363 984,302

* The interest rates applied to projected undiscounted
cash flows of variable rate bank loans are the
interest rates at the end of the reporting period.

AR ERER AT /2014/2015 F3R7 /
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. M¥BIAR#

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

The amounts above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rate differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 1
year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 March 2015, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted
to HK$44,650,000 (2014: HK$78,000,000). Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans as at 31 March 2015
will be repaid within four (2014: five) years after the
reporting date in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
At that time, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to HK$47,721,000 (2014:
HK$83,192,000).

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contract is the maximum amount the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

MEEEEEEERBEE &)

RBESER (&)
MBEEZ (#)

PR ARTTEMBREFIETIAZS
B BRFER RSB ERNREHRE
B2 NREHEZERFHED -

EULEHA T BSREREERK
MZBITERTIIATRERR TR —
FIBEARN R=ZE—HFE=ZA=1+—
B ZERTERZRIFTREASLER
7B #44,650,000T (ZE—0F B
78,000,000t ) ° 5F & A & B =2 B % ik
N EBEENFRAEBRITSITEERIE
RERNBFER EEHE REEEE
NBEMBCERERAHR ZER =
E-HFE=ZA=+—HHRTERSER
HEAMENFE (ZZ2—NF AF)R
EBE -ER FERIERERNEEES
BB#A7,721,000T (ZE—OF B
83,192,0007T) °

LB BIERE QAT AN SRR NY
FHEERESERARERBLZHFAE
NE2EEREENRSEHE - RENKRS
HARWEY  NEERBRTEBARE
ZHXAEA SRR - AT WWIRMEFTRF
HEIRBERREEPROTEEME
MLt AT RE M B FRIERE FAEA N

BURREEEZFERE-
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices and ask prices respectively;

o the fair value of derivative financial
instruments of foreign currency forward
contracts are determined using quoted
forward exchange rates and yield curves from
quoted interest rates matching with maturities
of the contracts; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

6. M¥BEIR &)
ANEE

MREERMBEEEZAFELNRTY
HREE:

o HEERIRRKHRERBERT
SEENMEEERUKEEZD
FEAFNSEBHSMBENEAE
REHEEE,;

s INEHESHNITEMBIAZAY
E2REPEREERRBESHNE
i B FT 3R A R 2 W as AR GTE S

o HtMBEERUBEEGE (FTET
BB 2 A FERBERMER
ERDFINOREBRAEE -

RAREBERR RESUBHRRRHE
BASIRzMBEERMBEEZRE
EEEAFERSE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z2-AF=A=+-BLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. M¥BIAR#

Fair value (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values
of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

DNYE (&)

BEREERNATEHEZ AEE
MBEERMBAMNATE

TEEBIMBEERMBEERE
HHREQ SF{E.E‘I’E°T%%E§;¢€E%#
EZENKEERWKEBAFEZA
E(RERFAZGERMTRE AZE)
URRATFETTEMAZH 2 TEBRERRZ
EXATEFESBZAFEZRER
(BE—Z=R)z2EH-

s FE-RAOFVEMEDRBEMEREE
FRENERT ISP TRER (K
KRGS,

o BN FEFEIIRE—HRFTA
ZHBEN REEENEBETEE
(BER)RBEE (BERITE)R
B A ABHEH K&

s BZRLNFEMAERERBSIMR
BUBEchmBENNEEREE
ZBARE (TUBEEHAZE) W
HERMEHNAFETE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. HWEIR »#)

Fair value (Continued) NFE (B

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and REREMBEEUATEHAEZEAEE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair BHREERMBEBENATE (&)

value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) and
Financial assets 31.3.2015 hierarchy  key input(s)
R-ZE—HF
=A=t+—8H
MBEE ZA¥E AFERER HEFERTERASHY
Investments held for HK$426,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.
trading (2014:
- Listed equity securities HK$364,000)
in Hong Kong
BEEEZRE 7 %426,0007T B SERMISEARE-
-REBLTZ (Z=2—m&F:
IRA" 5 7 5364,0007T)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+-HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.
Fair value (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value
hierarchy

Fair value as at
31.3.2015
R-E-1F
=ZA=t+-82
AT

Valuation technique(s) and
key input(s)

Financial
liabilities

AT

MBEE ER HEAEREEGARE

HEIR =)
DR (#)

BREEMHEZENAFEFEZFARH
MBEERMBEBNDFE (A)

Relationship of
Significant unobservable inputs to
unobservable input(s) fair value

EATTRE FUBRGALY
LN 3 | EATEZBE

Discounted cash flow.
Future cash flows are
estimated based on

the probability that

the specified level of
accumulated net profit
after tax of the project
carried out by the joint
venture can be achieved
within the time specified
and the expected rate
of return applied by the
Group to the project.

HK$14,253,000
(2014:
HK$14,253,000)

Other long-term Level 3

payable (note)

The Group determined
such probability based

on the profit forecast of
the project carried out

by the joint venture. Key
assumptions for the profit
forecast included pre-

tax profit margin of the
project.

BRASR - RRRER 2 b
ENERGELEMET
BEERBERBAEEETE
P2 B HEFRNNT
EMRASERZER IR

EESEECE

FEEREZAEERER

SELEMETNEREZR
NFEH - BNER 2 2R3

BREWER ZBAIRBER.

HttRAEN
OB (Krat)

B#14,253,0000 F=H
(ZE-ME: B
#£14,253,0007T)

Note:No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of
changes in the relevant unobservable data under
discounted cash flow as the management considers
that the exposure is insignificant to the Group.

Expected rate of return
applied by the Group
and pre-tax profit
margin of the project
carried out by the
joint venture.

The higher the
expected rate of
return applied by the
Group, the slightly
lower the fair value.

FEERRzARERE FAEERAAHRHE
RELEMETNEE M5 ATELAKAR
ZBRIAER. f&o

Wi ERERBHRMRRSAT AN
FTBRRUBERE N EHAEE L
THE AHEEEEEHE RBE

D e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

In estimating the fair values of long-term payable,
the Group uses discounted cash flows method and
has taken into account of management’s experience
and knowledge of market conditions of property
development industry in the PRC when determine
key unobservable inputs to the discount cash flows.
The designated team reviews the pre-tax profit
margin of the project carried out by the joint
venture to determine the probability and calculate
expected rate of return applied by the Group.
Where there is material change in the fair value of
the long-term liability, the cause of the fluctuations
will be reported to the management of the Group.

There was no transfer among Level 1, 2 and 3
during the current and prior years.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial liabilities

There is no movement in the fair value of the other
long-term payable in the current and prior years.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

HEIR =%
NEE (&)

BEEMEEUATEFEBZAEEE
BEERMBEENQTVE (&)

AEEGERPBESHENDFEDER
RBRBAESRTE RREERRESR
NEBATERRASHRCZEER
BHDEMERRTEDT R ZERKA
R EEREEMSEREMETHNER
B2BAa A ERUREATRMERE
EARAEENENDKRE - ERPEE
NAFEHREAESS 2R 2 RE S
ENAEEEREER-

RAFERBEFE F—R F-RK
BZRoBARBER-

KRAEBAANGEE M B HMR IR

BASIRzMBEERMBEEZRE
EHEEQAFERSE-

E=ZRLATVEMETZHBEEHER

RAFERBEFE  HiRBBMRIA
ZRFEHITEZE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+-HLEE

7. TURNOVER 7.

Turnover represents the aggregate of the revenue
earned from construction contract work, interior
and renovation contracts, supply and installation
of building materials, sales of health products,
gross rental income from property investment, sale
of properties and provision of property agency
and management services during the year, and is
analysed as follows:

ERE

EEBREFARBEESNTIRE KR
HEEHN HERZEEENE  HER
BEM YMEREHEBSWA  PXH
EREHMERER EERBHRE 2K
AZBEIHTWOT :

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-nmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue from construction BESHIRZBA
contract work 1,040,254 1,006,992
Revenue from interior and HEREBEHNZBA
renovation contracts 286,104 50,844
Sale of building materials EEMBZEHESH 13,232 25,769
Revenue from contracts for TERBEMBENZIA
installation of building materials 240,102 213,922
Sale of health products BREEMZEHESH 56,357 55,283
Rental income from property MEREZHESWRA
investment 25,864 26,583
Sale of properties MEZHESH 422,806 233,084
Property agency and MERBEREERBE WA
management service income 10,435 14,048
2,095,154 1,626,525

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into seven operating
divisions: construction, interior and renovation
works, supply and installation of building materials,
sales of health products, property investment,
property development and provision of property
agency and management services. These divisions
are the basis on which the Group reports its
financial information internally and are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance.

iR BB R M aE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

8. #MEH

FEEIREEHERESRHCHE BE R
RS TR ZEMBHERZE
BEEMZHEE MERE NERRERY
EREREERE 2EHE - AREUALS
DPEAEERERNMTBER LA RF
HITES (REBRLEREE)FENE
B DB S 2 BB 2 ER R EDEE
ZERB

(a) Segment revenues and results (a) 7BHWARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's UTARERERLE T BZNAR
revenue and results by operating segment: EEDW:
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-Z-AF=A=+—HL#HF
E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management total ~ Eliminations Consolidated
NERE
BE  RHRER BEMH BRER NERE NERE RER FEAH e g8
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RETR  BRTn RETR RRTR ARTR ARTR ARTR ARTR BRI BRI
TURNOVER FE=
External sales HOEE 1,040,254 286,104 253,334 56,357 25,864 422,806 10435 2,005,154 - 2,005,154
Inter-segment sales VEES A 76,113 205,012 14,570 36 1431 - 7809 30497 (304,971) -
Total @ 1,116,367 491,116 267,904 56,393 21,295 422,806 18,244 2,400,125 (304971) 2,095,154
Intersegment salesare  AEEBEZHEN
charged by referenceto  $E B
market prices.
RESULTS £ |
Segment result PEEE 35,734 282 33724 2428 340,973 85,195 624 520,920 - 520,920
Unallocated expenses FABLZE (9,450)
Profit before taxation BHAER 511470
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K M 5T
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. A¥EH &)
(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued) (a) PEWRAREE (&
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-Z-—NF=A=+—HLHF
E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment

Construction  renovation materials products ~ir development t total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated

NERE

BE  EHREE  BIIH BEER MERE DERR REER  2EEH s &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  B®TR B®TR B%Tn B%Tn #%Tn #%Tn B%Tn B%Tn B%Tx

TURNOVER f1]

External sales HHE 1,006,992 50,844 239,691 55,283 26,583 233,084 14,048 1626525 - 1626505
Inter-segment sales PEEBHZEE 144,518 163,674 17,500 - 1,748 - 3,147 330,587 (330,587) -
Total oty 1,151,510 214,518 257,191 55,283 28331 233,084 17195 1957112 (330587 1626525

Intersegment salesare A EEBEZHEN
charged by referenceto ~ $E B E.

market prices.

RESULTS ES |

Seqment resut HERH s 3 3B 266 oM 7040 1w S W
Unallocated expenses FABRL (3,065)
Profit before taxation BBAER 179322
The accounting policies of the operating EREN BB BT BERELREE
segments are the same as the Group's ZEHBE B (HAKMEI) -5
accounting policies described in note 3. BXBEARBEIBEEZ¥E
Segment results represent the results WARDERBREBEETERZ
from each segment without allocation of M A R Z TR AR otk Th [l S @
administration costs incurred by head office FEERERAREZHRUAEER D
and the inactive subsidiaries. This is the FRFRRFEZER

measure reported to the chief operating
decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. HEEH =&
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PHEEEHEEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's UTAXREERREDEZEER
assets and liabilities by operating segment: BEIN:
As at 31 March 2015 R=-FE—HF=A=+—8
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management Consolidated
NERE
BE  RHREE BEMH BEER nER%E NERE REE &
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETR B¥TR BETL RETT B¥TR E¥TR BETL RETR
ASSETS &
Segment assets PREE 467,602 143,281 208,209 44,455 1,194,155 1,294,733 95,645 3,448,080
Unallocated assets FABEE 7,39
Consolidated assets GREE 3455472
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities HEER 412,392 110,306 204,515 3873 350,413 445,228 811 1,521,538
Unallocated liabilities AARER 110875
Consolidated liabilities GE8E 1638413
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-AFZA=+—-HLHEFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8. NEEH &)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) " EEEHRESE (&)
As at 31 March 2014 R-ZE-NE=A=+—H
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management  Consolidated
NERE
BE  LBREE  BEME  RRER NERE L REE G4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BUTR  BETR  B%fR EETR BUTR  B¥TR MR BETR
ASSETS g
Segment assets PEEE 421,688 59,714 164,194 37,352 871,555 1,112,136 93,278 2,759,917
Unallocated assets FIBEE 1,999
Consolidated assets GREE 2761916
LIABILITIES 8f
Segment liabilities PEER 387,498 2751 88,927 4,130 355,243 466,436 808 1,330,553
Unallocated liabilities AIRERE 78,112
Consolidated liabilities SREE 1,408,665

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than central bank
balances and cash of head office and
other inactive subsidiaries, taxation
recoverable and deferred tax assets; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other payables of
head office and the inactive subsidiaries,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.

REESERRRDEBNERD
[

BRI R H B A S TER

MELRNPRERZRITE

SRR IRE  WR M IR KR

%RIEEE% FREENDE
J /\*’E &

BRI EBEE TR RIE
DA E AL TRE - BAH
EREERBESEN AR
B EIEXSE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(c) Other information

Year ended 31 March 2015

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

ARE BRI R
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-—HFZA=Z+—-HLEE

8. NEEH &)
() HiEHR

BE-_FE—HF=A=+—HLHE

E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management Consolidated
NERE
BE  RHREE BEMY BEER NERE NERR REE 58
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EMTn  EMTR BRTn EMTn B¥Tn AT E¥Tn BT
Amounts included in the measure BEES BEERNBEECLE:
of segment results or segment
assets:
Depreciation of property, nE BEREEZNE

plant and equipment 1,785 38 20 561 462 - 2480 5,546
Gain on change in fair value of ~ RENEZ AFERBzUEH

investment properties - - - - (355,902) - - (355,902)
Gain on change in fair value o~ HFEEREZATEEB 2 U

investments held for trading (62) - - - - - - (62)
Gain on change in fair value of ~ HTEBBTEZAFES Bz W&

derivative financial instruments - - (6) - - - - (6)
Reversal of impairment loss BREZRUSENESERR

recognised on trade debtors - - (7,009) - - - - (7,009)
Gain on disposal of property,  HENE BERRHE2 NS

plant and equipment (362) - - (4) - - - (366)
Interest income FISKA - - (24) ) - (1 (1,545) (1.587)
Share of profit of an associate ~ AMEEE A F&F - - - - (5,249) - - (5,249)
Share of (profit) loss of joint MeRELE (BF) BB

ventures (6,668) - - - - 4,236 - (2432)
Finance costs BBER - - 628 - 5712 1,587 - 1921
Additions to non-current assets  FEFRBEE (M)

(note) 3,576 - 1,649 962 7,288 - 29 13,504
Interest in an associate BeENAzER - - - - 26223 - - 26223
Interests in joint ventures RELEVER 7,485 - - - - 179,673 - 187,158
Amounts regularly provided to the FEEE S E£EETHER

chief operating decision makers ST TAERRE 245

but not included in the measure

of segment results:

Income tax expenses ik 4473 3532 426 3 502 14,624 419 24,008
Note:Non-current assets exclude pledged bank MizE: FRBDEETBEDIEMERIT

deposits, deferred tax assets, interest in an
associate and interests in joint ventures.

FRHCEEREEE BHEQT
ZEEREE R EE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_Z-AF=ZA=+t—-HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

B R MY o

8. NEEH &)

(c) Other information (Continued) () HtEHR (&)
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-—Z-—NF=A=+—HLF
E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management  Consolidated
NERR
BE  EBREE  EEAMR BRER NERE  NEER REE G4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
B¥Tn  B#Tn EETn BETn E¥Tn B¥Tn EETn BETr
Amounts included in the measure  BEE S BEERI BEEZEE:
of segment results or segment
assets:
Depreciation of property, nE BEREENE

plant and equipment 1,919 38 268 528 1,170 - 2,546 6,469
Gain on change in fair value of ~ RENEZATEE Bz W

investment properties - - - - (55,736) - - (55,736)
Loss on change in fair value of ~ BFEBEZREZAFEZBER

investments held for trading 8 - - - - - - 8
Gain on change in fair value of BRI Ez AFEZE 25

derivative financial instruments - - (72) - - - - (72)
Impairment loss recognised on ~ EEZEUFEREFE

trade debtors - - 4,936 - - - - 4,936
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEW% BEREEZ (W) FE

plant and equipment (2,200) - - 6 (27,363) - (23) (29,580)
Gain on disposal of assets HESEAKELERE 2 A

classified as held for sale - - - - (4,000) - - (4,000
Interest income FEWA - - @1 1) (32 - (1,374) (1,448)
Share of loss of an associate PMEBELTFE - - - - 264 - - 264
Share of profit of joint ventures 254 & ¥ (3,448) - - - - (82) - (3.530)
Finance costs BBER - - 1479 - 5,691 566 - 1736
Additions to non-current assets  FEFABDEE ()

(note) - - 2,624 84 4,163 - 5 6,876
Interest in an associate BeNFER - - - - 20,974 - - 20,974
Interests in joint ventures RELECER 3417 - - - - 152,157 - 155,574
Amounts regularly provided to the T2 RS BEEBEHER

chief operating decision makers ~ #FERERFEZSE!

but not included in the measure

of segment results:

Income tax expenses ik 5] 1,857 54 466 - 2570 9,397 49 15,306

Note:Non-current assets exclude pledged bank M FRBDEETBECIEMRT
deposits, deferred tax assets, interest in an FRCEEBREEE BHEQR
associate and interests in joint ventures. ZRERREELE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. {WEH )
(c) Other information (Continued) () Htt&EHR (#)
Geographical information & &R
The Group’s turnover which is generated AEENEXERBEB (K
from customers located in Hong Kong, the AR EHE)NEF HAEH
Company'’s place of domicile, amounted to WARBEEZEF BN EREU
HK$2,080,311,000 (2014: HK$1,567,292,000). HWEMSIENEXEE— DD
Accordingly, no further analysis of the Group's M- REBBEFNEXBERBY
turnover by geographical market based on 2,080,311,000T (= ZE— W& : &
geographical location of customers has been #%1,567,292,0007T) °©
prepared.
The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets AEBEFRBEERBEE 21
by geographical location of assets is presented NESMHMAT (&) :
as follows (Note):
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE-MmF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong (place of 58 ()
domicile) 1,136,609 903,245
The PRC i 180,314 155,492
1,316,923 1,058,737
Note:Interest in an associate and interests in joint Mizt: BMELARZERREELEZ
ventures are analysed by geographical location BEDRIUES KL NE
of their respective operations. NEEDH -
Non-current assets excluded pledged bank FRBEEFBESIEMRIT
deposits and deferred tax assets. FREELEBEBEEE-

B AIEIZER AR AT /2014/2015 F3R /



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Other information (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years individually contributing over 10% of the

8. NEEH &)

(9]

Hi&EH (&)

BAREEEFZEHR

REEFER EMEBEBREER
EXRBF10%2@EREFEF WA

total turnover of the Group is as follows: T
2015 2014
—E-AHF -k
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Customer A (note) FBEER (M) 252,296 81,505
Customer B (note) EEEZ (MEE) 235,893 -
Customer C (note) FEER (M) —* 327,543
Customer D (note) EEZET (MfEE) —* 269,519
488,189 678,567

Note:Revenue from construction contracts income

within the construction segment.

* The corresponding revenue does not
contribute over 10% of the total turnover of

the Group in the respective year.

Mt REEZEIEIEEANZK

Ao

* REBRFER  HAEKRASRE
THBAREBEMALEELEI0%
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

OTHER INCOME 9. HftUgrA
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Other income includes: Hih W A 84 :
Dividend income =R PN 7 6
Interest income FE WA 1,587 1,448
Storage income FRWA 327 325
Sales of scrap materials BEREE 957 1,043
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BERZE2ZKRR
plant and equipment 366 29,580
Gain on disposal of assets HESEABFHEEE 2 A
classified as held for sale - 4,000
FINANCE COSTS 10. UBEA
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest on: UTZRE:
Bank loans wholly repayable ERAFREBHEEZ
within five years (including BITER (BERERE
bank loan with repayment on ERRZBITER)
demand clause) 14,111 15,475
Less: Amount capitalised WBRRP2EEYE
in properties under = N e -
development for sale (6,184) (7,739)
7,927 7,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

1. BRRAER

2015 2014
—E-RfF —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation has been  BRFAVEFSMBRE (5T A) -
arrived at after charging and
(crediting):
Directors’ emoluments EEME (MFEE123))
(note 12(i))
Fees we 975 775
Other emoluments Hibj < 14,627 13,905
Equity-settled share-based UESEER
payments LU 24 2 I8 3,616 -
19,218 14,680
Other staff costs Hih & T A
Salaries and other benefits HFeREMER 249,642 197,357
Equity-settled share-based URESEER
payments LU0 2 A4 2 78 2,133 -
Retirement benefits scheme BRRERFH B
contributions 12,156 11,795
Total staff costs incurred EEEZETIRAERE 283,149 223,832
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11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

1. BRRBEF &)

2015 2014
—E-H5E | —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Depreciation of property, ME BERREBZITE
plant and equipment 5,546 6,469
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN € 2,380 2,060
(Reversal of) impairment loss (B E) ERREWFIEREREE
recognised on trade debtors (7,009) 4,936
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEW % - K E & & E 2 W&
and equipment (366) (29,580)
Gain on disposal of assets HESEABFHEEE 2 WA
classified as held for sale - (4,000)
Net exchange loss FEREE 428 94
Contract costs recognised as BT AEERAK
expense in cost of sales 1,412,233 1,193,102
Costs of inventories recognised as 17 & R A5 A 5 & R AR
an expense in cost of sales 295,452 174,772
Reversal of over accrued contract REABEHRELREZ
costs upon finalisation of HBEETTE A
accounts during the year (15,399) -
Gross rental income under KREHEHS WAL
operating leases (25,864) (26,583)
Less: Direct operating expenses & RAFEREEHES WA
that generated rental mel N EEEEXH
income during the year 4,319 2,669
(21,545) (23,914)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 1. BRRAER #)
2015 2014
—E-—RE —E—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Sub-leasing income oA’ A (327) (325)
Less: Direct operating expenses B RAFEERELE AR A
that generated sub-leasing [EIEEL: =R 35S
income during the year 53 47
(274) (278)
Expenses included in cost of BERENIERARZZH:
contract work:
Depreciation e 3,527 3,345
Release of prepaid lease FEAEEREZRE
payments 219 224
Rentals under operating leases  E&HEZHE:
in respect of:
— plant and machinery — BB R 12,688 7,231
- others —Hfth 1,859 1,155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS

0)

Details of directors’ and chief
executive's remuneration are as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
eight (2014: nine) directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2015

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-—HFZA=Z+—-HLEE

1N.EF - THEERER#HS

() ATRESRTHRARENE 2

EALR

ENFIEMGNE(ZE-EF R
B)ESZERMEMT

BE-_FE—HF=A=1+—HLE

E
Other emoluments
Hitt &
Performance  Retirement

Salaries related benefits Equity-settled
and other incentive scheme share-based Total
Fees benefits payments contributions payments emoluments

NEZEE

FeR THERR RIKEF RURB
ik Hits@ A #@e AR XNZHE aMe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BRI BT BETR BETR

(Note)
(&)

Cha Mou Sing, Payson ~ &##E& 100 - - - 1,071 1171
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart & - 3,084 5,900 463 1,071 10,518
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ~ &##/& 100 - - - 535 635
Chan Pak Joe Bk 225 - - - 107 332
Lam Chat Yu WETF 100 - - - 107 207
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 27 225 - - - 83 308
Sun Tai Lun YN 225 - - - 107 332
Tai Sai Ho R - 1,939 2,950 291 535 5,715
975 5,023 8,850 754 3,616 19,218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B #3R K M 5T

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(i) Details of directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration are as follows:
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014

1N.EF - THEERER#HS

(#&)

()

LTREERTHRARMES 2
E3-RE )

EE-NFE=ZA=1+—HLHF

E
Other emoluments
Hitie

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments

HeR THERR RIEA
ik Hit g A Z@e STEMR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BETT BB T

(Note)
(&)

Cha Mou Sing, Payson ~ &#E - - - - -
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart TS - 2,940 5,600 441 8,981
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ~&##& - - - - -
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin* & e * - - - - -
Chan Pak Joe Bk 225 - - - 225
Lam Chat Yu WEF 100 - - - 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 27 225 - - - 225
Sun Tai Lun YN 225 - - - 225
Tai Sai Ho R - 1,847 2,800 277 4,924
775 4,787 8,400 718 14,680

* Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin resigned as a
director of the Company on 17 July 2013.

Note:The performance related incentive payment is
determined based on the performance of the
individual and the Group’s performance and
profitability for the year.

f"i*l{,:

ERPEER-Z-—=FtA
TLtEBREAQAESHK-

THERRRBESERBEZFEN

BAZRBARAEB 2 EERE

MEEHMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(i) Details of directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration are as follows:
(Continued)

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart is the Managing
Director of the Company who undertakes the
roles and duties equivalent to a chief executive
and his emoluments disclosed above included
those for services rendered by him in this
capacity.

No director waived any emolument for both
years.

(i) Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid
individuals included two directors (2014: two
directors), details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2014: three) highest paid individuals
were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

1N.EF - THEERER#HS

(#)

()

(if)

LTREERTHRARMES 2
E3-RE )]

ITHERERARANESAL
B-HAGKBBERTHRAR
LU ESIH N £ B SR s i
EMREHERBHOME-

TR Lk R 118 F 2 0 48 25 55 T4 3R A 1)
ﬁ o

EBEME

rEE DEBReHFALTEEMA
ES(ZZ-NF MBES) &
MEBEBCHMESHBEHENR LT -H
B=F(ZZ-—NF . =R)Bo
ATz T :

2015 2014
—E-HE —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other benefits ¥ < & HAiEFl 3,108 2,880
Performance related ITERBREBS
incentive payments 3,250 3,100
Retirement benefits scheme B {KIE R 5+ BIE K
contributions 466 432
Equity-settled share-based  LUEZEE R
payments AR 10 24 2 7R I8 382 -
7,206 6,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(i) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees
were within the following bands:

NR.EF - THEERERHN:

(#&)

(i) EEM<E &)

LiES 2BEBR T SI4A R :

2015 2014

—E-0F —E-IF

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 ##51,500,0017T — /&%52,000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 ##52,000,0017T — & %52,500,0007T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 & #2,500,0017T —&%3,000,0007T 1 1

During the year, no emolument was paid by
the Group to the directors or highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon

RAFE AEFLTEOQESHR
SEHEEXNME FEABEMA
REBEHMARER 2 R - B

joining the Group or as compensation for loss BwE-
of office.
13. TAXATION 13. B
2015 2014
—B-—FHE | —=-m&
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBREH
Current year KEFEE 23,749 13,697
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (142) (327)
23,607 13,370
Deferred taxation (note 33) IERERTE (MfEE33) 401 1,936
24,008 15,306

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

W 1B F 2 BB RSB LG FT R BLE

FH16.5% =T 1RE 1 -
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13. TAXATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
Profits tax arising in the PRC is calculated at 25% on
the assessable profits for both years. e

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as follows:

13. BB (&)

HHEMBA ZERAEENHBNEER
AERE R RE - MEFERSD
Bl £ 2 P B LURERRBUE R 19 25% 5T

FERBEHEGSBERR ZBRBANG RS
BRIIF :

2015 2014
—E—-EHF —ZE-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Profit before taxation PR AT R 511,470 179,322
Tax at the domestic income tax AT BHFH £16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—MF:16.5%) 2 1E 84,393 29,588
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss FEMLEE AT CEF) A2
of an associate Mg E (866) 43
Tax effect of share of profit of  EHEECE G HBETE
joint ventures (401) (582)
Tax effect of expenses that are ~ AEEERBIER B R HE 2
not deductible in determining THBRBEEE
taxable profit 5,174 1,779
Tax effect of income that is not  REFERBEREHERH 2
taxable in determining WAZRBELE
taxable profit (59,224) (14,674)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax EBAZARERZREBEZ
losses previously not recognised ~ Bii& & (5,725) (950)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERZHBEEEZHERE
recognised 766 1,362
Tax effect of different tax rates of B A AR EM T EZEEEEMN
subsidiaries operating in other FRBE BB E
jurisdictions 33 (933)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (142) (327)
Taxation for the year FERE 24,008 15,306
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. R &
Dividends recognised as distribution during the FREBRIREDRZRELT:
year:
2015 2014
—E-afF —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Ordinary shares: EER:
Interim dividend for 2015 —E-hFFHERE
- HK2.1 cents per share —BRBE2.1ML
(2014: HK 1.8 cents per share (ZE—mOF:ZZE—-mF
for 2014) ERBEE1.81L) 11,263 9,654
Final dividend for 2014 —E-MERERE
- HK3.2 cents per share —BRBE3.210L
(2014: HK3.2 cents per share (ZZE—&F:
for 2013) —E-=FERBE3.201) 17,162 17,162
28,425 26,816
A final dividend of HK3.4 cents per share totalling ESEERBRBE-_ZE-—0LFZ=A
not less than HK$18,234,000 in respect of the year Et+—HLEFEZRERESREE34
ended 31 March 2015 (2014: final dividend of il & HF DA BHE18,234,0007T (=F
HK3.2 cents per share totalling HK$17,162,000 in —mE BE-ZT-NF=ZA=1t—HL
respect of the year ended 31 March 2014) has been FEZARERESRBEI2 &1B
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval #517,162,000T) - BEZZ R EBFRE
by the shareholders at forthcoming annual general REEERITRRBFRE Lt
meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year attributable to owners of the
Company based on the following data:

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

15. BRER

RRBFEEARGFAERESREE
BRATIRELUT BEHE:

2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-MF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of basic FALUFTEESREARR
and diluted earnings per share  #EEZRERINEF| 419,202 155,698
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E-mF
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares igrig: 4=
Weighted average number of RAUGESRERBFRN
ordinary shares for the purpose & IR hn#EF 19 &
of basic earnings per share 536,316 536,316
Effect of dilutive potential BEEEZERNEE:
ordinary shares:
Adjustment in relation to share ~ BIAA R BITHEREFELNFARE
options issued by the Company 473
Weighted average number of AUGHESRBERFN
ordinary shares for the purpose  EERINEF I
of diluted earnings per share 536,789

There was no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the year ended 31 March 2014.

REBE-_E—NE=A=1+—HLEE
AT ENNEBE RS 2 E B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REWE

HK$'000

BET T
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 April 2013 N-—E—=6mA—H 747,090
Additions PN 1,214
Gain on change in fair value NP EEE W 55,736
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-—NE=A=+—H 804,040
Additions PN 6,708
Disposals k== (138,410)
Gain on change in fair value ANFEEZB 2 WS 355,902
At 31 March 2015 R-B—-HE=ZB=+—H 1,028,240

The carrying value of investment properties
represents properties in Hong Kong under medium-
term leases and long lease of HK$508,240,000
(2014: HK$459,040,000) and HK$520,000,000 (2014:
HK$345,000,000) respectively.

REVMECEHBEREMNREBZYP
HEENRHBHEHENE EED B
7B #5508,240,0000T (=& — [ F . B ¥
459,040,000t ) & & #520,000,0007T
(ZZ— 45 : #B%345,000,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2015 and 2014 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (“JLL"), an independent
property valuer not connected with the Group. JLL
has appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation of properties amounting to
HK$131,200,000 (2014: HK$118,000,000) was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices of similar properties. The valuation of other
properties amounting to HK$897,040,000 (2014:
HK$686,040,000) was arrived at by reference to the
income capitalisation method which is based on
the capitalisation of the net income potential by
adopting an appropriate capitalisation rate, which
is derived from analysis of sale transactions and
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations.

Summary of fair value hierarchy and Level 3
fair value measurements

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. All investment properties of
the Group are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair
value measurement.

There are no transfers between different levels
within the fair value hierarchy during both years.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

16. REWXE (#)

AEBZRENER-_Z—HF=A
=t+t—HBR-ZZE-NF=ZA=+—HZ
ATFEDEBLYEMEMFPEEHTE
RAR ([fhEET]) (BEAREE I EE
HE)REAZHEB HEBRTAES
BERBRNAHEEEBELEREEY
FXETHE - SZTREVEZTERSE
BAEE 2 Y EEEHE%131,200,000T
(ZZ— M4 :8%118,000,0007T) ; ¥
AWABRZERG AGEZHMYEE
{8 % 78 %5897,040,0005t (=& — M4 :
7 #5686,040,0007T) * b 5 E R R IB IR
AEANERLL R BEWRANFEE
EXRL ERHEERZONMHNERRE
F 2 SR oh 78 HA R T 5] B 2R AN o

Z

bl

AFESARE=ZRAVFE
BE

REBFRAUEERERNFE LR
HESHERBERBEN ZWEERER
BAREMFE YERATFERXIIER
AEBRERENEEREBEE=RDQF
BEFfEM(E-

RWEFERNLELFESRERER
BIRETR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-AFZA=+—-HLHEFE

16. REWE (#)
B=ZHREESE
TREJNEATABERGASEY

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Level 3 valuation methodologies

Below is a table which presents the significant
unobservable inputs:

Investment properties held by
the Group in the consolidated
statement of financial position Fair value Significant unobservable inputs (Note (b))
REERBRRRT
rRBREZRENE NYE BEXATUBEZHAZH (K b)
Direct comparison method Adjusted market price per square foot (Note (a))
BEEbET BRENSTHRTE (WE@E)
Agricultural HK$131,200,000 HK$198 - HK$450
(2014: HK$118,000,000) (2014: HK$200 - HK$429)
30 #%1#131,200,0007T %1987 - B #4507
(Z2-mE: (25— BH00T-5%4297)
75#118,000,0007T)
Capitalisation approach Capitalisation rate Market rent (per square foot)
(Note (c)) (Note ()
EALAE EA{tE (Hi(Q) mERE (8XAR) (KE()
Commercial HK$532,960,000 3.50% - 5.00% HK$15.00 to HK$56.50
(2014: HK$357,430,000) (2014: 4.50% - 5.00%) (2014: HK$11.50 to HK$52.30)
[GE #1#532,960,0007T 3.50%—5.00% 7 #15.007-% #56.507T
(ZZ2-mf: (ZZ-MF: 450%-5.00%) (ZZ—WE B¥11.50 - B%52301)
7 ¥357,430,0007)
Industrial HK$364,080,000 4.00% - 5.50% HK$6.50 to HK$14.60
(2014: HK$328,610,000) (2014: 4.25% - 6.50%) (2014: HK$4.84 to HK$13.00)
1% 75%364,080,0007C 4.00%—5.50% 6505514607
(Z2-mE: (Z2-%:4.25%-6.50%) (22— B%4.847-B¥13.007)
75#328,610,0007T)
Note: &t
(a) Adjusted market price per square foot has taken into (a) RKAENBIFHIRMEDZRZMEN
account of property — specific adjustment including EERAZE BEVE - THEERTS

ERGRE KB -

location, land quality and timing of reference
transaction.

REMFEZ A FEFEETEESRE

RENEBFARTEZ2EEAEENE M
BEAt 2 B EARRM -

(b)  Fair value measurement of investment properties is (b)
positively correlated to the market rent and adjusted
market price per square foot and negatively
correlated to the capitalisation rate.
(0 ZERMASEZEREDHEHATE
FFEXEEARTE-

()  Asignificant change in these inputs would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

iR BB R M aE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

17. NE - -BERZRE

Leasehold Furniture
land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor
buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
HELH
kEF BERRE HGAREE % RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BET T BET T BET T BET T
COST B
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE-=FWA-A 103,754 73,909 17,989 14,907 13,226 223,785
Exchange adjustments EXRE (85) 31 (14) - (17 (147)
Additions hE 360 1,184 793 2,815 510 5,662
Disposals HE (31,065) (6,000) (80) (3,154) (316) (40,615)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NE=B=1+—-A 72,964 69,062 18,688 14,568 13,403 188,685
Exchange adjustments ExHE (248) (138) 32 )} (15) (435)
Additions hE 944 2,977 1,178 1,222 475 6,796
Disposals HE - (1,243) (297) (334) (1,672) (3,546)
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-RE=ZA=+-H 73,660 70,658 19,537 15,454 12,191 191,500
DEPRECIATION AND TERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2013 R=Z-=FENA—H 16,125 66,719 12,905 10,005 9,690 115,444
Exchange adjustments EXRE (40) (24) (1) - (6) (81)
Provided for the year FERE 3,679 1,307 1,690 1,936 1,202 9,814
Eliminated on disposals HE R (1,205) (6,000) (62) (425) (160) (7,852)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-ME=A=+-H 18,559 62,002 14,522 11,516 10,726 117,325
Exchange adjustments ERRE (62) (67) (25) - ) (162)
Provided for the year FERE 2,894 1,523 1,665 2,011 980 9,073
Eliminated on disposals 5 B - (1,243) (297) (334) (1,656) (3,530)
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE-AF=A=+-H 21,391 62,215 15,865 13,193 10,042 122,706
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-1F=A=1—-H 52,269 8,443 3,672 2,261 2,149 68,794
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+-H 54,405 7,060 4,166 3,052 2,677 71,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ - BERSZE &)

(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment UEMZ BERZREEE DEREBEER
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the EREEUGERE FHOT:

following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of HELH# BEBENRE®FH

and buildings the relevant lease period REF H-t+ZH+F

from 20 to 50 years

Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of 1 FRHEAERFEFRRNAF

improvements the lease period or 5 years (UBREERE)
Other assets 5 years Hth&E HF
The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings BRADERE{B B #522,255,000T (ZF—M
comprises properties in Hong Kong except for 1 8%22,908,0007T) (U AR EI K E T
certain buildings amounting to HK$22,255,000 BFHN HETHREFHREBNYEAL
(2014: HK$22,908,000) which are located in the PRC. BN EBRFENYERTHEE -

The properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC
are under medium-term leases.

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. A EFKE
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-FHE —E-mE
=ZA=+—-H | ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T HBEET T
The Group's prepaid lease AEBZRHEERERERE:

payments represent:

Leasehold land in the PRC RPBEZHEE L
Medium-term lease hHEAEE 6,727 7,013
Analysed for reporting UHRERBWNZOHM:
purposes as:
Current asset MEBEE 219 224
Non-current asset ERBEE 6,508 6,789

6,727 7,013
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B 5 HR R MY o

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. BBE QT Z2ER

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
= -k
=B=+—-H | ZBR=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Cost of unlisted investment in an REfE QAT LEHIRE 2 KA
associate 16,576 16,576
Share of post-acquisition profit, 2 {EUNEEE 2 &EF
net of dividends received (HKREWwZRrRE) 9,647 4,398
26,223 20,974
Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 March 2015 R-B-RAF=A=+—-BR=Z—@O
and 2014 are as follows: FZA=1+—BEREEBE AR ZFE
M
Place of Attributable
incorporation interest and
Form of and principal proportion of
business place of Class of voting power Principal
Name of associate structure operation shares held held by the Group activity
ARE
AMRLLER  AERG FEME R AR K
BENT2ER ERRBEA TEEXME £ SR FTEER
2015 2014
“E-RF | ZE-WF
Hoi Bun Godown Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property
Company Limited company investment
BEERBRAF BIRQF] BB EBER MERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements,
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

19. BBERQNT 2R (&)

REBBENR Y BENRBEEHS W
T TIMBERBRIIRBE B R
HEAGRG 2BE QRN BRERATE

HHo

Bt N RERERER
RARRe

ZEFEMBE

2015 2014
—E-AHF -k
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Total assets EEHE 57,058 46,565
Total liabilities BEH%E (4,612) (4,617)
Net assets BEEFE 52,446 41,948
Group's share of net assets of rEBREEBEAREEFE
the associate 26,223 20,974
Revenue PN 15,373 681
Profit (loss) for the year TEERR (BE) 10,498 (528)
Group's share of profit (loss) and ZANEE E(LEiZ A T
other comprehensive income REERA (FE)R
(expense) of the associate HZ2mEBA (ZH)
for the year 5,249 (264)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. EEECES
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-HF —E-F
=A=+—8 | =B=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Cost of unlisted investments in REeEtEFEETREZHAK
joint ventures 148,302 115,977
Share of post-acquisition profit 2 {ENEBEER K
and other comprehensive Hib 2w A
income, net of dividends (HKREWwzZR’RE)
received 10,402 11,143
158,704 127,120
Loan to a joint venture —HeELEZER 28,454 28,454
187,158 155,574

Loan to a joint venture is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment.
The Group has no intention to exercise its right to
demand repayment of this loan within the twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.
The directors believe the settlement of this loan
is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future as
they are, in substance, a part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture as working capital
of the joint venture. Accordingly, the amount is
classified as non-current asset and included in the
Group's interests in joint ventures for the purpose
of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

—BeELECERRERT RER
BEEEERB AEEIEIRREH
RtTZEARTERREEZER2E
e BEZRHBNUTRBRZETS TR
BEE ERBELZERREEERE
S FREN D ERZSEDR
EogBEES At ZEWOERER
BEERALEBzEELE 2R
W AR S MR R
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+-HLEE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. B DEIER @)
(Continued)
Details of the Group's principal joint ventures as at R-ZB-HF=A=+-HKR=-FE—N
31 March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: FZA=1+—BEREEIENEE L
ZEBMT
Place of
Form of incorporation Class of Attributable interest and
Name of business and principal shares proportion of voting power
joint ventures structure  place of operation held held by the Group Principal activities
SMAILE  FERG rEEEERSER
RERECER  EBEREA REBEEHY oyl RBREE LA TEEH
2015 2014
—E-1E “E-NE
Haining Jiafeng Real  Limited liability The PRC  Registered 49% 49% Property development
Estate Development company HE capital in Haining, the PRC
Limited BRAR afER RAESE
("Haining Jiafeng”) ETNEREER
BERLEMEERLT
(MsExRE])
AG Acquisition M Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 25% 25% Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company Hong Kong BBk Hong Kong
BRAR ZBRLEE/BE REBETRELRRES
AG Acquisition O Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 25% 25% Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company Hong Kong BBk Hong Kong
BRAR ZBRLEE/BE REBETREEREY
Eltara Limited  Limited liability Hong Kong  Ordinary 25% 25% Property development in
company BR EBR Hong Kong
BRAR REBETNEBREY
The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group FRBINEEFAABREEXEREE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally BEAFEZAEBEGELE -EER
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give 3‘—’.’; FHIHMEELENER KSR
details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion BRITR
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint ventures as at 31 March 2015 and 2014

is set out below:

All of these joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial

20.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-—HFZA=Z+—-HLEE

EELECER (#)

R-Z-HF=A=+-AR=-Z-N
FZA=+-R AEEEELEZHB
ERWEHIIMT :

FEGELEERED ENGEE MR
RARRe

statements.
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—-UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Current assets REEE 764,310 728,168
Current liabilities REBEE (461,877) (491,408)
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,281 3,690
Net assets EEFHE 304,714 240,450
Group's share of net assets AEBh2EEFE 158,704 127,120
Net profit for the year NEEF @A 4,663 6,912
Group's share of profit rEBEDEZFERER
for the year 2,432 3,530
Dividends received from EREELERE
joint ventures 2,600 5,800
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

At the end of the reporting period, total cumulative
borrowing costs capitalised in the properties under
development for sale were HK$32,208,000 (2014:
HK$39,200,000).

The carrying value of properties under development
for sale comprises properties in Hong Kong under
leases is as follows:

21. BRPZHEME

RBEMR WEXCRBERP ZF
EMERNZRFARBERFTBERB
#32,208,000t (ZZE—MF: B
39,200,000t ) °

BREPZGENECRAERELRE
BUHER X FEE JIRNT

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

—B-—FHE | —=-m&

=ZA=+-8 | ZA=+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Long lease REPHEE - 467,150
Medium-term lease hHEIRE 343,166 327,682
343,166 794,832

The amount is expected to be recovered more

AHZRAERBERRRZR+ =@

than twelve months after the end of the reporting B ajug[e o
period.
22. INVENTORIES 22. &8

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-—RE —E-mE
=A=+-—H =B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Building materials EEM R 8,395 11,693
Health products - finished goods 2B 7= fm — 2R & 9,693 7,902
Others - finished goods Hitt - m 4,001 4,200
22,089 23,795
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

23. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE)

ON CONTRACT WORK

23. Bl (B SHIERT

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—B-FHE | —=-m&
=ZA=+-8 | ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Contract costs incurred plus FrEE 2 & KA
recognised profits 2 s n Al
less recognised losses HEBREE 7,254,997 6,351,637
Less: Progress billings wEE R (7,363,639) (6,481,476)
(108,642) (129,839)
Analysed for reporting REBMZDM:
purposes as:
Amounts receivable BREHITRERE
on contract work 134,805 78,844
Amounts payable on EBAeNIRMIE
contract work (243,447) (208,683)
(108,642) (129,839)
Both balances of amounts receivable (payable) on U () 6 TRRFTEME N &R

contract work are expected to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the reporting

period.

B RBRERREN T BB REE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

24. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE 24. B ERE R

Progress payments receivable represent the amounts EYGEEREEENRRES R ZEK
receivable, after deduction of retention money, for BEREFRE —RERIEESRER
construction services which usually fall due within STHRX - REE—RENREHET
30 days after the work is certified. Retention money BzRWREREINE - EhEo2E+
is usually withheld from the amounts receivable BEEEERBETINRE MEKE
for work certified. 50% of the retention money PRZAETRRBZEEENRELERED
is normally due upon completion of construction HRo

services and the remaining 50% portion is due upon
finalisation of construction accounts.

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
— 2%
=ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Progress payments FEWEERIERE :
receivable from:
Subsidiaries of HKR International HBEE£BREBER AT
Limited (“HKRI") (Note) ([EBEE]) ZHMBAR
(M$=E) - 6,030
A related company in which —RBHBRERARETES
certain directors of HI R EE A F)
the Company have control - 8,155
Third parties $=5 96,723 54,970
96,723 69,155
Note:HKRI has been regarded as a holding company F REBEXRATBUHREENET
having control over the Company upon its adoption ISR EMBHRER ] HERRALRA
of HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”. AZERABNGHERIZSIE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

24. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE
(Continued)

Management closely monitors the credit quality of
progress payments receivables. 100% (2014: 84%) of
the progress payments receivable that are neither
past due nor impaired are considered to be of good
credit quality based on historical repayment from
the debtors. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Hame

The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is

24. BUGERRIE (=)

EEERYERRUEEREZEER
= AREE100% (=ZF
ZEWGEE B AR RE  miRE
BRAZERELMS FEEEZHEA
RIf - AREEENRZEERISTEEMIER

—PUF 1 84%)

FE W ERRIE 2 BRI D AT 0T

as follows:
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
i —F-NF
ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Within 30 days =t+HR 96,723 58,116
31 - 60 days =+—Zx+H - 11,039
96,723 69,155

The following is an ageing analysis of progress

2 E M ERERE 2 BYCEEFE Z R

payments receivable which are past due but not oW
impaired:
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-hEF —E-MF
=ZA=+—-H | ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
31 - 60 days =t+—Z5x+H - 11,039
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

26.

25. RETENTION MONEY RECEIVABLE 25. Bl RE &
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
— -k
=ZA=+-8B | ZA=+—8~
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Retention money receivable from: FEWREERE :
Subsidiaries of HKRI EREXCHELDT 26,829 28,383
Third parties F=5h 187,637 97,533
214,466 125,916
Amount receivable within one year — & RFEUFKIE 158,423 86,199
Amount receivable after one year —F&FEUTIE 56,043 39,717
214,466 125,916
DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 26. BIRRIF - ZERFMNREA
PREPAYMENTS
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-RE —E-NEF
=A=+-8B | =A=+—-8H
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Trade debtors FE W FRIR 362,729 29,469
Other receivables H b e W FkE 152,862 72,252
Deposits Ze 18,237 9,753
Prepayments FEFRRIE 8,577 12,470
542,405 123,944
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26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Proceeds from property sales are receivable
pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. Retention money receivable in respect
of construction services is settled in accordance with
the terms of the respective contracts. In addition
to the payment of rental deposits, the Group are
required to pay monthly rents in respect of leased
properties in advance. For other businesses, the
Group generally allows a credit period of not more
than 90 days (2014: not more than 90 days) to its
customers. Before accepting any new customer, the
Group will internally assess the credit quality of the
potential customers and define appropriate credit
limit. Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Management closely monitors the credit quality
of trade debtors. 97% (2014: 67%) of the trade
debtors that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality based on their historical
repayments. Included in the trade debtors balance
are trade debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$9,093,000 (2014: HK$9,688,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. There are no balances included in
other receivables which are past due.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

26. BINRIA - HE R AR

(#)

REMEHEERWAERENREER
RAVRTNER] - EERBHBWRE IZ
BRSHNNRREE - AEBRAIEHE
BE NARSABHEHEWENAE-
ERHMER AEBE-RETHEF
TEZRATE (ZZE-—EmF AZRA+
A) Z IR - EEREAHES 280
AEBRSEBEEEFZEEERFRE
Arfh - WEER] B EERE - AMMERK
THTYEIKR - R A ERAJEHEREE-

EEEGRYERERREZEER
£ HA97% (ZF—HF:67%)EW
REREAN TERE MERBEHRS
ZEREEME EEEEZERF-BE
RAEEEBFIBLEHGIRTEAEBYE
9,093,000t 2 FEW R IE (=& — 04 :
75 #59,688,0007T) MRS HIRE B HI ™
AEBVEFERESEBELBRE K
SEBERZSEAREEEMRFR-
HttEWERBY EEECEE 2 &tk
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 26. BIgH A - mERAFMNRIA

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The aged analysis of trade debtors presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

(#&)

FE WK IR 2 SR 0 AT TO AR B A S o5 H
REAZBRZRHRZINT :

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

—E-AF —E-mEF

=ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Within 30 days =+tHW®W 174,208 18,367
31 - 60 days =t+—Z5x+H 37,995 6,583
61— 90 days At—ZEA+A 135,848 409
Over 90 days BEht+H 14,678 4,110
362,729 29,469

The following is an ageing analysis of trade debtors

BB ERERE 2 BYFIR ZRED

which are past due but not impaired: T
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—F-Hf% | =T-M@F
=ZA=+—-H | ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days =tAm 387 495
31 - 60 days =+—ZxK+H 926 4,708
61— 90 days ~+—ZA+H 906 389
Over 90 days #EBATH 6,874 4,096
9,093 9,688
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 26. BIRRIF - ZRERFAMNREA
PREPAYMENTS (continued) (%)
Included in the above trade debtors are amounts EULERBRBABERKEREA TR
due from related parties of trading nature as BEZMEZHIEIRAMNT :
follows:
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—B-RHF —E-mF
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Related companies in which HARARESZHN
directors of the Company 22} NG
have control - 305
A joint venture —EegEhE 722 497
Indirect wholly owned CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
subsidiaries of CCM Trust ([CCM Trust ]) 2 B $E
(Cayman) Limited 2EMWB LA (M)
("CCM Trust”) (Note) 1,220 1,491
Subsidiaries of HKRI EBEEHE QT 370 1,152
2,312 3,445
Note:CCM Trust is a substantial shareholder of the . CCM TrustB A RFIZEERRKR -
Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

26.

27.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Movement in the impairment losses recognised on
trade debtors:

26. BRI -HERRAMTRIF

(#&)

RN B A E AR

2015
—B-—FHE | —=-m&
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Balance at the beginning of FHEEER

the year 10,585 5,649

(Reversal of) impairment losses (#E) EERVBEERE
recognised (7,009) 4,936
Balance at the end of the year FREER 3,576 10,585

Included in the impairment loss recognised on trade
debtors are individually impaired trade debtors
with an aggregated balance of HK$3,576,000 (2014:
HK$10,585,000) which have either been placed
under liquidation or in financial difficulties or in
dispute. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Out of the Group’s trade debtors a balance
amounting to HK$1,942,000 (2014: HK$1,988,000)
is denominated in RMB, a currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT
VENTURES/AN ASSOCIATE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

BERECRAERKENREEET
B 45 R 4R XA B 153,576,000 (=& —
1 8 %510,585,0007T ) A 18 Bl R B 2 FE
ZEREZERFIEIEEEES
BREHRRSSFET SEEBERZ

Wk -

EEBRERENERR-

AEBZERRERUARE (AEE
SEERUNEERUIINZER) NEZE
2 5B #1,942,000t (ZFE— M FE B

#£1,988,0007T) °

27.

ZAELEER RANERTHERE

Zo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf # R 5= M 55

28. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

29.

Investments held for trading comprise investments
in equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange
whose fair value amounted to HK$426,000 (2014:
HK$364,000).

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE

28. IFEEBCHRE

FFEEZRE BRRBEXM LT 2
BAEHRE 2 D FERBA26,0007T
— =4 1 B¥#364,0007T) °

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 9. fTEMBEIA
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-HE —ET-F
=A=+—H | =ZA=t+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The Group's derivative AEBZITEMKEERSRE:
financial assets comprises:
Foreign exchange forward HEHEEX
contracts - 89

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had the following
foreign exchange forward contract in order to
manage the Group’s foreign currency exposure
in relation to foreign currency forecast sales and
foreign currency denominated monetary items.
The Group did not currently designate hedging
relationship on the foreign exchange forward
contracts for the purpose of hedge accounting.
Major terms of the foreign exchange forward
contract were set out below:

R-ZE-NF=A=+—R0 AEEEU
THERESHNUEERAEEMA R AR
SNESHERINEIIEE R IR B M R
SRR -RRARBE L EDE P
M NERESNIEEEME PR
SMEMESNETEHEREINNT

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
EREH ZH A RBE
Sell USD500,000 31 July 2014 RMB6.47 to RMB6.50: USD1.00

& 1£500,000% T

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s derivative
financial instruments which amounted to HK$89,000
are denominated in USD, the currency other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities.

—E-MFELA=t—H

ARM6.47TE AR¥6.507T 1 1.00% 7T

RZB-NE=ZA=1+—H AEEUX
T(REEEEER 2YEERUIIZ
B¥) SIE 2 5TE B T B AR %8%89,000
Jo°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf #5555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+—-HLEE

30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by
the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less at interest
rate of 0.01% (2014: 0.01%) per annum as at 31
March 2015.

The Group’s bank balances that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities are set out below.

30. CiEHBITES HITEER

e

R-ZEB-HF=ZRA=+—0 R{T&&%
RReBELAEEFEZRERERE
HEZEASLR=ZER 2 EHR]T
ER ENEE001% (ZFE—MNE:
0.01%) °

AEELEEEEER 2 WEEE U
ZEBIEZRITEREINMT -

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

—E-HE —ZT-UF

=A=+—8 | =ZBA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

MOP BT 1,072 639
AUD BT 55 83
usD E 533 1,595
RMB AREE 21,693 12,216

At 31 March 2015, bank balances and cash of
HK$24,010,000 (2014: HK$25,395,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely
convertible currency in the international market.
The exchange rate of RMB is regulated by the PRC
government and the remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. The pledged bank balances carry interest at
the prevailing market rate at a range from 0.01%
to 3.00% per annum for the year ended 31 March
2015 (2014: 2.80% to 3.00%). Deposits amounting
to HK$83,720,000 (2014: HK$49,795,000) have been
pledged to secure the bank loan borrowed by a
joint venture and are therefore classified as non-
current assets.

R-ZE—HF=A=+—H B%
24,010,000t (ZZE—HF: B
25,395,0007T) ZRITHEBRAESIZAR
OB ARBTEREBETESEHRR
B ARBEZXZIHEBNRERKETE
EHERESASZHPEBFNERMNIMNE
PR il 353 PR

ERFRTERERAFEREAEER
TEEMEFFRITINER -BZE=-F
—AE=ZA=t—-HLEEZCIKIFR
TEHEBUBITHSRNEFE - NFEF
0.01%ZE3.00% (= —[IF:2.80%F
3.00% ) o #8 58 A 78 #583,720,000T (=
T — U4 1 58 %49,795,0007T) 2 FR DT
KIFAEERBEELEMENRTE
AL ERERBEE-

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 /



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31. FE {5 TR B H fh BB £ & IR

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-AHF —F-NF
=B=+—-H | ZBR=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade payables FEA FRIB 151,499 100,215
Retention payable — amount EAREE - —FRENRIE
payable within one year 104,198 81,790
Retention payable — amount EAREE - —FRENRIE
payable after one year 20,876 17,787
Accrued operating costs and B EENTRER
charges 160,703 89,278
Accrued costs for construction FESTREI AR
work 116,419 98,741
Temporary receipts g R LS B 2 SRR 26,559 3,960
Deposits received 2UEZE S 6,175 7,053
586,429 398,824

The average credit period on purchase of goods and
payment for subcontractors’ works is 90 days.

BEAmRINI2EBIREREZTY
FEHRI0H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BA #3R K M 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. BN REREMEMRIE (@)
(Continued)
The aged analysis of trade payables presented based FEFRIE Z BRI 2 AT D IR IB AR & HI R
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting HREAZREANMBEZINOT :

period is as follows:

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

—E—-AfF —E-mF

=Z=A=+—-H | ZB=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 30 days =+tHW®W 143,653 90,499

31 - 60 days =t+—Z5x+H 884 3,535

61 - 90 days At—Zh+H 219 1,122

Over 90 days BEht+H 6,743 5,059

151,499 100,215

Included in the above trade payables are amounts ELMEAREREBERENEBRALR
due to related parties of trading nature as follows: EZMEZHIEFBMT

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

—E-1%F —E-F

ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Subsidiaries of HKRI BBEEXCZNEAT 6 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

32. BANK LOANS 32. BITH®R
The bank loans are repayable as follows: BEEZRITERIIGBMNT
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-HEF —ZE-MF
=B=+—-H | ZBR=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Carrying amount repayable FEEZREE (M) :
(Note):
Within one year —FR 646,610 621,300
In the second year REZFR 19,650 5,000
In the third to fifth years RE=ZZFHEFR
inclusive (BEERMEF) 25,000 73,000
691,260 699,300
Analysis of carrying amounts: IREED
Amounts due within one year —FRIHLES
shown under current liabilities REEEZER 646,610 621,300
Carrying amount of bank loans  BARREHRRET —FR
that are not repayable within EEBMFRREAER
one year from the end of EREZEZRTERREAE
the reporting period but contain (RABEEETZ%)
a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) 44,650 78,000
691,260 699,300
Amounts shown under PERIERDEEZTH
non-current liabilities - -
691,260 699,300
Secured [ 361,260 446,300
Unsecured IR 330,000 253,000
691,260 699,300
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment Mizt: ZETERBHENSERGZE 2T
dates set out in the respective loan agreements. BENHHESZ-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf #5555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

32.

33.

BANK LOANS (continued)

The bank loans are secured by charges over certain
assets of the Group, which are disclosed in note 39.

The Group’s bank loans are floating-rate borrowings
which are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The interest is charged at a range from
HIBOR + 0.75% to HIBOR + 2.43% per annum (2014:
HIBOR + 0.75% to HIBOR + 2.25% per annum).

The weighted average effective interest rates on the
Group’s loans is 2.22% (2014: 1.87%) per annum.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

32.

33.

BITER (2)

ZERTERUAEEHE TEERR
EAPNEERLE § L

AEBZRITERTERBEIEZZ
BREER - FAEHEBRITEEIRE
1N0.75% Z & BRITRIFEF EM2.43%5t
E(ZZ—NF BEBRITEEFIM
0.75%Z B BRITRIZEFREM2.25%) ©

AEBERZMEFHERFNRS
2.22% (ZE—F:11.87%) °

i 3E 1R IR
RO EBBRR R & TIELREE

EREEBCEAREKHE - UT HHEHI R
ERIEER IR ER 2 07

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

—E-HE —ZT-F

=Ag=+-8 | =A=+-8

HKS$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Deferred tax assets EEHEEE 488 702
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE (8.,095) (7,908)
(7,607) (7,206)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

33. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 33.

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) of the Group and movements thereon

during the current and prior years:

ERERIA (2)

FEEFTREERESE (BE)RRS
BRzAFEHLMEE ZEBMT

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
piifzd
BT E BB EE wmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2013 RZEBE-=FMA—H 10,876 (5,606) 5,270
Charge to consolidated statement ~ REFEHEEBZRPIH
of profit or loss for the year 350 1,586 1,936
At 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=+—H 11,226 (4,020) 7,206
(Credit) charge to consolidated RAFEGFEEBRERSD
statement of profit or loss (FtA) X
for the year (1,273) 1,674 401
At 31 March 2015 R-ZZE-HF=A=+—H 9,953 (2,346) 7,607

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$59,976,000
(2014: HK$99,831,000) available for offset
against future profit. A deferred tax asset has

been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$14,216,000 (2014: HK$24,364,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining approximately HK$45,760,000
(2014: HK$75,467,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. All the unrecognised tax losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

B AIEIZERBEMR AT /2014/2015 F3R /

RIBEBMR AEERAZBEEEY
5 7B #59,976,000T (ZE—HF : /8
#599,831,0007t) @ Al AA{EIKEE R R 2
wA o B BB IE BB 4 B 14,216,000
T (=Z— M4 :#8%24,364,0005T)
BRELEBEBEEE AR TREME X
RzwmF BMEREBRBEEBOYE
#45,760,000T (Z 2 — O F B
75,467,000T ) ERARELERIBEE -FT B
KRERZBIEEB T BRAALE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf #5555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+—-HLEE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B&
No. of shares HK$'000
g 4= BT T
Authorised: EE
Shares of HK$0.10 each FRBE0.107T 2R D
Balance as at 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FHA—-HBK
and 31 March 2014 “E-OFE=F=+—H
ZEEER 800,000,000 80,000
Increased during the year REEEM (M)
(Note) 400,000,000 40,000
Balance as at 31 March 2015 R-E—HF=A=+—H
2 iR 1,200,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE:
Shares of HK$0.10 each FRBE.107T 2R D
Balance as at 1 April 2013, R-ZE—=FMA—B"
31 March 2014 and —E-ME=A=+-HEK
31 March 2015 —E2-H1F=A=+—H
2 G ER 536,315,641 53,632

Note:Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual
general meeting held on 26 August 2014, the
authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$80,000,000 divided into
800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$120,000,000 divided into 1,200,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each by creation of an additional
400,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

CRBE-ZZE-NENAZ+ASBE

TZBRREFAEBEBZRER
KRB ZEERAKEIRIEREND
400,000,000/% & B2 EI (B & #50.107T 2
@R - B8 %80,000,0007T (KD
#800,000,0000% 5 A E{E B #£0.107T
ZEE L) 50 = 58 %5120,000,0007T
(37 % $1,200,000,0008% = A% [ & 8
#0102 Z @A) ©
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35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 55

RESERVES

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate share capital
of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued at the time of the
group corporate reorganisation, less the par value
of the bonus shares issued by the Company.

Special reserve of the Group represents the
aggregate of contributions from the then
shareholders of the companies comprising the
Group and other subsidiaries of HKRI before the
group corporate reorganisation.

OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLE

The amount represents the contingent consideration
payable of HK$14,253,000 for acquisition of a joint
venture during the year ended 31 March 2012.
Details of the acquisition were set out in the Group's
consolidated financial statements as set out in
the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 March 2013. The fair value of the contingent
consideration at 31 March 2015 is estimated to be
HK$14,253,000 (2014: HK$14,253,000) because the
management considers that it is highly likely that
the specified level of accumulated net profit after
tax of the project carry out by the joint venture can
be achieved within the time specified.

35.

36.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE

fii

REBZ AR ERAQAWBZE
MELRER ZEMBARZRALE
ERAEEEARARBEHTROE
BH2EZ8 BEARACHRTARZE
/o

REEZBRHBEREARAER 2N
ARRASEBEARN T B EENH
BLASERKRRZRAEEHE-

Hth = R E &R IR

REBE-ZE—-F=ZA=+—-HLEE
WEEELECENIARESELAB
#:14,253,0007t - W 2 B E HIER
ARNFABE=_Z—=F=ZA=+—BL
FEZERZAEBHGREVBHRERA -
HAEEEZRAGECEETZEE
MR EBFRABE JEEEERRM
NEFEEKFE BER-_ZF—HF=
A=1t—8 ZAREB22AFEMETH
7B #514,253,000T (R=Z— U5 . B
14,253,0007T ) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf # 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

37.

38.

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured and non-interest bearing.
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had not been
required to settle the amount within one year from
the end of that reporting period. While the Group
is expected to settle the amount within one year
from the end of the reporting period as at 31 March
2015.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was
adopted on 3 January 2002 and was terminated
on 21 September 2011. Pursuant to the Company’s
new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted and became effective on 21 September
2011, all directors (including independent non-
executive directors), full-time employees and
consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or
its associated companies/associates are eligible to
participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the
participants who have been granted options
under the Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interest in the Company and to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

37.

38.

FE 1 JF 2R BX R R IR

AN BRI RERE - R-F—MF
ZRA=1T—R FEEBARBAHEH
KE—FREBFZRE-MR-F—HF
ZA=t—R AEERPREFRED
RE—FREBEZNE

RSB fE 51 &

RRARAEANBERESIN-ZZZ
—R=ZHERARR=-F——FN1A
—t— BRI -REARQ TR AERE
8 (TZF8) (R=FE——F 1A
“T-HERARER AR TF - HK
BRrak SEBERRZAEES (8
BREYFITES) 2BEENERN
BSHEZTEZER-

ZatEl 2 BENRERAREZTIERE
REARBALATEER 228E  2H]
BAXRAMBEARSZ RS LA
SHREBFADARERRZEERNZ
EhHRReEARARERD ZEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 5

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)

(b)

Maximum number of shares available
for issuance

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of approval of the Scheme. A
total of 48,755,967 shares of the Company is
available for issue under the Scheme which
represents 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme and represents 9.07% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report.

The overall limit on the number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

(1) The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised options)
under the Scheme or any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company
in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in
issue unless otherwise approved by
shareholders of the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE

38. MERx st E (=)

(a)

(b)

AR ITZROHE LR

BIEZTEIR A A TR E st
REMFEBRERTERm 73
THRHEE LR A EBBNRZ
FrEMLER AR AT 22 BITRM
10% o Zst 8 M BT 2 ARATRK
% 48 81 548,755,967 - (5 A A F)
REZtEIRMB 2B BITRA10%
RAERQABRAAFRABR 2B BT
R 74<9.07% °

RIFLET B R A D EMER H AT &
FrEREMERITEBRERMET
EMEITZARARDABHTEE
BARRNATEHNERTZREI0%
ZHBR

HFE2REZERERE LR

W

(1) BRIEBARDBRRSERAE
BREMMEA+=EAME E
ITREREBEZEHA DA HRR
ZAEMH R REER N 2
BRE (BREETERERT
EzBRE) MEAEESRE
BRORETRITZROEBE
THEBARRACBITRG 2
1% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf # 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Maximum entitlement of each
participant (Continued)

)

Where any grant of options to
a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in rule 1.01 of the
Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of
the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in
issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the shares of
the Company on the date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to
prior approval of the shareholders of the
Company who are not connected persons
of the Company as defined in the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange.

(c) Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an
option is granted or such shorter period as the
Board of Directors or the relevant committee
thereof may specify.

38. ERR st E (=)

(b) BE2REZBRELRE LR

(#&)

() fAARRBRZEBRRRIEL
FRTESHHEHEAZBHEA
(E&R EHRAE1.01%)
REBRE BSEIRNEE
R B#LE 2 A+ =@ A
B (BEREZA)BZAL
ERHEETFREZMBERBR
EETEME BITRAETRIT
ZBAD

(i) BHEXRQXTSBHITR
#70.1% 0 £ &

(i) #2{EEiE%E%5,000,000
R 45 4 2 B R A R
5t B E 2 U A
)

RHZIABREATRTRIEAR
NAERR (WA DQF 2 FEE
AT (ERRBXFrz LR
B ) HEAE -

(0 REBRELARBRG 2H
PR

HAREERECAR+FHBNE
EERBETERZESEEZRAE
AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF # R 5= M 5

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d)

(e)

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board
of Directors or the relevant committee thereof
must specify the minimum period(s) (if any)
and achievement of performance target(s) (if
any), for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised in whole or in part.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 20 September 2021 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme.

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than
the highest of:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days of the Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE

38. MERx st E (=)

(d) BRERAFITENZHER
BHE (WAH)

REHBREZS ESERET
FRZEEE XL AEEBRENT T
1T (ZEBERD) Al 2 BRIEFFH
(MB)REHRRER (WH) -

(e) ZTEIZERTNFR

BRIFERIBEZFTEBRRFTULILE B
AlZst 8l ERERE T 1§
RZE-_—-FAB=-+HER-

BREZITEEXETERATIZES
&
() BIFAREAEZREZBRERAM

Mo AATRHBUHE (ZBELA
SEHEH);

(i) BERATAEER I B HA) TR
FrexBBEz ARRAMZAR
ARG FHRTHE K

(iiiy ARFROARE B ZEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 38. iR R B ()
A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the REZMBRERAEIBEITIEARE

acceptance of the option.

At 31 March 2015, the number of shares in respect R-E—RF=A=+—H BBEREZ
of which options had been granted and remained FEREBERITEZBREZRDE
outstanding under the Scheme was 28,776,000 H %28,776,0000% (= ZF — M F : &) >
(2014: nil), representing 5.4% (2014: nil) of the EZBEARREBITRE 254% (=
shares of the Company in issue at that date. Z—MF M| o

Details of the movements of the share options REBREZESESFRNOT

granted are as follows:

Number of

share options

granted during

Exercise the year and

Category of price outstanding at

participants Date of grant Exercise period per share 31 March 2015

REFERLK

R-B-1%

ZA=t-H

i RATREZ

sEEgER RIEBH TREHHE BRTEE REHE

HK$
BET
Directors 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 1.35 18,100,000
25 November 2019

Bz “E-ME+-AZt+xA ZE-MBE+-AZt+XAE
“E-hn&t+-A=tEH

Employees 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 1.35 10,676,000

25 November 2019

=] ZE-MEt-AZt+AE  ZE-OF+-AStRHE
“E-NF+-A=thH

28,776,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

In respect of fair value of options granted in 2014,
the inputs into the model were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

38. MERxtEgstE (=)

R_T-NERHBREZAFEMNS
WMARE ZEIEMT

26 November —E-mF
2014 +—B=+XxH

Spot price REE

Exercise price TEE
Expected volatility FEHA R IR
Risk-free rate 3 e A =
Expected dividend yield FEHR B EE
Exercise period TEERA

The fair value of the share options is determined
using the binomial option pricing model. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair values of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimates. Expected volatility is
based on the historical share price volatility of the
Company over the past 5 years. Expected dividend
yield is based on the historical dividend payment of
the Company. The risk-free interest rate is assumed
with reference to HKD swap rate zero coupon yield
as at the date of grant.

The Group recognised the total expense of
HK$5,749,000 (2014: nil) for the year ended 31
March 2015 in relation to share options granted by
the Company to the directors and employees of the
Group.

HK$1.35 7B #51.357T
HK$1.35 7B #81.357T
22.73% 22.73%
1.58% 1.58%

3.93% 3.93%

26 November —E-mEF
2014to +—BAZ=+tXHZE

25 November —E-hEF
2019 +—BAZ=+HH

BREZAFEDEA-EHREEER
HETE -AEBREZ IV ERER2E
ERBRIDERES 2 HEM - REIK
@I AREA D RB AR FAERERE
T E - RHIRE WS RTIRIEAR QT LUE
BREIRSFTE - ERERARTISERKH

AfzETEANRERZBWHEREL
EEE

BE-_Z—RF=A=+—HILFE K
SEREBRARARTAEEESRE
B 2 BB ETE R S H 48 5778 %55,749,000
T(ZZT—UFE &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf # 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

40.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group'’s

39. EEEH

RABERR  UAKE 2 EEEAEE

bank loans were secured by the Group’s assets as IRITERZEFWNT :
follows:
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-HE —E-MF
=A=+—-H | ZBR=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Investment properties REWE 869,700 661,800
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRETF 23,380 24,613
Pledged bank deposits 2IEAIRITFER 83,720 49,795
Properties under development BRI 2HFEWME
for sale - 467,150
Properties held for sale HIESEME 338,435 -
1,315,235 1,203,358
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. X R AR

(@)

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal
actions in respect of allegations of copyright
infringement and defamation have been taken
against certain subsidiaries of the Company
carrying on its health products business. No
further steps have been taken against the
Group in respect of such actions after the court
hearing for directions to appoint experts and
exchange witness statements since 2004. At
31 March 2015 and 2014, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that in view of the
uncertainty, it is not practicable to assess the
financial effect.

(a)

BE—ZZTMNE=A=+—HBLHF
ER RAABETREREERHE
BB ARRBLRERFZEZ
BERREEEAETH BTN
FREABRRIBBARMESR
FZERRME ESEREEHE
rEBE—STH R-_ZT—H
F=A=t—HRZE—NF=AH
=+—H AQAEERE ERHE
THEEM WA B i 5 H B

1=
g
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—HAF=ZA=+—HLEE

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 40. XA AR &)

(b) As at 31 March 2015, the Group has provided by AZZFE—H"FE=A=+—H8"
a corporate guarantee to a bank to secure AEBECO—BERITRENBE
banking facilities granted to a joint venture 27,100,000t (= —WF 1 #E) B
of approximately HK$27,100,000 (2014: nil), DNERER UER—EEELERE
which represents the Group’s proportionate RZBTREREE ZRERLE
share of the banking facilities utilised as at 31 BREHSE2A=F—HF=A
March 2015. In the opinion of the directors of EST—HBAZRTREEE &
the Company, the fair values of these financial NAEERAHBRER ZHBEER
guarantee contracts are insignificant at initial BRZRAFELTEKR FTURER
recognition and no provision for financial HHRIS BRI BIERESOELE
guarantee contracts has been made at the end & o

of the reporting period.

41. COMMITMENTS 41. EF XKiE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RARERR  AEBBEUTEREIE:
the following commitments:
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E—AfF —E-—mF
=A=+-8 | ZA=+-&E
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(i) Capital expenditure () ERABEYX BERSEZHEHZ
contracted for but not BRI NERRNGE B HREK
provided in consolidated fELHBE 2 EART
financial statements in
relation to acquisition
of property, plant and
equipment - 2,030
In addition, the Group had also committed o AEBETREERHES -G8 BEE
with another joint venturer to contribute the WERKFUBRRERANETHE AU
joint venture by means of shareholder’s loan IRNEECERBRPYEZIH -

proportioned to its equity interest in the joint
venture to finance the expenditure of property
under development if called.

B AIEIZERBER AT /2014/2015 F3R /



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-AF=A=+-HLEE

41. COMMITMENTS (cContinued)

(ii) Capital expenditure authorised but not
contracted for

As at the end of both reporting periods,
the Group had committed to contribute
HK$231,500,000, representing 23.63% of
the anticipated project costs, for the joint
development of a site in So Kwun Wat, Hong
Kong.

42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments

in respect of rented premises under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

41. BERIE =)

(i) EREERTHZEAZH

PMEREHR ~XEBEEER
HEZE-—RUREBERES 2+
3% {478 %5231,500,000 T 2 E £
IHTESTIE B AR 223.63% °

42, EEHERIE

A A

REEHAR  REBERBE N T HHEER
ERBERYE B RREAERIRE
EEBERMT

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

—®-mE | —ET-nE

=A=+-8 | =ZA=+-&§

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT I

Within one year —FR 4,938 6,633
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFhF (BEEREME) 2,170 2,995
After five years HE® 7,200 7,280
14,308 16,908

Minimum lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for its office properties, warehouses
and shops which amounting to HK$1,208,000,
HK$1,427,000 and HK$4,735,000 (2014: HK$808,000,
HK$1,757,000 and HK$4,972,000) respectively.
Average leases are negotiable and rentals are fixed
for lease term of three years.

REHERBEAEBARLAEYE.
EEREHENZ2ES 2B RASB
#£1,208,0007T ~ /& %£1,427,0007T & /& #&
4,735,0007T (== — PO £ : & %£808,000
JC /& #51,757,0000T K & #4,972,000
L) —MREA LIRS HER=FH4E
EfRgESETE-
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42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

There are certain lease agreements, according to
which the Group is committed to pay the higher
of a minimum guaranteed amount or a monthly
payment equivalent to a prescribed percentage of
a monthly sales as rental. The minimum guaranteed
rental payments are included above. The respective
contingent rental payment for the year ended
31 March 2015 amounted to HK$143,000 (2014:
HK$443,000).

As lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments in respect of the
investment properties:

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

42. EEHERIE &)

AN (#)

BRIEETHESYH  FEEEFEITHRE
RESEIANHE (ZRARZAEHE
HeEEAPHLERAEES)MERRSH
HE REREASNEEENRLRRA -
BE-_E-—RAF=A=1+—-BLEE
MR ARE S FIE A ER143,000T (=
£ — 04 : B%443,0007T) ©

HAEA

RB|BEHR  AEBCEHEFFTLN B
REMEZARREESWT :

31.3.2015 31.3.2014
i —F-NF

ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Within one year —F R 18,457 21,420
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZEHLF (BFEEHEEME) 9,304 19,086
27,761 40,506

Leases are negotiable for lease term of three years.

BMARTER FHRA=F-
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BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

43. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 43. R KigFI st &)

With the implementation of Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong on 1 December 2000,
the Group has maintained the defined contribution
scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance and has obtained
an exemption satisfying the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
("MPFO™).

To comply with the MPFO, a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with voluntary
contributions has been established. New employees
must join the MPF Scheme since its commencement
on 1 December 2000. The Group contributes 5%
to 10% of the relevant payroll costs for each
employee to the MPF Scheme, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (increase
to HK$30,000 effective from 1 June 2014) for the
MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The amounts charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represent contributions paid and
payable to the schemes by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes less forfeitures
arising from employees leaving the Group prior to
completion of qualifying service period. The amount
for the year is as follows:

BER-ZEZRZHFEF_A-BBBET
BEEARETE AEECESRER
SR RET BURGIEEM R 2 ER ARG
g WEEHRRETRTIME ARSI B
Bl ([REERA]) 2 RE -

ABRBESKRS AEECERIAR
BUEERBFELI B ([BES
& ER-ZZEZEF+-A—-BFA
WEBTRRSTER  MESLEMAR
BEHE - AREAB U EENEEES
SEREETERANESZRERD
21 ZRABESBAER AR LER
#78%25,000T (A=—F—MFA—H
AR hn = B #530,0000T) - HAERKAGEE
BERFE-

HAGReBRERANBRzEBESNEEER
ZEEBRAEE L ROZETECE
N RENA 2R BERER R HRBEF
BENEEHERABERAEE 2EEFN
B2 R N FEZFREMNT

2015 2014

—E-HF —ET-IF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Contributions paid and payable B1% & E{FHR 13,122 12,722
Forfeiture R WX (131) (209)
12,991 12,513

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, there is no forfeited
contribution arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefit schemes and which were
available to reduce contributions payable.

REZE-AF=ZA=+t—HAR=ZF—-@O
F=ZA=1—H ERESRHRKEF
=t &I E L K& 7 AR E BN 2 Rz

R WK
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44. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position and notes 24 to 26, 31, 36 and 37 to the

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE

44. ABA LT REBREZ S

BRRGETERRNRRGEE T BRERM
124%F26 31 36 R3I7FTIRE < BB A
TEERRIN AREBFEARIE T HIREEA L

consolidated financial statements, the Group also ERR S
entered into transactions with the following related
parties during the year:
2015 2014
—E-HE —ZT-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Subsidiaries of HKRI and its REEBHEEMBATR
associates: HEB A
— Construction income (Note) —ZBEWA (M) 81,538 126,994
— Interior and renovation income =~ —H &R AEBSUA (HEE)
(Note) - 1,152
An indirect wholly owned R B CCM TrustfE 3
subsidiary of CCM Trust: ZEMWBATR:
- Project management income —IHEBEEWA (M5
(Note) 1,400 2,841
— Site supervision service income —ih AR ELE RIS WA (FIEE)
(Note) 2,564 4,130
Joint ventures of the Group: REFEEGERE:
— Construction income —EEIWA - 2,199
- Project management income —IEHEEEWA (KizE)
(Note) 790 947
— Site supervision service income —ih BB BRI A (FIEE)
(Note) 855 1,377
Related parties in which certain REAQRRETESEZESHZ
directors of the Company have BAHEA L
control:
- Construction income —EERA 7,528 8,805
An associate of the Group: REXREEHE AT :
- Rental expenses —-HeEH (360) (681)

Note:These related party transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details are
included in the Report of the Directors on pages 96
to 103.

MizE: HEMBEATIRZEXRLETRASE
MAEERZISERER S - E— D
BHNREEEREEFICEE103E -
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BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

44. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 44. B AT EBREREZ S (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Compensation of key management FEEBAEZHM
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members REEESRHEMFIESEAS ZFHM
of key management during the year are as follows: mT:
2015 2014
—E-AHF -k
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fees we 975 775
Salaries and other benefits HeRhEMER 14,351 13,086
Performance related incentive ITEXRBREBS
payments 15,420 14,530
Retirement benefits schemes RAERGHEIHERX
contributions 2,080 1,906
Equity-settled share-based UREREER
payments LR 24 2 718 4,687 -
37,513 30,297
Details of the remuneration of key management rEEIREEAE (BRESERET)
personnel, which are the directors and employees, ZH RN

during the year were set out in note 12.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

45. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 45. X RFIZHMBEEH
COMPANY
Financial information of the Company at the end of RBEBR RKAR M BEERBTE:
the reporting period includes:
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E—-HEF —E—-UF
=HA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BHETF T
Assets BE
Investment in a subsidiary BRER—BEKHEBQE 326,740 326,740
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEURKEB A T3R8 68,750 64,864
Other receivables H{th FE W FRIE 18 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 3,904 660
399,412 392,264
Liabilities =L
Other payables and HihEARIBEREFTTER
accrued charges 500 241
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATH B A Bl R 1,954 1,652
2,454 1,893
Net assets BEEFE 396,958 390,371
Capital and reserves AR &
Share capital [N 53,632 53,632
Reserves ERi] 343,326 336,739
396,958 390,371
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BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

45. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 45. XTI MEBEEH &)
COMPANY (continued)

Movements in share capital and reserves: IR R 2 &
Share
Share Share options  Accumulated
capital premium reserve profits Total
R ROEE BRERG RER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BETR BETT BRI BETT

At 1 April 2013 R-Z-=%
mA—H 53,632 273,108 - 60,439 387,179
Profit and total comprehensive AFEREFIR
income for the year FEWMALLE - - - 30,008 30,008
Dividends paid 2RRE - - - (26,816) (26,816)
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-NF
=B=+-H 53,632 273,108 - 63,631 390,371
Profit and total comprehensive & EEHEFIR
income for the year ENE LGN L] - - - 29,263 29,263
Recognition of equity-settled ~ HRUBREER
share-based payments LRGBS 258 - - 5,749 - 5,749
Dividends paid ERRE - - - (28,425) (28,425)
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-1F
=A=+-H 53,632 273,108 5,749 64,469 396,958
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLEFE

46. T EM B L FFHE

SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Particulars of the Company’'s principal (@) R-ZE—HFE=A=+—HEK=Z
subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are as —mNFE=A=1+—H AQAAEE
follows: MELRFEWT :
Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
BRITRHR
LERE,
R/ Hl-C AREEWL
WELE R EEME RERE BYRAER TEXHK
(Note 1) 2015 2014
(B&E1) “Z-1Ff Z—EZ-[F
Care & Health Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Trading of health
EM@ERAR EE BET products
REERES
Emwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
BEERAF ; BE22T NERE
Exceed Advance Limited British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
HEBRAF Islands/Hong (ESH REER
Kong
RERLBE /BB
Excel Pointer Limited Hong Kong HK$1 60% 60% Property investment
ERERDNT 5B BT NERE
General Target Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
EMERDF BB 78#10,0007T MERE
Hanison Construction Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100% Property construction
Company Limited E# shares MERE
ABREBRNA HK$1,000
Deferred
shares
HK$60,000,000
(Note 2)
EBR
7B 1%1,0007
B
60,000,0007T
CEZ)
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BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

46. T EM B2 RN (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal (a) RZE—HF=A=+—HERZEZE
subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are as —mE=ZBA=1+—H AXQAEFE
follows: (Continued) MDA REEBUT : (&)
Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
BRITRHR
LERS/
B/ &R/ Hl-C FREENL
WELR MR EEM RERE BRBRAER TEXH
(Note 1) 2015 2014
(M) =B-1F —Z-QOF
Hanison Construction British Virgin us$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings (BVI) Limited Islands/Hong 2ER REZRK
(Note 3) (HEE3) Kong
RBELZHE /R
Hanison Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Property construction
ABEEERLF Bi# BT MEREE
Hanison Estate Services Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Provision of property
Limited E# BT management services
EBNERBEERAT REUMFEERE
Hanison Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Property construction
EBETRERLT B BT VIE 3=
Hanison Interior & Hong Kong HK$4,200,000 100% 100% Provision of interior and
Renovation Limited 5B B renovation services
BEBEAREEERLF 4,200,0007 RERBREBRYE
Hanison Project Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Provision of property
Management Limited E# BT leasing and marketing
EBEREEERAR services and project
management
RENEEERDEHER
BURBEEE
Hantex Engineering Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Plant maintenance and
EETRARAR B BT servicing
BB A R 1B 3E
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BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are as

follows: (Continued)

46. T EM B2 RN (&)

(a)

RZBE-RAF=ZA=+—HR=Z

—NE=ZA=Z+—H RXQAFEE
MEBARGEENT : (&)

Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
BRITRHR
LERE,
R/ i/ amEs,/ AEEEWL
WELR LR EEME RERE AR ER TEXHK
(Note 1) 2015 2014
(B&E1) “Z-1Ff Z—EZ-@F
Healthcorp Trading Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Trading of health
BECEBRAT e BT products and
Investment holding
REERESRREZR
Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 100% 100% Property development
HEBRAT BB 7 #400,0007T NEBE
Million Hope Industries Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% 100% Supply and installation of
Limited Bk Pt building materials
XFEXERLA 11,000,000 HERZREEME
Protic Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Property development
BERAERAF B BT MEBRE
Retailcorp Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Sales of health products
ZELEXBRAN BB BT HEREER
Sanney Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Property development
BREBRAA B BT MEBRE
Senior Rich Development Hong Kong HK$10,380 100% 100% Property investment
Limited j 7B110,3807T MERE
FERBERERDF
Superior Choice Holdings British Virgin Us$10 60% 60% Investment holding
Limited Islands/Hong 0% REER

Kong

ABELRE/ B
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BE—_Z-AF=ZA=1+—HLEE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are as

follows: (Continued)

46. T EM B2 RN (&)

(a) RZE—HF=A=+—HERZEZE
—UE=A=+—H XAQFFE
MEBLAREBOT: (&)

Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
BRITRHR
LERS/
R/ Hl-C FREENL
WELR MR EEM RERE BYRAER TEXH
(Note 1) 2015 2014
(M) =B-1F —Z-QOF
Tai Kee Pipes Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100% 100% Trading of building
RLBRAT 58 ok materials
2,000,0007C BERENH
Team Forward Limited British Virgin uss$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Islands/Hong bE REER
Kong
RERLBE /BB
Trigon Building Materials Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Supply and installation of
Limited 5B BT building materials
ESERMBRAT HER ZEREMNH
Triple Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Property development
Bt BT VES Y
Vast Media International Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited 5B BT REER
EEERERAA
Wisdom Concept Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Property development
Development Limited 5B BT MEER
EHERERAH
EEIARENB (EM) The PRC HK$39,990,771 100% 100% Manufacture and supply
BR2AT (Note 4) (Kiz4) & B of building materials
39,990,771 BER RN
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are as
follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(1) All being ordinary share capital except
the registered capital for the subsidiaries
registered in the PRC.

(2) The deferred shares are shares whose
shareholders are neither entitled to receive
notices, attend, vote at any general meetings
nor to receive any dividend out of operating
profit and have very limited rights on return of
capital of the subsidiary.

(3) Other than Hanison Construction Holdings
(BVI) Limited, which is directly held by the
Company, all other companies are indirectly
held by the Company.

(4) A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the year or outstanding at the
end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, principally affected the results
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result
in particulars of excessive length.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

46. T EM B2 RN (&)

(a)

RZBE-RAF=ZA=+—HR=Z
—NE=ZA=Z+—H RXQAFEE
MEBARGEENT : (&)

MIEE :

(1) BRANFE 2 A B H R B = 8 A9 BfY
BRAAAEMEAN 2RHER
PRARAS

(Q EZEREHESFAAEEERWEMT
BRRAEGES BELFETAR
RAERESLERE FEER
BB SR AR 2 IR B R T
BRABRERASRAEAFER
FREMRE-

(3) BADQAEEREH ZHanison
Construction Holdings (BVI)
Limitedsh  PFIE H At A B
NEIBEERFE-

(4 —BIEBERERE-

WA ERRDRANFERLE
AEBRSIRAFEREGREN

AABESBRR ERASIHAL
A B A RBRAKENEERNEE
HEEREAFE -ARAESA
B HIEMHBLRANFEEES
RIFEBRITR
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interest:

The table below shows details of non-wholly

46. T EM B2 RN (&)

(b) BEEERENRZFREEENE
PCETE

TREJIARRPAEAFERER 2

owned subsidiaries of the Company that have F2ERBEWBLARFE:
non-controlling interest:
Proportion of ownership
interest and voting
Place of right held by Profits allocated to Accumulated

Name of subsidiary incorporation non-controlling interest non-controlling interest non-controlling interest

FERES

HEEGRE
WEARAEE Rt BERRELH ABFFERERZEF R FERER

2015 2014 2015 2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

—B-HF ZE-QOF

ZE-R1f ZE-NE ZB-1Ff =ZZ-NF ZA=+-B ZA=t+-H

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETR  BERTR  BETR  BETR

Superior Choice and its Hong Kong 40%
subsidiary (“Superior
Choice Group”)

Superior ChoiceR EMBE AT &E
(I'Superior Choicef£ & )

40% 68,260 8,318 73,499 5239

Note:Excel Pointer Limited is the wholly owned
subsidiary of Superior Choice and is engaged in
property investment.

Summarised financial information in respect
of the Group’s subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interest is set out below. The
summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intergroup
elimination.

Miak : 2&ER AT ASuperior Choice
ZEEHEEMBLAR RBEYE
RE-

REBEFERFERED 2B QR
LU BEMBERHIIMT o LT 8
BERMBEAREE R QT EME
Az &8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZE-—AF=ZA=+—HLEE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. T EMEB L EIHIE &)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) BEEFEREZZIZEREWE
have non-controlling interest: (Continued) DNEFFE: (#F)
Superior Choice Group Superior Choice%
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
—E-RfF —E—-UF
=A=+-8 | =A=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current assets RBEE 1,684 1,679
Non-current assets FRBEE 520,771 345,342
Current liabilities nBEE (337,568) (333,055)
Non-current liabilities IREBEaRE (1,140) (869)
Equity attributable to RATREEAEGEESR
owners of the Company 110,248 7,858

AR ERER AT /2014/2015 F3R7 /



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #3555

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-AF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interest: (Continued)

Superior Choice Group

46. T EM B L FIFE =)
(b) BEFERERZFZTEREWE
RNEFE: (#)
Superior Choicef &

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+t—BLFE

2015 2014
—E-afF —E-MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Revenue PN 9,457 11,913
Other gain and losses HiwzkER 169,317 16,867
Expenses pan (8,124) (7,985)
Profit and total RRABHEBEANEEFEREIR
comprehensive income for Z MU AL ZE
the year attributable to
owners of the Company 102,390 12,477
Profit and total e R 5 AL F R A R
comprehensive income for  ZEW A %8
the year attributable to
non-controlling interests 68,260 8,318
Profit and total FEMNREZHEWBALE
comprehensive income for
the year 170,650 20,795

During the year, Superior Choice Group
contributed to the Group’s net operating cash
inflows of HK$1.5 million (2014: HK$4.2 million
outflows), paid HK$6.3 million (2014: HK$1.4
million) in respect of investing activities and
received HK$4.8 million (2014: HK$4.4 million)
in respect of financing activities.

£ A Superior ChoicefEE A &K
EETRFEERESRABYE
1,500,000T (== — PO F : B
4,200,000 T 1) - BIREXEBK
i 78 %6,300,000T (ZZF—UF:
7 #1,400,0007T) & B RELE £ UK
[@] ;& #54,800,0005C ( =& — PO 4 :
75 #54,400,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

47. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 19 March 2015, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Hanison Construction
Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Hanison BVI") and
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of CCM Trust, Sky Champion International
Limited (“Sky Champion”), entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) with an independent third
party, pursuant to which, Hanison BVI and
Sky Champion will dispose of their entire
interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Superior Choice Holdings
Limited (“Superior Choice”) together with its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Excel Pointer Limited
(collecting referred to as “Target Companies”,
which are held by Hanison BVI and Sky
Champion on a 60:40 basis), and the same
proportionate shareholders’ loans made to
Superior Choice. The total cash consideration
is HK$550.0 million of which 60% is shared by
Hanison BVI. Excel Pointer Limited is engaged
in property investment. As at 31 March
2015, Target Companies have total assets
of HK$522.5 million and total liabilities of
HK$338.8 million (including shareholders’ loans
made to Superior Choice). Target Companies
have recorded a profit for the year ended 31
March 2015 amounted to HK$170.7 million.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

47. REHEFEH

(a)

R-ZE-—HF=Z=B+HLA &K
NAZEEMBE A FHanison
Construction Holdings (BVI)
Limited ([Hanison BVI ) & X &
BEAERLAT (T X2 CCM Trust
EEEEZHZTEMBLR)EH—
EBYFE=REITEEH= ([H
E#&El)  E It Hanison BVIR
AEBEEERAQATIZEM
[& 2 ] Superior Choice Holdings
Limited ([Superior Choice |)#
BH2EMNBARERBERAF
(EATBEZE2AT]  HHanison
BVIR X 7@ #£60:402 tk fil 35 H)
Z2EHERRUERLEH 2T
Superior ChoiceZ R RE X - #35
@85 %550,000,0005T &
Hanison BVIFE{560% - £ & B R
NAIA—FRREYHEREZ AT
RZEBE-RFE=A=+—H BE
NE)EEME A B ¥522,500,000
TRk B E4E%E A 78%338,800,0007T
(B$E 14 F Superior ChoiceZ JRE
EX) - BEATRRBE-Z—51F
A=+t —HLEFEHBERNBYE
170,700,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #%r

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HE-Z-

EF=ZA=+—BLFE

47. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Completion of the disposal is conditional
upon definitive conditions precedent being
satisfied. The conditions precedent include (i)
obtaining of approval from the independent
shareholders of the Company on the Disposal
Agreement and all relevant deeds, and the
transactions contemplated thereunder in
accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules by an extraordinary general
meeting, (ii) the purchaser being reasonably
satisfied in material respects with its due
diligence investigation in respect of the
Target Companies and the conditions of the
investment properties held by the Target
Companies, and (iii) from the date of the
Disposal Agreement, there not being any
change or event that has had or could
reasonably be expected to have a material
adverse effect on the business,
properties, liabilities, condition (financial or
otherwise), operating results, operations or
business prospects of the Target Companies.

assets,

Up to the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements, conditions
(i) and (ii) above have been satisfied. The
transaction has not yet been completed.

BB wKRNE

47. REWEFEH =)

(a)

(#&)

ZIEHEETHERRREEER
BAH AT ERGEHBIENRE
FHRARE RERRFAI RS L
BESAQARBIREREEHRER
FEHBRERBLURETZIRS
WHtE (NEFEEEMEMBZ
AR R EEARFEZREWER
HeERRECERLTE  Kii)8
HEBHRABE SIREAEEHR
EHHERLRIZER - BEY
% EE R (FHEHEAM) &
EXEB EEIEKASEARE
BEHUREERERTAEE

EREREUERREMAE
iLﬂMfF(l)&(n)E‘,?E‘E ERoAMR
S RFTERK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF R 5= M 55

47. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

(@]

On 19 May 2015, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, Shangzhi Limited,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Acquisition Agreement”) with an
independent third party to acquire the entire
issued capital of General Mark Holdings
Limited together with the shareholder’s loan,
at a cash consideration of HK$253.3 million.

Up to the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements, the Group
has not completed the acquisition which is
subject to the fulfillment of certain terms and
conditions under the Acquisition Agreement.

On 23 June 2015, the Board has resolved to
recommend a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) of
shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital of the
Company (“Bonus Shares”) on the basis of
one Bonus Share for every four existing shares
held by the members of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members on
3 September 2015. The Bonus Shares will be
credited as fully paid and will rank pari passu
with the existing issued ordinary shares of
the Company in all respects from the date of
issue, except that they will not rank for the
final dividend of HK3.4 cents per share to be
declared by the Company. The Bonus Issue
is subject to approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and
the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting listing of, and permission to deal in,
the Bonus Shares and compliance with the
relevant legal procedures and requirement (if
any) under the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the articles of association of the
Company to effect the Bonus Issue.

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-—AF=A=+—HLFE

47. REWEFEH =)

(b)

(9

R-Z2—HFHATNA T&EE
BiE2EWE AR EHR AR HE
—BBYE=FEITEEHZE ([W
BiEl) LB General Mark
Holdings LimitedZ& 2 4TI A
ERRRER ReRERBYE
253,300,000 °

BEEZEFEUBHRRBMAE
AEBEHRTEHEBIBESER (BREFR
BiHRBETARESE THRRR RS
ERK) °

R-ZZE-HAFANAZ+=H &S
ERBEBEON-_SE—RFHA=
HEIBRREBEMZAQARRRIZES
FEORRERMIERT—RA
B2EEBRTARATRAPZRME
BB T A (TALRR]) (3
TARK] -BRITHEE ARE
ERBEHBFIARBEARATRE
ERITEBERNETHZEERE
A EEFATZERRATBEIRZ
SREEBE3MLZ REBKRE -5
THANBFRRAEERRBE K
SHAE BRI LTZEEER
EREAR ETRESE WEFH
EREERELEZHBEIERERFR
RE (MB) RAAFZEBERMA
Bl DA BATALIRAER FAIEE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B 2
Year ended 31 March
BE-A=1-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-fE | ZE-WF CZB-=F ZB--fF ZZ--§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETR BETR BT
RESULTS E4
Turnover EEL] 2,095,154 1,626,525 1,554,479 1,234,656 723,242
Profit before taxation BRBL AR 511,470 179,322 201,897 136,077 180,158
Taxation HELH (24,008) (15,306) (16,711) (7,910) (4,159)
Profit for the year FERA 487,462 164,016 185,186 128,167 175,999
Profit (loss) attributable to: THATEERR (BE)
Owners of the Company AATEAA 419,202 155,698 188,265 128,167 175,999
Non-controlling interest FERES 68,260 8,318 (3,079) - -
487,462 164,016 185,186 128,167 175,999
As at 31 March
R=BA=+-H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HE | ZE-NE ZZ-=Zf CZE-"F CE-—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETRT BETT BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEMAE 3,455,472 2,761,916 2,579,855 2,281,897 1,922,489
Total liabilities BEAE (1,638,413)| (1,408,665  (1,363,470)  (1,230,567) (982,309)
1,817,059 1,353,251 1,216,385 1,051,330 940,180
Equity attributable to the owners of A2 AHA A B &R
the Company 1,743,560 1,348,012 1,219,464 1,051,330 940,180
Non-controlling interest FERES 73,499 5,239 (3,079) - -
1,817,059 1,353,251 1,216,385 1,051,330 940,180
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A.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

FEVEHE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR A. FEREVERERHEESKAH
RENTAL PURPOSES %
Gross floor
area/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BEREEE Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions HARERAE property rEE of lease
R (FAR) MIEME PElh R HAE 5
1. Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A, 93,588 Industrial 100% Medium-term
Workshops 9-10, 2/F, Block A, (excluding lease
Workshops 1-5, 4/F, Block B, area
Workshops 1-18 & of flat roofs)
majority portion of
Workshop 23 (including
flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6),
4/F, Block A,
Whole Floor, 5/F, Block A,
Workshops 1-2, Workshop 3
with flat roof, Workshop 4
with flat roof, Workshops 5-10 &
16-19, 5/F, Block B,
Car Parking Spaces
V26, V31, V36, V49, V50,
V55, L45 & L53
Shatin Industrial Centre
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit
Shatin, New Territories
FEDH 93,588 T% 100% A
RIEESZE 735 (FEFE¥a
DHIZERDS ZHE)

AE—EI(EE7
AE_#ZTIT{ER9ZE10

BEE Y T/EMI1ZES5 -
AEMZETEB1Z18R
TEB232 EEEZRH
(BIEIEBSK6ZFEE)
AERER2E BEREIERMZE
2 -TEEBEYSR  TEHE4EF
& THEBSE10R THEB16E19
REM4RYEV26 V31 V36 V49 »
V50 + V55 ~ L45K% L53
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES =&Y ¥HE

A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A. SAREVRESHESBAR

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) & (®)
Gross floor
area/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BEREEE Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions hBEBEOE property rEE of lease

R (FAR) MEME PEfL S HYEA

2. Various lots 142,066 Agricultural 100% Medium-term
in Demarcation District No. 76 lease
Ping Che
Fanling
New Territories
R 142,066 Zith 100% H H
MmEE
HEXEH765
BT HER

3. Leasehold interest in the 2,956 Commercial 100% Medium-term
Head-Lease for the residual lease
term of 30 years commencing
from 1 December 1989 with
an option to renew for a further
term of 30 years of whole of
No. 31 Wing Wo Street,

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

R—OEBHEA 2,956 [EES 100% H HA
BB LIRKMAII5REE

ZEBERN 2 HEER

HEFHBE-AWN\AE+ZA

— ARG RBA=1T5F (X

BEISHI=TFHBZER)

4. Various lots 214,106 Agricultural 100% Medium-term
in Demarcation District No. 128 lease
Deep Bay Road, Yuen Long
New Territories
R 214,106 Bt 100% HHA
izl
TR L E 412855
BT HER
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A.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES =&Y ¥ HE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A. SAREMRESHESBAR

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) = (E)
Gross floor
area/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BEEEE Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions hBEBEOE property rEE of lease
BR (FHER) MRME PElLRE & HAER
5.  Workshop Unit 5,575 Industrial 100% Medium-term

Nos. 4 to 6 (inclusive) on lease

2nd Floor and Lorry Carpark

Nos. L7 & L8

on Ground Floor,

Kin Wing Industrial Building,

No. 33 Kin Wing Street,

Tuen Mun, New Territories

SRR 5,575 I 100% HHR

HEER 13395

BUTERE IBIT65 TIER

(MEREER)

Kb T B 4RIRL7R LS
6. Lot No. 716 and The Remaining 14,684  Agricultural 50% Medium-term

Portions of Lot Nos. 719 and 721 lease

in Demarcation District No. 132,

Tuen Mun, New Territories

R 14,684 Eith 50% A

X EHN1325R 1 ER7165% A K

7195 R 72155 2 RIgR &R 2
7. CentreHollywood 32,738 Commercial 60% Long lease

No. 151 Hollywood Road

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

EB LR 32,738 [EES 60% R

a1 Z25% 3815195 CentreHollywood

B AIEIZERBEMR AT /2014/2015 F3R /



SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES =&Y ¥HE

B. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT B. WEEBZERPZFHEDME

FOR SALE IN HONG KONG

Site  Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of
(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of date Nature of ~ the Group  Category of
Descriptions HBEEE HABEEE  completion BRI property biS-1: | lease
o (F5R) (F5R) THRER B NEMLE FEfE R E HLER
1. 121 Lots in Demarcation 815,886 Not yet Planning  No definite  Residential 100% Medium-
District No. 129 determined  in progress plan term lease
Lau Fau Shan, Yuen Long
New Territories
HR 815,886 REEE BUlRR ERETEY (i 100% I
TERFL
L EK1295
1218388
2. Various lots 44,588 Not yet Planning  No definite  Residential 100% Medium-
in Demarcation determined in progress plan term lease
District No. 374
So Kwun Wat, Tuen Mun
New Territories
R 44,588 REE BIMR ERETE = 100% h
BHREES
X 843743
ETIE
3. Various lots 67,315 Not yet Planning  No definite  Residential 100% Medium-
in Demarcation determined  in progress plan term lease
District No. 121
Tong Yan San Tsuen
Yuen Long, New Territories
H e 67,315 REE BURR ERETE e 100% hE
BN L2H1215
ET B
4, Sha Tin Town Lot No. 603, 12,809 26,890 Planning  No definite  Residential 25% Medium-
Lok Lam Road, Fo Tan, in progress plan term lease
Shatin, New Territories
HRDE 12,809 26890  BAKR ERTHI % 25% H
KR,

B HEM R E6035

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015 /



SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES =&Y ¥ HE

C. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT C. RbBEAMZERBZHE
FOR SALE IN MAINLAND CHINA

Site  Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of
(sq. m.) (sq. m.) Stage of date Nature of ~ the Group Category of

Descriptions WEEE HABEEE  completion BRI property XEE lease
o (F5K) (F5HK) THRER R NELE L3 HLER
A development project located 35,680 154,997 Work in Phase 1-  Commercial 49% Medium-
at the west of Wenyuan Road progress  Completed term lease
and south of Houfutinggang, Entire
Haining City, Zhejiang Province, Project -
The PRC (including sold but not 2018
yet handover units and unsold
units of Phase 1 and land for
Phase 2 and Phase 3 development)
URPEMIE 35,680 154,997  IRRE(TH 8- [GE3 49% i
BETEEEAD BRI
BESEEAN-ERREER BEER -
(BREE-HeHEBLRARKZ —Z-N\f

BRURAHEEMUR
FZCHBRzH)
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES =&Y ¥HE

D. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE D. HEHEZYME
Gross floor
area/Saleable
Site area Attributable
area (sq. ft.) interest of
(sq.ft) HBEEE/ Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions WHREE ERER property biN-3 of lease
R (£AR) (FAR) MERE FE{E R HAER
1. Unsold units at The Bedford, 4,820 22,595 Industrial 100% Long lease
Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road
Tai Kok Tsui
Kowloon
b 4,820 22,595 I%¥ 100% &
KA NEEI-93%
The Bedfordk HEE {1
2. Unsold units at 5790  Retail portion: Residential/ 100% Long lease
The Austine Place, 8,965 (Gross Retail
No. 38 Kwun Chung Street floor area)
Kowloon Residential

portion: 19,133
(Saleable area)

NE 5,790 G 2/ B 100% R
BIR#385 8,965
The Austine Placek HEE {7 (BEEmE)
FEHH:
19,133
(EREE)
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HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong
BELHRIEEREZ L5
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